Greeley City Council Agenda Regular Meeting

Tuesday, January 18, 2022 at 6:00 p.m.

City Council Chambers at City Center South, 1001 11th Ave, Greeley, CO 80631 Zoom Webinar link: https://greeleygov.zoom.us/j/91910136877

NOTICE:

Regular meetings of the City Council are held on the 1st and 3rd Tuesdays of each month in the City Council Chambers. Meetings are conducted in a hybrid format, with a Zoom webinar in addition to the in person meeting in Council Chambers.

City Council members may participate in this meeting via electronic means pursuant to their adopted policies and protocol.

Members of the public are also invited to choose how to participate in Council meetings in the manner that works best for them.

Watch Meetings:



Meetings are open to the public and can be attended in person by anyone.



Meetings are televised live on GTV8 on cable television.



Meetings are livestreamed on the City's website, greeleygov.com as well as YouTube at youtube.com/CityofGreeley

For more information about this meeting or to request reasonable accommodations, contact the City Clerk's Office at 970-350-9740 or by email at cityclerk@greeleygov.com.

Meeting agendas, minutes, and archived videos are available on the City's meeting portal at greeley-co.municodemeetings.com/

Comment in real time:

During the public input portion of the meeting and public hearings:



In person attendees can address the Council in the Chambers.



The public can join the Zoom webinar and comment from the remote meeting.

Submit written comments:



Email comments about any item on the agenda to cityclerk@greeleygov.com



Written comments can be mailed or dropped off at the City Clerk's Office at City Hall, at 1000 10th St, Greeley, CO 80631





Mayor John Gates

Councilmembers

Tommy Butler Ward I

Deb DeBoutez Ward II

Johnny Olson Ward III

> Dale Hall Ward IV

Brett Payton At-Large

> Ed Clark At-Large

A City Achieving Community Excellence Greeley promotes a healthy, diverse economy and high quality of life responsive to all its residents and neighborhoods, thoughtfully managing its human and natural resources in a manner that creates and sustains a safe, unique, vibrant and rewarding community in which to live, work, and play.

City Council Agenda

January 18, 2022 at 6:00 PM

City Council Chambers, City Center South, 1001 11th Ave & via Zoom at https://greeleygov.zoom.us/j/91910136877

1.	Call to Order
2.	Pledge of Allegiance
3.	Roll Call
4.	Approval of the Agenda
5.	Recognitions and Proclamations
6.	Citizen Input
7.	Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers
<u>8.</u>	Initiatives from Mayor and Councilmembers

Consent Agenda

The Consent Agenda is a meeting management tool to allow the City Council to handle several routine items with one action.

Council Members may request an item be pulled off the Consent Agenda and considered separately under the next agenda item in the order they were listed.

- 9. Acceptance of the Report of the City Council Work Session of January 11, 2022
- 10. Approval of the City Council Proceedings of the regular meeting of January 4, 2022
- 11. Resolution approving an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Colorado Department of Transportation for the Installation of Dynamic Advance Warning Flashers at the Highway 34 Bypass and CR17 Intersection.
- 12. Resolution approving an Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Greeley and the Greeley-Weld County Airport Authority
- 13. Resolution authorizing an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Colorado Department of Transportation for the Expansion of the City of Greeley's Fiber Optic Network

- 14. Pulled Consent Agenda Items
- 15. Public hearing and final reading of an ordinance amending Title 20 of the Greeley Municipal Code concerning the use of non-potable water supplies for irrigation and the assessment of plant investment fees when non-potable water is utilized.
- 16. Public hearing and final reading of an ordinance authorizing the acquisition of interests in real property located in Weld County related to the development of the Terry Ranch Potable Water Treatment Plant and Additional Water Transmission Lines and Associated Facilities by purchase or exercise of power of eminent domain pursuant to Section 7 of Article XVI, Section 15 of article II, and Sections 1 and 6 of Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and Colorado Revised Statute § 38-1-101, et seq.

(Terry Ranch Water Supply Project)

- 17. Public hearing and final reading of an Ordinance authorizing a salary and certain benefits for the City Manager, Raymond C. Lee III
- 18. Public Hearing and second reading of an Ordinance re-authorizing various Boards and Commissions for three years
- 19. Consideration of a motion approving the 2022 Council meeting and worksession schedule.
- 20. Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events
- 21. Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required resolutions, agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council at this meeting and any previous meetings, and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign all such resolutions, agreements and ordinances
- 22. COVID-19 Update
- 23. Adjournment

Greeley City Council

Status Report of Council Initiatives

Initiative Council No. Member Initiating	Council Request	Council Meeting or Work Session Date Requested	Status or Disposition (After completion, item is shown one time as completed and then removed.)	Assigned to:
03-2021 Hall	Request for formation of a committee, to be chaired by Council Member Hall, regarding the section of the Poudre River Trail known as the Narrows. This section is facing increasing risks of erosion, with some portions in danger of falling into the river, and no available alternative areas for trail placement m that vicinity. The School of Mines will do a project to work on some engineering solutions for the area, in addition to other engineering studies that have already been done. The committee will review and determine options to move forward in addressing this with the assistance of City staff. City Manager Otto added information about potential Capital Improvement Projects through this area, and Council Member Hall provided information about existing potential rough cost estimates.	February 2, 2021 Council Meeting	Update 12/7/2021 Council Member Hall reported in the last 6 months, 30 feet of trail has started becoming undermined and must be shored up immediately, likely requiring some short term dollars while awaiting a longer solution. Update: 04/20/2021 Council Member Hall reported the committee had its first meeting and he is pleased with engagement from City staff and the community. A committee, chaired by Council Member and Poudre River Trail Corridor Chairman Hall, has been formed with representatives from the Poudre Trail Corridor Board, Culture, Parks and Recreation/Natural Areas and Trails, Public Works, Water and Sewer, the Poudre River Run Master HOA, a member of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, and a representative from the Ditch #3 Board. Committee Chairman Hall has also referenced initial communications with Otak Engineering, a consulting firm who produced	Kelly Snook

Initiative No.	Council Member Initiating	Council Request	Council Meeting or Work Session Date Requested	Status or Disposition (After completion, item is shown one time as completed and then removed.)	Assigned to:
				a study of this area in 2018 for the City of Greeley, as well as the Colorado School of Mines engineering students who will conduct a capstone project this semester towards a suggested course of action and suggested funding mechanism(s). An initial assessment with design parameters, recommended course(s) of action including recommended funding sources, is expected in June, 2021 post consultation with the Mines student project and engineering consultants. Although this project will carry on m practicality through committee work	
14-2021	Butler	Request to have a discussion on railroad quiet zones and safety at a work session.	December 7, 2021 Council Meeting	Scheduled for a work session in early 2022	Paul Trombino
15-2021	Olson	Formation of a committee for implementation of a funding strategy for the 35 th and 47 th interchanges.	December 7, 2021 Council Meeting	Council Member Olson will be following up with Manager Lee and Director Trombino on next steps	Paul Trombino

City of Greeley, Colorado CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION REPORT January 11, 2022

1. Call to Order

Mayor John Gates called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers at 1001 11th Ave, Greeley, Colorado, with hybrid participation available via the City's Zoom platform.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

Mayor Gates led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag.

3. Roll Call

Stacey Aurzada, Interim City Clerk, called the roll.

PRESENT Mayor John Gates Council Member Tommy Butler Council Member Deb DeBoutez Council Member Dale Hall Council Member Brett Payton Council Member Ed Clark Council Member Johnny Olson

4. Reports from Mayor and Council Members

Councilmember Olson gave a report about the Weld County lawsuit regarding the air quality non-attainment area.

5. Scheduling of meetings, other events.

Nothing to report.

6. COVID-19 Update

Dan Frazen, Emergency Manager, provided an update highlighting the Covid-19 metrics tracked via the City's dashboard. He noted metrics are continuing to trend upward and reviewed items that are tracked on the City's dashboard.

Mayor Gates asked Mr. Frazen to clarify why the data is lagging.

Councilmember Olson asked Mr. Frazen to clarify the potential curve of the Omicron variant. Mr. Frazen reported that he participated in a conference call with CDPHE this week and there was discussion on this call about the potential for the surge to last four weeks.

Councilmember DeBoutez asked Mr. Frazen for more information about the 27 employees who are unable to work. Mr. Frazen stated the majority of the affected employees are from the Police, Fire, Public Works and Water and Sewer departments. Councilmember Olson asked how many of these cases were breakthrough cases. Mr. Frazen indicated there are quite a few infections among vaccinated employees.

Mr. Frazen encouraged people to look to the dashboard for detailed information regarding Covid-19. A discussion was held regarding the timing of Covid-19 information to be provided to City Council. Mr. Lee indicated a weekly report would continue to be provided.

7. 2020 Financial Audit Report and Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Finance Director, John Karner gave an overview of the 2020 Financial Audit process. Mr. Karner introduced Randy Watkins from BDO, USA LLP to present information regarding the Audit and the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. Mr. Watkins presented as set forth in the presentation deck in the agenda packet.

Councilmember Olson asked about the City's liability related to the \$312,000 questioned costs from the Coronavirus Relief Fund. Mr. Karner indicated that the City is at risk of having to pay those funds back, but explained that the City has already taken steps to correct the concern.

Mr. Karner indicated that the City does have a plan to hire a grants specialist as recommended by the audit.

Councilmember Payton requested more information about the finding related to the Federal Transportation Administration grant. Mr. Karner indicated that the identified issues related to reporting requirements.

Councilmember Olson questioned whether there will be enough work to keep a grants specialist busy. Mr. Karner described the duties intended for the grants specialist.

8. ShurView Property Acquisition Update

Kelly Snook, Interim Director of the Culture, Parks and Recreation Department, provided an overview of the ShurView property acquisition. Ms. Snook introduced Wade Shelton from the Trust for Public Lands. Mr. Shelton described the mission of the Trust for Public Lands. Ms. Snook and Mr. Shelton presented as set forth in the PowerPoint deck in the agenda packet.

Mr. Shelton answered a question from Councilmember Olson about the cost for the property.

Councilmember Hall indicated that the Poudre River Trail Corridor Board has been working with the County to identify potential uses of Missile Silo Park and stated that the acquisition of the Shur View property will provide access between the Poudre River Trail and Missile Silo Park.

Mayor Gates questioned the disparity between the funding contribution being made by Greeley and Windsor. Councilmember DeBoutez stated that this site is in Greeley's Long Range Plan. Ms. Safarik confirmed that Windsor has no continuity with this property. Mr. Lee indicated he would engage Windsor in a conversation about the amount of their contribution. Justin Scharton, Natural Areas and Trails Superintendent, said he and Mr. Shelton made a presentation to the Windsor Town Board about the project. The Windsor Town Board is enthusiastic and supportive of this project but they had concerns about their budget.

Councilmember Butler asked whether the County had been asked to contribute to the funding. Mr. Scharton said that he didn't think the County had been approached for funding but that discussions have been held with the County regarding the Missile Silo Park development.

Councilmember Olson commented about the need to plan for the future maintenance of the site.

9. Bittersweet Park Turf Strategies

Kelly Snook, Interim Director Culture, Parks and Recreation Department, presented as set forth in the PowerPoint deck in the agenda packet.

Mayor Gates expressed his ongoing concerns about the turf replacement project.

Councilmember DeBoutez asked how much has the City spent on the Bittersweet turf conversion already. Eric Bloomer indicated that 1.5 million has been spent to date to upgrade the irrigation system and to convert the turf at Bittersweet to natural grasses. Councilmember DeBoutez indicated that the Culture, Parks and Recreation department held a lot of community outreach meetings before the turf replacement project began and the community feedback was positive at that time. Mr. Bloomer described challenges related to the property.

Councilmember Hall asked for clarification regarding the difference between bluegrass and fescue. Mr. Bloomer explained the differences and discussion was held about the use of fescue or bluegrass turf.

Mayor Gates asked Mr. Bloomer about the timeline for the various options presented. Mr. Bloomer indicated the seeding could be done by the Spring. Mr. Lee indicated that it will be important to include community engagement in the timeline.

Council discussed the options. Mayor Gates asked Councilmembers for consensus on the proposed options, and discussion was held regarding each of the proposed options. Mr. Lee indicated that City staff will bring forward an appropriate plan to the City Council based on the feedback received tonight. Ms. Snook and Mr. Bloomer confirmed they received adequate direction from the discussion.

10. Discussion of 2022 Council Meeting and Work Session Calendar

Raymond Lee, City Manager, presented the proposed Council Meeting and Work Session Calendar. The final calendar will be presented to Council for approval at a regular meeting.

10. Adjournment

There being no further business before the Council, the meeting was adjourned at 7:38 p.m.

John D. Gates, Mayor

Aacung Izada

Stacey Aurzada, Interim City Clerk

4

Council Agenda Summary

<u>Title:</u>

Approval of the City Council Proceedings of the regular meeting of January 4, 2022

<u>Summary:</u>

A regular meeting of the City Council was held in the City Council's Chambers on January 4, 2022. The draft proceedings have been prepared and are being presented for the Council's review and approval.

Decision Options:

- 1. To approve the proceedings as presented; or
- 2. Amend the proceedings if amendments or corrections are needed, and approve as amended.

Council's Recommended Action:

A motion to approve the City Council proceedings as presented.

Attachments: Draft Proceedings

City of Greeley, Colorado CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS January 04, 2022

1. Call to Order

Mayor John Gates called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers at 1001 11th Avenue, Greeley, Colorado, with hybrid participation available via the City's Zoom platform.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

Mayor Gates led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag.

3. Roll Call

Anissa Hollingshead, City Clerk, called the roll.

PRESENT: Mayor John Gates Council Member Tommy Butler Council Member Deb DeBoutez Council Member Dale Hall (participating remotely) Council Member Johnny Olson Council Member Ed Clark Council Member Brett Payton

Following roll call, Mayor Gates introduced three new deputy directors who have joined the City of Greeley in recent weeks, including John Nelsen, Deputy Human Resources Director; Tammy Hitchens, Deputy Finance Director; and Charity Campfield, Deputy City Clerk.

4. Approval of the Agenda

The agenda was approved as presented.

5. Recognitions and Proclamations

Council Member Johnny Olson presented the What's Great About Greeley report.

Mayor Gates offered a special recognition of former Greeley Council Member Richard A. "Dick" Boettcher, Sr., who recently passed away.

6. Citizen Input

Fred Neill, an Evans resident, came forward to recognize a City employee who stopped his bus and got out and assisted him after he slipped on the ice at the Wreaths Across America event on December 18. He also shared a concern about roads that had not been treated on New Year's Eve and were unsafe, and a desire for follow up from the City Manager to visits he had made to City Hall.

No one in the virtual audience wished to address the council.

7. Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers

Council Member DeBoutez shared that 160 residents at the Bonnell facility were given 60 days' notice of the need to vacate due to the facility's closure, and requested the City explore how it might assist.

Mayor Gates commented regarding Miss Rodeo Colorado 2020 and 2021 Hailey Frederiksen, who has been named Miss Rodeo America for 2022, and noted the Greeley Stampede is the home of the Miss Rodeo Colorado event. He noted he named the previous Sunday Hailey Frederiksen Day in Greeley.

8. Initiatives from Mayor and Councilmembers

None.

Consent Agenda

Council Member DeBoutez requested that item 13 be removed from the consent agenda.

Council Member Payton moved, seconded by Council Member Butler, to approve the recommended actions on items 9-12 and 14-17. The motion carried 7-0 by roll call vote.

9. Approval of the City Council Proceedings of the regular meeting of December 7, 2021, and special meetings of August 31, 2021, November 9, 2021, November 17, 2021, and November 19, 2021

The Council action recommended and approved was to approve the proceedings as presented.

10. Consideration of a Resolution authorizing the City to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) for the maintenance of State roads within the City of Greeley

The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.

Resolution No. 01, 2022, authorizing the City to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the Colorado Department of Transportation for the maintenance of State roads within the City, was adopted.

11. Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance re-authorizing various Boards and Commissions for three years

The Council action recommended and approved was to introduce the ordinance and schedule the public hearing and second reading for January 18, 2022.

12. Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance authorizing the acquisition of interests in real property located in Weld County related to the development of the Terry Ranch Potable Water Treatment Plant and Additional Water Transmission Lines and Associated Facilities by purchase or exercise of power of eminent domain pursuant to Section 7 of Article XVI, Section 15 of article II, and Sections 1 and 6 of Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and Colorado Revised Statute § 38-1-101, et seg. (Terry Ranch Water Supply Project)

The Council action recommended and approved was to introduce the ordinance and schedule the public hearing and second reading for January 18, 2022.

13. Designating posting sites for notices of City Council meetings

This item was pulled from the consent agenda to allow for discussion.

14. Consideration of a Resolution appointing Stacey Aurzada to the position of Interim City Clerk

The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.

Resolution No. 02, 2022, appointing Stacey Aurzada as the interim city clerk, was adopted.

15. Consideration of a Resolution approving an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Colorado Department of Human Services to enter into the Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP)

The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.

Resolution No. 03, 2022, approving an intergovernmental agreement with the Colorado Department of Human Services to enter into the Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program, was adopted.

16. Consideration of a Resolution concerning the proposed City of Greeley, Colorado, first-lien sewer improvement revenue bonds Series 2022; authorizing the receipt of competitive bids for the Series 2022 Bonds, including the use of an electronic bidding system therefor; and prescribing certain details concerning such public sale of the Series 2022 Bonds

The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.

Resolution No. 04, 2022, authorizing the receipt of competitive bonds for first-lien sewer improvement revenue bonds, including the use of an electronic bidding system, and prescribing certain details concerning the public sale of the bonds, was adopted.

17. Consideration of a Resolution concerning the proposed City Of Greeley, Colorado, Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2022; authorizing the receipt of competitive bids for the Series 2022 Bonds, including the use of an electronic bidding system therefor; and prescribing certain details concerning such public sale of the Series 2022 Bonds

3

The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.

Resolution No. 05, **2022**, authorizing the receipt of competitive bonds for water revenue refunding and improvement bonds, including the use of an electronic bidding system, and prescribing certain details concerning the public sale of the bonds, was adopted.

End of Consent Agenda

18. Pulled Consent Agenda Items

13. Designating posting sites for notices of City Council meetings

Council Member DeBoutez asked about the potential of posting agendas in multiple City facilities. City Manager Lee and City Clerk Hollingshead responded with information about planning underway to this end.

Council Member DeBoutez moved, seconded by Council Member Butler to designate the City of Greeley's website as the official posting site for meeting notices of the City Council, including agendas of City Council Meetings and Work Sessions, and the public lobby of City Hall as the backup location for such postings. The motion carried 7-0 by roll call vote.

19. Public hearing and second reading of an Ordinance authorizing the sale of cityowned property located in Section 16, Township 7 North, Range 66 West of the 6th P.M. in Weld County ("McWilliams Farm")

Sean Chambers, Water and Sewer Director, came forward to introduce this item. Cole Gustafson, Water Resource Asset Coordinator, presented as set forth in the slide deck in the agenda packet.

Mayor Gates opened the public hearing at 6:30 p.m.

There being no one wishing to be heard in the Chambers or as part of the virtual audience, the public hearing was closed.

Council Member Butler moved, seconded by Council Member Olson, to adopt the ordinance and publish with reference to title only. The motion carried 7-0 by roll call vote.

Ordinance No. 01, 2022, authorizing the sale of City owned property, was adopted.

20. Public hearing and second reading of an Ordinance authorizing the issuance and sale by the City Of Greeley, Colorado, acting by and through its sanitary water enterprise, of First-Lien Sewer Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2022, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed \$25,500,000, for the purpose of financing, in whole or in part, the cost of additions and improvements to the sewer system operated by the sanitary water enterprise, pledging certain funds and revenues of the enterprise to the payment of such bonds. Prescribing the form of such bonds, and providing other details in connection therewith John Karner, Finance Director, came forward to introduce this item and provide an overview of the use of debt to fund projects. Eric Dial, Water and Sewer Utility Finance and Business Manager, presented as set forth in the slide deck in the agenda packet, highlighting the projects the funds will be used on.

In response to questions from Council, Manager Dial provided details about the length of the bond, noting some of the bonds are varying lengths, between 20 years and 30 years. Director Chambers also provided more details on the public communication plan regarding rate increases.

Mayor Gates opened the public hearing at 6:50 p.m.

There being no one wishing to be heard in the Chambers or as part of the virtual audience, the public hearing was closed.

Council Member Payton moved, seconded by Council Member Butler, to adopt the ordinance and publish with reference to title only. The motion carried 7-0 by roll call vote.

Ordinance No. 02, 2022, authorizing the issuance and sale of First-Lien Sewer Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2022, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed \$25,500,000, was adopted.

21. Public hearing and second reading regarding an Ordinance providing for the issuance by the City Of Greeley, Colorado of its water revenue bonds, series 2022, in a principal amount not to exceed \$77,500,000, for the purpose of financing improvements, betterments, extensions and expansions of the city's water system; providing for the delegation to city officers of authority in connection with the competitive sale of the Series 2022 Bonds; providing for the payment of the Series 2022 Bonds from net revenues of the City's water system and pledging such net revenues therefore; providing for the form and terms of such Series 2022 Bonds, setting forth covenants and provisions concerning such Series 2022 Bonds, net revenues, and water system, and providing for other details in connection therewith; and ratifying prior actions relating to the foregoing

John Karner, Finance Director, came forward for any questions.

Mayor Gates opened the public hearing at 6:52 p.m.

There being no one wishing to be heard in the Chambers or as part of the virtual audience, the public hearing was closed.

Council Member Olson moved, seconded by Council Member Clark, to adopt the ordinance and publish with reference to title only. The motion carried 7-0 by roll call vote.

Ordinance No. 03, 2022, authorizing the issuance of its water revenue bonds, series 2022, in a principal amount not to exceed \$77,500,000, was adopted.

22. Consideration of a Resolution appointing Raymond C. Lee III to the position of City Manager

Mayor Gates presented this item for consideration.

Council Member Butler moved, seconded by Council Member Payton, to adopt the resolution.

The motion carried 7-0 by roll call vote.

Resolution No. 06, 2022, appointing Raymond C. Lee III to the position of City Manager, was adopted.

23. Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance authorizing a salary and certain benefits for the City Manager, Raymond C. Lee III

The Council action recommended and approved was to introduce the ordinance and schedule the public hearing and second reading for January 18, 2022.

Council Member Butler moved, seconded by Council Member Payton, The motion carried 7-0.

24. Appointment of applicants to the Citizen Budget Advisory Committee, Greeley Art Commission, and Human Relations Commission

City Clerk Anissa Hollingshead reported the following appointments were made by the Council by written ballot:

- Citizen Budget Advisory Committee Barry Eastman, Jesse Quinby, and John Shull.
- Greeley Art Commission Louisa Andersen.
- Human Relations Commission Fatima Groom.

25. Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events

No other meetings or events were scheduled.

26. Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required resolutions, agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council at this meeting and any previous meetings, and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign all such resolutions, agreements and ordinances

Council Member Payton moved, seconded by Council Member Butler to approve the above authorizations. The motion carried 7-0.

27. Adjournment

There being no further business before the Council, the meeting was adjourned at 6:59 p.m.

John D. Gates, Mayor

Anissa N. Hollingshead, City Clerk

Council Agenda Summary

January 18th, 2022

Agenda Item Number

Key Staff Contact: Paul Trombino III, Public Works Department, 970-350-9795

<u>Title</u>

Resolution approving an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Colorado Department of Transportation for the Installation of Dynamic Advance Warning Flashers at the Highway 34 Bypass and CR17 Intersection.

<u>Summary</u>

Through a competitive grant process with the Colorado Department of Transportation, the City of Greeley has been awarded a Highway Safety Improvement Project (HSIP) grant for the installation of dynamic advance warning flashers on Highway 34 Bypass at the CR 17 intersection. The adoption of this Resolution will facilitate staff's ability to receive reimbursement for the installation of the warning flashers at 100%. This project will alert motorists of the impending traffic signal changes (from green to red) and hence mitigate the number of rear-end crashes at this intersection. This intersection, based off the Traffic Divisions annual safety analysis program has the highest number of rear end crashes in the City.

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of
Greeley?NoIf yes, what is the initial or one time impact?\$ 125,800.00 HSIP funding
\$ 0.00 Local match
\$125,800.00 TotalWhat is the annual impact?N/AWhat fund of the City will provide funding?N/AWhat is the source of revenue within the fund?N/AIs there grant funding for this item?Yes

Fiscal Impact

If yes, does this grant require a match?	No
Is this grant onetime or ongoing?	Onetime
Additional Comments:	

Legal Issues

None - the City Attorney's Office Has Reviewed

Other Issues and Considerations

None

Applicable Council Goal or Objective

Safety: Manage the health, safety and welfare in a way that promotes a sense of security and well-being for residents, businesses and visitors.

Infrastructure & Growth: Establish the capital and human infrastructure to support and maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and successful community.

Decision Options

- 1. Adopt the resolution as presented; or
- 2. Amend the resolution and adopt as amended; or
- 3. Deny the resolution;
- 4. Continue consideration of the resolution to a date certain

Council's Recommended Action

A motion to adopt the Resolution

<u>Attachments</u>

Resolution

Intergovernmental Agreement

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO RESOLUTION _____, 2022

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR INSTALLATION OF DYNAMIC ADVANCE WARNING FLASHERS AT THE INTERSECTION OF HIGHWAY 34 BYPASS AT COUNTY ROAD 17

WHEREAS, in accordance with C.R.S. §29-1-203, governments may cooperate or contract with one another to provide function, service or facility lawfully authorized to each of the cooperating or contracting units of government; and

WHEREAS, as a result of its annual safety analysis program, the Traffic Division, Department of Public Works, determined the intersection of the Highway 34 Bypass at County Road 17 (Intersection) has the highest number of rear end vehicle crashes in the City; and

WHEREAS, through a competitive grant process with the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT), the City has been awarded a Highway Safety Improvement Project (HSIP) grant, in the total amount of One Hundred Twenty Five Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars (\$125,800.00); and

WHEREAS, the installation of the warning flashers will alert motorists of impending traffic signal changes (from green to red) and hence mitigate the number of rear-end crashes at this Intersection; and

WHEREAS, CDOT will be responsible for the general administration and supervision of the performance of the Project, and is willing to provide 100.00% of the Project costs, or One Hundred Twenty Five Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars (\$125,800.00); and

WHEREAS, the Project will require no funds from the City; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to comply with the applicable requirements for CDOT's general administration and supervision of the Project through this IGA, in order to obtain federal and state funds; and

WHEREAS, the City is adequately staffed and suitably equipped to undertake and satisfactorily complete some or all of the work on the Project; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City for Council to enter into this IGA, reduce rear-end crashes at this Intersection, thus maintaining a safe, competitive, appealing, and successful community; and

WHEREAS, this IGA with CDOT is authorized by C.R.S. §§43-2-103, and 43-2-144; and

WHEREAS, the City and CDOT have agreed to the terms and conditions of the IGA attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO:

Section 1. The City Council hereby authorizes the City to enter into this IGA.

<u>Section 2</u>. City staff is hereby authorized to make changes and modifications to the Agreement, so long as the substance of the IGA remains unchanged.

<u>Section 3</u>. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage, as provided by the Greeley City Charter.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS _____ day of _____, 2022.

ATTEST:

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO

Interim City Clerk

Mayor

Signature and Cover Page			
	Agreement Routing Number		
1	22-HA4-XC-00242		
	Agreement Effective Date		
	The later of the effective date or		
	November 17, 2021		
	Agreement Expiration Date		
R 17 SIGNALS	November 16, 2031		
Contract Writer	Agreement Maximum Amount		
VJM	\$125,800.00		
	R 17 SIGNALS Contract Writer		

STATE OF COLORADO INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT Signature and Cover Page

THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT

Each person signing this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized to execute this Agreement and to bind the Party authorizing his or her signature.

Dated this day of, THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO	STATE OF COLORADO Jared S. Polis, Governor Department of Transportation Shoshana M. Lew, Executive Director
APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE:	
By: City Manager	Stephen Harelson, P.E., Chief Engineer
	Date:
REVIEWED FOR AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS:	LEGAL REVIEW Philip J. Weiser, Attorney General
By: Director of Finance APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:	Assistant Attorney General
By: City Attorney	By: (Print Name and Title) Date:
Controller or an at STATE CO	tt is not valid until signed and dated below by the State uthorized delegate. NTROLLER CPA, MBA, JD
By: Department of	Transportation
Effective Date:	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	PARTIES	2
2.	TERM AND EFFECTIVE DATE	2
3.	AUTHORITY	
4.	PURPOSE	4
5.	DEFINITIONS	4
6.	STATEMENT OF WORK	
7.	PAYMENTS	9
8.	REPORTING - NOTIFICATION	14
9.	LOCAL AGENCY RECORDS	14
10.	CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION-STATE RECORDS	15
11.	CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	16
12.	INSURANCE	16
13.	BREACH	18
14.	REMEDIES	18
15.	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	19
16.	NOTICES AND REPRESENTATIVES	
17.	RIGHTS IN WORK PRODUCT AND OTHER INFORMATION	20
18.	GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY	21
19.	STATEWIDE CONTRACT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM	21
20.	GENERAL PROVISIONS	
21.	COLORADO SPECIAL PROVISIONS (COLORADO FISCAL RULE 3-3)	23
22.	FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS	
23.	DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)	25
24.	DISPUTES	25
]	EXHIBIT A, STATEMENT OF WORK	
]	EXHIBIT B, SAMPLE OPTION LETTER	
]	EXHIBIT C, FUNDING PROVISIONS	
	EXHIBIT D, LOCAL AGENCY RESOLUTION	
]	EXHIBIT E, LOCAL AGENCY AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION CHECKLIST	
]	EXHIBIT F, CERTIFICATION FOR FEDERAL-AID AGREEMENTS	
	EXHIBIT G, DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE	
	EXHIBIT H, LOCAL AGENCY PROCEDURES FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES	
]	EXHIBIT I, FEDERAL-AID AGREEMENT PROVISIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION AGREEME	NTS
	EXHIBIT J, ADDITIONAL FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS	
	EXHIBIT K, FFATA SUPPLEMENTAL FEDERAL PROVISIONS	
	EXHIBIT L, SAMPLE SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING AND RISK ASSESSMENT FORM	
]	EXHIBIT M, OMB UNIFORM GUIDANCE FOR FEDERAL AWARDS	

1. PARTIES

This Agreement is entered into by and between Local Agency named on the Signature and Cover Page for this Agreement ("Local Agency"), and the STATE OF COLORADO acting by and through the State agency named on the Signature and Cover Page for this Agreement (the "State" or "CDOT"). Local Agency and the State agree to the terms and conditions in this Agreement.

2. TERM AND EFFECTIVE DATE

A. Effective Date

This Agreement shall not be valid or enforceable until the Effective Date, and Agreement Funds shall be expended within the dates shown in **Exhibit** C for each respective phase ("Phase Performance Period(s)"). The State shall not be bound by any provision of this Agreement before the Effective Date, and shall have no obligation to pay Local Agency for any Work performed or expense incurred before 1) the Effective Date of this original Agreement; 2) before the encumbering document for the respective phase *and* the official

Notice to Proceed for the respective phase; or 3) after the Final Phase Performance End Date, as shown in **Exhibit C**. Additionally, the State shall have no obligation to pay Local Agency for any Work performed or expense incurred after the Agreement Expiration Date or after required billing deadline specified in §7.B.i.e., the expiration of Multimodal Transportation Options Funding ("MMOF") if applicable, whichever is sooner. The State's obligation to pay Agreement Funds exclusive of MMOF will continue until the Agreement Expiration Date. If Agreement Funds expire before the Agreement Expiration Date, then no payments will be made after expiration of Agreement Funds.

B. Initial Term

The Parties' respective performances under this Agreement shall commence on the Agreement Effective Date shown on the Signature and Cover Page for this Agreement and shall terminate on November 16, 2031 as shown on the Signature and Cover Page for this Agreement, unless sooner terminated or further extended in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

C. Early Termination in the Public Interest

The State is entering into this Agreement to serve the public interest of the State of Colorado as determined by its Governor, General Assembly, or Courts. If this Agreement ceases to further the public interest of the State, the State, in its discretion, may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part. This subsection shall not apply to a termination of this Agreement by the State for breach by Local Agency, which shall be governed by **§14.A.i.**

i. Method and Content

The State shall notify Local Agency of such termination in accordance with **§16**. The notice shall specify the effective date of the termination and whether it affects all or a portion of this Agreement.

ii. Obligations and Rights

Upon receipt of a termination notice for termination in the public interest, Local Agency shall be subject to **§14.A.i.a**

iii. Payments

If the State terminates this Agreement in the public interest, the State shall pay Local Agency an amount equal to the percentage of the total reimbursement payable under this Agreement that corresponds to the percentage of Work satisfactorily completed and accepted, as determined by the State, less payments previously made. Additionally, if this Agreement is less than 60% completed, as determined by the State, the State may reimburse Local Agency for a portion of actual out-of-pocket expenses, not otherwise reimbursed under this Agreement, incurred by Local Agency which are directly attributable to the uncompleted portion of Local Agency's obligations, provided that the sum of any and all reimbursement shall not exceed the maximum amount payable to Local Agency hereunder.

3. AUTHORITY

Authority to enter into this Agreement exists in the law as follows:

A. Federal Authority

Pursuant to Title I, Subtitle A, of the "Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act" (FAST Act) of 2015, and to applicable provisions of Title 23 of the United States Code and implementing regulations at Title 23 of the Code of Federal Regulations, as may be amended, (collectively referred to hereinafter as the "Federal Provisions"), certain federal funds have been and are expected to continue to be allocated for transportation projects requested by Local Agency and eligible under the Surface Transportation Improvement Program that has been proposed by the State and approved by the Federal Highway Administration ("FHWA").

B. State Authority

Pursuant to CRS §43-1-223 and to applicable portions of the Federal Provisions, the State is responsible for the general administration and supervision of performance of projects in the Program, including the administration of federal funds for a Program project performed by a Local Agency under a contract with the State. This Agreement is executed under the authority of CRS §§29-1-203, 43-1-110; 43-1-116, 43-2-

101(4)(c) and 43-2-104.5.

4. PURPOSE

The purpose of this Agreement is to disburse Federal funds to the Local Agency pursuant to CDOT's Stewardship Agreement with the FHWA.

5. **DEFINITIONS**

The following terms shall be construed and interpreted as follows:

- A. "Agreement" means this agreement, including all attached Exhibits, all documents incorporated by reference, all referenced statutes, rules and cited authorities, and any future modifications thereto.
- B. "Agreement Funds" means the funds that have been appropriated, designated, encumbered, or otherwise made available for payment by the State under this Agreement.
- C. "Award" means an award by a Recipient to a Subrecipient funded in whole or in part by a Federal Award. The terms and conditions of the Federal Award flow down to the Award unless the terms and conditions of the Federal Award specifically indicate otherwise.
- D. "Budget" means the budget for the Work described in Exhibit C.
- E. "Business Day" means any day in which the State is open and conducting business, but shall not include Saturday, Sunday or any day on which the State observes one of the holidays listed in §24-11-101(1) C.R.S.
- F. "Consultant" means a professional engineer or designer hired by Local Agency to design the Work Product.
- G. "Contractor" means the general construction contractor hired by Local Agency to construct the Work.
- H. "CORA" means the Colorado Open Records Act, §§24-72-200.1 et. seq., C.R.S.
- I. "Effective Date" means the date on which this Agreement is approved and signed by the Colorado State Controller or designee, as shown on the Signature and Cover Page for this Agreement.
- J. "Evaluation" means the process of examining Local Agency's Work and rating it based on criteria established in §6, Exhibit A and Exhibit E.
- K. "Exhibits" means the following exhibits attached to this Agreement:
 - i. Exhibit A, Statement of Work.
 - ii. Exhibit B, Sample Option Letter.
 - iii. Exhibit C, Funding Provisions
 - iv. Exhibit D, Local Agency Resolution
 - v. Exhibit E, Local Agency Contract Administration Checklist
 - vi. Exhibit F, Certification for Federal-Aid Contracts
 - vii. Exhibit G, Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
 - viii. Exhibit H, Local Agency Procedures for Consultant Services
 - ix. Exhibit I, Federal-Aid Contract Provisions for Construction Contracts
 - x. Exhibit J, Additional Federal Requirements
 - xi. **Exhibit K**, The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA) Supplemental Federal Provisions
 - xii. Exhibit L, Sample Sub-Recipient Monitoring and Risk Assessment Form
 - xiii. **Exhibit M**, Supplemental Provisions for Federal Awards Subject to The Office of Management and Budget Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the "Uniform Guidance")
- L. "Federal Award" means an award of Federal financial assistance or a cost-reimbursement contract under the Federal Acquisition Requirements by a Federal Awarding Agency to a Recipient. "Federal Award" also means an agreement setting forth the terms and conditions of the Federal Award. The term does not include payments to a contractor or payments to an individual that is a beneficiary of a Federal program.
- M. "Federal Awarding Agency" means a Federal agency providing a Federal Award to a Recipient.

- N. **"FHWA"** means the Federal Highway Administration, which is one of the twelve administrations under the Office of the Secretary of Transportation at the U.S. Department of Transportation. FHWA provides stewardship over the construction, maintenance and preservation of the Nation's highways and tunnels. FHWA is the Federal Awarding Agency for the Federal Award which is the subject of this Agreement.
- O "Goods" means any movable material acquired, produced, or delivered by Local Agency as set forth in this Agreement and shall include any movable material acquired, produced, or delivered by Local Agency in connection with the Services.
- P. "Incident" means any accidental or deliberate event that results in or constitutes an imminent threat of the unauthorized access or disclosure of State Confidential Information or of the unauthorized modification, disruption, or destruction of any State Records.
- Q. "Initial Term" means the time period defined in §2.B
- R. "Multimodal Transportation Options Funding" or "MMOF" means money transferred from the general fund to the fund pursuant to C.R.S. §§24-75-219 (5)(a)(III) and (5)(b)(III) and any other money that the general assembly may appropriate or transfer to the fund.
- S. "Notice to Proceed" means the letter issued by the State to the Local Agency stating the date the Local Agency can begin work subject to the conditions of this Agreement.
- T. "OMB" means the Executive Office of the President, Office of Management and Budget.
- U. "Oversight" means the term as it is defined in the Stewardship Agreement between CDOT and the FHWA.
- V. "Party" means the State or Local Agency, and "Parties" means both the State and Local Agency.
- W. "PII" means personally identifiable information including, without limitation, any information maintained by the State about an individual that can be used to distinguish or trace an individual's identity, such as name, social security number, date and place of birth, mother's maiden name, or biometric records; and any other information that is linked or linkable to an individual, such as medical, educational, financial, and employment information. PII includes, but is not limited to, all information defined as personally identifiable information in §24-72-501 C.R.S.
- X. "Recipient" means the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) for this Federal Award.
- Y. "Services" means the services to be performed by Local Agency as set forth in this Agreement, and shall include any services to be rendered by Local Agency in connection with the Goods.
- Z. "State Confidential Information" means any and all State Records not subject to disclosure under CORA. State Confidential Information shall include, but is not limited to, PII and State personnel records not subject to disclosure under CORA.
- AA. "State Fiscal Rules" means the fiscal rules promulgated by the Colorado State Controller pursuant to §24-30-202(13)(a).
- BB. "State Fiscal Year" means a 12 month period beginning on July 1 of each calendar year and ending on June 30 of the following calendar year. If a single calendar year follows the term, then it means the State Fiscal Year ending in that calendar year.
- CC. "State Purchasing Director" means the position described in the Colorado Procurement Code and its implementing regulations.
- DD. "State Records" means any and all State data, information, and records, regardless of physical form, including, but not limited to, information subject to disclosure under CORA.
- EE. "Subcontractor" means third-parties, if any, engaged by Local Agency to aid in performance of the Work.
- FF. "**Subrecipient**" means a non-Federal entity that receives a sub-award from a Recipient to carry out part of a Federal program, but does not include an individual that is a beneficiary of such program. A Subrecipient may also be a recipient of other Federal Awards directly from a Federal Awarding Agency.
- GG. "Uniform Guidance" means the Office of Management and Budget Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, which supersedes requirements from OMB

Circulars A-21, A-87, A-110, A-122, A-89, A-102, and A-133, and the guidance in Circular A-50 on Single Audit Act follow-up.

- HH. "Work" means the delivery of the Goods and performance of the Services in compliance with CDOT's Local Agency Manual described in this Agreement.
- II. "Work Product" means the tangible and intangible results of the Work, whether finished or unfinished, including drafts. Work Product includes, but is not limited to, documents, text, software (including source code), research, reports, proposals, specifications, plans, notes, studies, data, images, photographs, negatives, pictures, drawings, designs, models, surveys, maps, materials, ideas, concepts, know-how, and any other results of the Work. "Work Product" does not include any material that was developed prior to the Effective Date that is used, without modification, in the performance of the Work.

Any other term used in this Agreement that is defined in an Exhibit shall be construed and interpreted as defined in that Exhibit.

6. STATEMENT OF WORK

Local Agency shall complete the Work as described in this Agreement and in accordance with the provisions of **Exhibit A**, and the Local Agency Manual. The State shall have no liability to compensate Local Agency for the delivery of any Goods or the performance of any Services that are not specifically set forth in this Agreement.

Work may be divided into multiple phases that have separate periods of performance. The State may not compensate for Work that Local Agency performs outside of its designated phase performance period. The performance period of phases, including, but not limited to Design, Construction, Right of Way, Utilities, or Environment phases, are identified in **Exhibit C**. The State may unilaterally modify **Exhibit C** from time to time, at its sole discretion, to extend the period of performance for a phase of Work authorized under this Agreement. To exercise this phase performance period extension option, the State will provide written notice to Local Agency in a form substantially equivalent to **Exhibit B**. The State's unilateral extension of phase performance periods will not amend or alter in any way the funding provisions or any other terms specified in this Agreement, notwithstanding the options listed under **§7.E**

- A. Local Agency Commitments
 - i. Design

If the Work includes preliminary design, final design, design work sheets, or special provisions and estimates (collectively referred to as the "Plans"), Local Agency shall ensure that it and its Contractors comply with and are responsible for satisfying the following requirements:

- a. Perform or provide the Plans to the extent required by the nature of the Work.
- b. Prepare final design in accordance with the requirements of the latest edition of the American Association of State Highway Transportation Officials (AASHTO) manual or other standard, such as the Uniform Building Code, as approved by the State.
- c. Prepare provisions and estimates in accordance with the most current version of the State's Roadway and Bridge Design Manuals and Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction or Local Agency specifications if approved by the State.
- d. Include details of any required detours in the Plans in order to prevent any interference of the construction Work and to protect the traveling public.
- e. Stamp the Plans as produced by a Colorado registered professional engineer.
- f. Provide final assembly of Plans and all other necessary documents.
- g. Ensure the Plans are accurate and complete.
- h. Make no further changes in the Plans following the award of the construction contract to Contractor unless agreed to in writing by the Parties. The Plans shall be considered final when approved in writing by CDOT, and when final, they will be deemed incorporated herein.
- ii. Local Agency Work

- a. Local Agency shall comply with the requirements of the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA)
 42 U.S.C. § 12101, et. seq., and applicable federal regulations and standards as contained in the document "ADA Accessibility Requirements in CDOT Transportation Projects".
- b. Local Agency shall afford the State ample opportunity to review the Plans and shall make any changes in the Plans that are directed by the State to comply with FHWA requirements.
- c. Local Agency may enter into a contract with a Consultant to perform all or any portion of the Plans and/or construction administration. Provided, however, if federal-aid funds are involved in the cost of such Work to be done by such Consultant, such Consultant contract (and the performance provision of the Plans under the contract) must comply with all applicable requirements of 23 C.F.R. Part 172 and with any procedures implementing those requirements as provided by the State, including those in Exhibit H. If Local Agency enters into a contract with a Consultant for the Work:
 - 1) Local Agency shall submit a certification that procurement of any Consultant contract complies with the requirements of 23 C.F.R. 172.5(1) prior to entering into such Consultant contract, subject to the State's approval. If not approved by the State, Local Agency shall not enter into such Consultant contract.
 - 2) Local Agency shall ensure that all changes in the Consultant contract have prior approval by the State and FHWA and that they are in writing. Immediately after the Consultant contract has been awarded, one copy of the executed Consultant contract and any amendments shall be submitted to the State.
 - 3) Local Agency shall require that all billings under the Consultant contract comply with the State's standardized billing format. Examples of the billing formats are available from the CDOT Agreements Office.
 - 4) Local Agency (and any Consultant) shall comply with 23 C.F.R. 172.5(b) and (d) and use the CDOT procedures described in **Exhibit H** to administer the Consultant contract.
 - 5) Local Agency may expedite any CDOT approval of its procurement process and/or Consultant contract by submitting a letter to CDOT from Local Agency's attorney/authorized representative certifying compliance with **Exhibit H** and 23 C.F.R. 172.5(b)and (d).
 - 6) Local Agency shall ensure that the Consultant contract complies with the requirements of 49 CFR 18.36(i) and contains the following language verbatim:
 - (a) The design work under this Agreement shall be compatible with the requirements of the contract between Local Agency and the State (which is incorporated herein by this reference) for the design/construction of the project. The State is an intended third-party beneficiary of this agreement for that purpose.
 - (b) Upon advertisement of the project work for construction, the consultant shall make available services as requested by the State to assist the State in the evaluation of construction and the resolution of construction problems that may arise during the construction of the project.
 - (c) The consultant shall review the construction Contractor's shop drawings for conformance with the contract documents and compliance with the provisions of the State's publication, Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, in connection with this work.
 - (d) The State, in its sole discretion, may review construction plans, special provisions and estimates and may require Local Agency to make such changes therein as the State determines necessary to comply with State and FHWA requirements.
- iii. Construction

If the Work includes construction, Local Agency shall perform the construction in accordance with the approved design plans and/or administer the construction in accordance with **Exhibit E**. Such administration shall include Work inspection and testing; approving sources of materials; performing required plant and shop inspections; documentation of contract payments, testing and inspection activities; preparing and approving pay estimates; preparing, approving and securing the funding for

contract modification orders and minor contract revisions; processing construction Contractor claims; construction supervision; and meeting the quality control requirements of the FHWA/CDOT Stewardship Agreement, as described in **Exhibit E**.

- a. The State may, after providing written notice of the reason for the suspension to Local Agency, suspend the Work, wholly or in part, due to the failure of Local Agency or its Contractor to correct conditions which are unsafe for workers or for such periods as the State may deem necessary due to unsuitable weather, or for conditions considered unsuitable for the prosecution of the Work, or for any other condition or reason deemed by the State to be in the public interest.
- b. Local Agency shall be responsible for the following:
 - Appointing a qualified professional engineer, licensed in the State of Colorado, as Local Agency Project Engineer (LAPE), to perform engineering administration. The LAPE shall administer the Work in accordance with this Agreement, the requirements of the construction contract and applicable State procedures, as defined in the CDOT Local Agency Manual (https://www.codot.gov/business/designsupport/bulletins_manuals/2006-local-agencymanual).
 - 2) For the construction Services, advertising the call for bids, following its approval by the State, and awarding the construction contract(s) to the lowest responsible bidder(s).
 - (a) All Local Agency's advertising and bid awards pursuant to this Agreement shall comply with applicable requirements of 23 U.S.C. §112 and 23 C.F.R. Parts 633 and 635 and C.R.S. § 24-92-101 et seq. Those requirements include, without limitation, that Local Agency and its Contractor(s) incorporate Form 1273 (Exhibit I) in its entirety, verbatim, into any subcontract(s) for Services as terms and conditions thereof, as required by 23 C.F.R. 633.102(e).
 - (b) Local Agency may accept or reject the proposal of the apparent low bidder for Work on which competitive bids have been received. Local Agency must accept or reject such bids within 3 working days after they are publicly opened.
 - (c) If Local Agency accepts bids and makes awards that exceed the amount of available Agreement Funds, Local Agency shall provide the additional funds necessary to complete the Work or not award such bids.
 - (d) The requirements of §6.A.iii.b.2 also apply to any advertising and bid awards made by the State.
 - (e) The State (and in some cases FHWA) must approve in advance all Force Account Construction, and Local Agency shall not initiate any such Services until the State issues a written Notice to Proceed.
- iv. Right of Way (ROW) and Acquisition/Relocation
 - a. If Local Agency purchases a ROW for a State highway, including areas of influence, Local Agency shall convey the ROW to CDOT promptly upon the completion of the project/construction.
 - b. Any acquisition/relocation activities shall comply with all applicable federal and State statutes and regulations, including but not limited to, the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended, the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies for Federal and Federally Assisted Programs, as amended (49 C.F.R. Part 24), CDOT's Right of Way Manual, and CDOT's Policy and Procedural Directives.
 - c. The Parties' respective responsibilities for ensuring compliance with acquisition, relocation and incidentals depend on the level of federal participation as detailed in CDOT's Right of Way Manual (located at http://www.codot.gov/business/manuals/right-of-way); however, the State always retains oversight responsibilities.
 - d. The Parties' respective responsibilities at each level of federal participation in CDOT's Right of Way Manual, and the State's reimbursement of Local Agency costs will be determined pursuant the following categories:

- 1) Right of way acquisition (3111) for federal participation and non-participation;
- 2) Relocation activities, if applicable (3109);
- 3) Right of way incidentals, if applicable (expenses incidental to acquisition/relocation of right of way 3114).
- v. Utilities

If necessary, Local Agency shall be responsible for obtaining the proper clearance or approval from any utility company that may become involved in the Work. Prior to the Work being advertised for bids, Local Agency shall certify in writing to the State that all such clearances have been obtained.

vi. Railroads

If the Work involves modification of a railroad company's facilities and such modification will be accomplished by the railroad company, Local Agency shall make timely application to the Public Utilities Commission ("PUC") requesting its order providing for the installation of the proposed improvements. Local Agency shall not proceed with that part of the Work before obtaining the PUC's order. Local Agency shall also establish contact with the railroad company involved for the purpose of complying with applicable provisions of 23 C.F.R. 646, subpart B, concerning federal-aid projects involving railroad facilities, and:

- a. Execute an agreement with the railroad company setting out what work is to be accomplished and the location(s) thereof, and which costs shall be eligible for federal participation.
- b. Obtain the railroad's detailed estimate of the cost of the Work.
- c. Establish future maintenance responsibilities for the proposed installation.
- d. Proscribe in the agreement the future use or dispositions of the proposed improvements in the event of abandonment or elimination of a grade crossing.
- e. Establish future repair and/or replacement responsibilities, as between the railroad company and the Local Agency, in the event of accidental destruction or damage to the installation.
- vii. Environmental Obligations

Local Agency shall perform all Work in accordance with the requirements of current federal and State environmental regulations, including the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA) as applicable.

viii. Maintenance Obligations

Local Agency shall maintain and operate the Work constructed under this Agreement at its own cost and expense during their useful life, in a manner satisfactory to the State and FHWA. Local Agency shall conduct such maintenance and operations in accordance with all applicable statutes, ordinances, and regulations pertaining to maintaining such improvements. The State and FHWA may make periodic inspections to verify that such improvements are being adequately maintained.

ix. Monitoring Obligations

Local Agency shall respond in a timely manner to and participate fully with the monitoring activities described in §7.F.vi.

- B. State's Commitments
 - i. The State will perform a final project inspection of the Work as a quality control/assurance activity. When all Work has been satisfactorily completed, the State will sign the FHWA Form 1212.
 - ii. Notwithstanding any consents or approvals given by the State for the Plans, the State shall not be liable or responsible in any manner for the structural design, details or construction of any Work constituting major structures designed by, or that are the responsibility of, Local Agency, as identified in **Exhibit E**.

7. PAYMENTS

A. Maximum Amount

Document Builder Generated Rev. 04/22/2020 Payments to Local Agency are limited to the unpaid, obligated balance of the Agreement Funds set forth in **Exhibit C**. The State shall not pay Local Agency any amount under this Agreement that exceeds the Agreement Maximum set forth in **Exhibit C**.

- B. Payment Procedures
 - i. Invoices and Payment
 - a. The State shall pay Local Agency in the amounts and in accordance with conditions set forth in **Exhibit C**.
 - b. Local Agency shall initiate payment requests by invoice to the State, in a form and manner approved by the State.
 - c. The State shall pay each invoice within 45 days following the State's receipt of that invoice, so long as the amount invoiced correctly represents Work completed by Local Agency and previously accepted by the State during the term that the invoice covers. If the State determines that the amount of any invoice is not correct, then Local Agency shall make all changes necessary to correct that invoice.
 - d. The acceptance of an invoice shall not constitute acceptance of any Work performed or deliverables provided under the Agreement.
 - e. If a project is funded in part by the State with MMOF there is an expiration date for the funds. The expiration date applies to grants and local funds used to match grants. In order to receive payment from the State or credit for the match, Work must be completed prior to the expiration date of funding and invoiced in compliance with C.R.S. §§24-75-102(a) and 24-30-202(11). Billing for this work must be submitted 30 days prior to the end of the State Fiscal Year which is June 30th.
 - ii. Interest

Amounts not paid by the State within 45 days after the State's acceptance of the invoice shall bear interest on the unpaid balance beginning on the 46th day at the rate of 1% per month, as required by §24-30-202(24)(a), C.R.S., until paid in full; provided, however, that interest shall not accrue on unpaid amounts that the State disputes in writing. Local Agency shall invoice the State separately for accrued interest on delinquent amounts, and the invoice shall reference the delinquent payment, the number of days interest to be paid and the interest rate.

iii. Payment Disputes

If Local Agency disputes any calculation, determination, or amount of any payment, Local Agency shall notify the State in writing of its dispute within 30 days following the earlier to occur of Local Agency's receipt of the payment or notification of the determination or calculation of the payment by the State. The State will review the information presented by Local Agency and may make changes to its determination based on this review. The calculation, determination, or payment amount that results from the State's review shall not be subject to additional dispute under this subsection. No payment subject to a dispute under this subsection shall be due until after the State has concluded its review, and the State shall not pay any interest on any amount during the period it is subject to dispute under this subsection.

- iv. Available Funds-Contingency-Termination
 - a. The State is prohibited by law from making commitments beyond the term of the current State Fiscal Year. Payment to Local Agency beyond the current State Fiscal Year is contingent on the appropriation and continuing availability of Agreement Funds in any subsequent year (as provided in the Colorado Special Provisions). If federal funds or funds from any other non-State funds constitute all or some of the Agreement Funds, the State's obligation to pay Local Agency shall be contingent upon such non-State funding continuing to be made available for payment. Payments to be made pursuant to this Agreement shall be made only from Agreement Funds, and the State's liability for such payments shall be limited to the amount remaining of such Agreement Funds. If State, federal or other funds are not appropriated, or otherwise become unavailable to fund this Agreement, the State may, upon written notice, terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, without incurring further liability. The State shall, however, remain obligated to pay for Services and Goods that are delivered and accepted prior to the effective date of notice of termination, and

this termination shall otherwise be treated as if this Agreement were terminated in the public interest as described in **§2.C**.

- b. If the agreement funds are terminated, the State can terminate the contract early. Payment due for work done to the date of termination will be processed in a manner consistent with **§2.C**.
- v. Erroneous Payments

The State may recover, at the State's discretion, payments made to Local Agency in error for any reason, including, but not limited to, overpayments or improper payments, and unexpended or excess funds received by Local Agency. The State may recover such payments by deduction from subsequent payments under this Agreement, deduction from any payment due under any other contracts, grants or agreements between the State and Local Agency, or by any other appropriate method for collecting debts owed to the State. The close out of a Federal Award does not affect the right of FHWA or the State to disallow costs and recover funds on the basis of a later audit or other review. Any cost disallowance recovery is to be made within the Record Retention Period (as defined below in **§9.A**.).

C. Matching Funds

Local Agency shall provide matching funds as provided in **§7.A**. and **Exhibit C**. Local Agency shall have raised the full amount of matching funds prior to the Effective Date and shall report to the State regarding the status of such funds upon request. Local Agency's obligation to pay all or any part of any matching funds, whether direct or contingent, only extend to funds duly and lawfully appropriated for the purposes of this Agreement by the authorized representatives of Local Agency and paid into Local Agency's treasury. Local Agency represents to the State that the amount designated "Local Agency Matching Funds" in **Exhibit C** has been legally appropriated for the purpose of this Agreement by its authorized representatives and paid into its treasury. Local Agency may evidence such obligation by an appropriate ordinance/resolution or other authority letter expressly authorizing Local Agency to enter into this Agreement and to expend its match share of the Work. A copy of any such ordinance/resolution or authority letter is attached hereto as **Exhibit D**. Local Agency does not by this Agreement irrevocably pledge present cash reserves for payments in future fiscal years, and this Agreement is not intended to create a multiple-fiscal year debt of Local Agency. Local Agency shall not pay or be liable for any claimed interest, late charges, fees, taxes, or penalties of any nature, except as required by Local Agency's laws or policies.

D. Reimbursement of Local Agency Costs

The State shall reimburse Local Agency's allowable costs, not exceeding the maximum total amount described in **Exhibit C** and §7. The applicable principles described in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 shall govern the State's obligation to reimburse all costs incurred by Local Agency and submitted to the State for reimbursement hereunder, and Local Agency shall comply with all such principles. The State shall reimburse Local Agency for the federal-aid share of properly documented costs related to the Work after review and approval thereof, subject to the provisions of this Agreement and **Exhibit C**. Local Agency costs for Work performed prior to the Effective Date shall not be reimbursed absent specific allowance of pre-award costs and indication that the Federal Award funding is retroactive. Local Agency costs for Work performed after any Performance Period End Date for a respective phase of the Work, is not reimbursable. Allowable costs shall be:

- i. Reasonable and necessary to accomplish the Work and for the Goods and Services provided.
- ii. Actual net cost to Local Agency (i.e. the price paid minus any items of value received by Local Agency that reduce the cost actually incurred).
- E. Unilateral Modification of Agreement Funds Budget by State Option Letter

The State may, at its discretion, issue an "Option Letter" to Local Agency to add or modify Work phases in the Work schedule in **Exhibit C** if such modifications do not increase total budgeted Agreement Funds. Such Option Letters shall amend and update **Exhibit C**, Sections 2 or 4 of the Table, and sub-sections B and C of the **Exhibit C**. Option Letters shall not be deemed valid until signed by the State Controller or an authorized delegate. Modification of **Exhibit C** by unilateral Option Letter is permitted only in the specific scenarios listed below. The State will exercise such options by providing Local Agency a fully executed Option Letter, in a form substantially equivalent to **Exhibit B**. Such Option Letters will be incorporated into this Agreement.

i. Option to Begin a Phase and/or Increase or Decrease the Encumbrance Amount

The State may require by Option Letter that Local Agency begin a new Work phase that may include Design, Construction, Environmental, Utilities, ROW Incidentals or Miscellaneous Work (but may not include Right of Way Acquisition/Relocation or Railroads) as detailed in **Exhibit A.** Such Option Letters may not modify the other terms and conditions stated in this Agreement, and must decrease the amount budgeted and encumbered for one or more other Work phases so that the total amount of budgeted Agreement Funds remains the same. The State may also issue a unilateral Option Letter to simultaneously increase and decrease the total encumbrance amount of two or more existing Work phases, as long as the total amount of budgeted Agreement Funds remains the same, replacing the original Agreement Funding exhibit (**Exhibit C**) with an updated **Exhibit C-1** (with subsequent exhibits labeled **C-2**, **C-3**, etc.).

ii. Option to Transfer Funds from One Phase to Another Phase.

The State may require or permit Local Agency to transfer Agreement Funds from one Work phase (Design, Construction, Environmental, Utilities, ROW Incidentals or Miscellaneous) to another phase as a result of changes to State, federal, and local match funding. In such case, the original funding exhibit (Exhibit C) will be replaced with an updated Exhibit C-1 (with subsequent exhibits labeled C-2, C-3, etc.) attached to the Option Letter. The Agreement Funds transferred from one Work phase to another are subject to the same terms and conditions stated in the original Agreement with the total budgeted Agreement Funds remaining the same. The State may unilaterally exercise this option by providing a fully executed Option Letter to Local Agency within thirty (30) days before the initial targeted start date of the Work phase, in a form substantially equivalent to Exhibit B.

iii. Option to Exercise Options i and ii.

The State may require Local Agency to add a Work phase as detailed in **Exhibit A**, and encumber and transfer Agreement Funds from one Work phase to another. The original funding exhibit (**Exhibit C**) in the original Agreement will be replaced with an updated **Exhibit C-1** (with subsequent exhibits labeled **C-2**, **C-3**, etc.) attached to the Option Letter. The addition of a Work phase and encumbrance and transfer of Agreement Funds are subject to the same terms and conditions stated in the original Agreement with the total budgeted Agreement Funds remaining the same. The State may unilaterally exercise this option by providing a fully executed Option Letter to Local Agency within 30 days before the initial targeted start date of the Work phase, in a form substantially equivalent to **Exhibit B**.

- iv. Option to Update a Work Phase Performance Period and/or modify information required under the OMB Uniform Guidance, as outlined in Exhibit C. The State may update any information contained in Exhibit C, Sections 2 and 4 of the Table, and sub-sections B and C of the Exhibit C.
- F. Accounting

Local Agency shall establish and maintain accounting systems in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards (a separate set of accounts, or as a separate and integral part of its current accounting scheme). Such accounting systems shall, at a minimum, provide as follows:

i. Local Agency Performing the Work

If Local Agency is performing the Work, it shall document all allowable costs, including any approved Services contributed by Local Agency or subcontractors, using payrolls, time records, invoices, contracts, vouchers, and other applicable records.

ii. Local Agency-Checks or Draws

Checks issued or draws made by Local Agency shall be made or drawn against properly signed vouchers detailing the purpose thereof. Local Agency shall keep on file all checks, payrolls, invoices, contracts, vouchers, orders, and other accounting documents in the office of Local Agency, clearly identified, readily accessible, and to the extent feasible, separate and apart from all other Work documents.

iii. State-Administrative Services

The State may perform any necessary administrative support services required hereunder. Local Agency shall reimburse the State for the costs of any such services from the budgeted Agreement Funds as

provided for in **Exhibit C**. If FHWA Agreement Funds are or become unavailable, or if Local Agency terminates this Agreement prior to the Work being approved by the State or otherwise completed, then all actual incurred costs of such services and assistance provided by the State shall be reimbursed to the State by Local Agency at its sole expense.

iv. Local Agency-Invoices

Local Agency's invoices shall describe in detail the reimbursable costs incurred by Local Agency for which it seeks reimbursement, the dates such costs were incurred and the amounts thereof, and Local Agency shall not submit more than one invoice per month.

v. Invoicing Within 60 Days

The State shall not be liable to reimburse Local Agency for any costs invoiced more than 60 days after the date on which the costs were incurred, including costs included in Local Agency's final invoice. The State may withhold final payment to Local Agency at the State's sole discretion until completion of final audit. Any costs incurred by Local Agency that are not allowable under 2 C.F.R. Part 200 shall be Local Agency's responsibility, and the State will deduct such disallowed costs from any payments due to Local Agency. The State will not reimburse costs for Work performed after the Performance Period End Date for a respective Work phase. The State will not reimburse costs for Work performed prior to Performance Period End Date, but for which an invoice is received more than 60 days after the Performance Period End Date.

vi. Risk Assessment & Monitoring

Pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 200.331(b), - CDOT will evaluate Local Agency's risk of noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, and terms and conditions of this Agreement. Local Agency shall complete a Risk Assessment Form (**Exhibit L**) when that may be requested by CDOT. The risk assessment is a quantitative and/or qualitative determination of the potential for Local Agency's non-compliance with the requirements of the Federal Award. The risk assessment will evaluate some or all of the following factors:

- Experience: Factors associated with the experience and history of the Subrecipient with the same or similar Federal Awards or grants.
- Monitoring/Audit: Factors associated with the results of the Subrecipient's previous audits or monitoring visits, including those performed by the Federal Awarding Agency, when the Subrecipient also receives direct federal funding. Include audit results if Subrecipient receives single audit, where the specific award being assessed was selected as a major program.
- Operation: Factors associated with the significant aspects of the Subrecipient's operations, in which failure could impact the Subrecipient's ability to perform and account for the contracted goods or services.
- Financial: Factors associated with the Subrecipient's financial stability and ability to comply with financial requirements of the Federal Award.
- Internal Controls: Factors associated with safeguarding assets and resources, deterring and detecting errors, fraud and theft, ensuring accuracy and completeness of accounting data, producing reliable and timely financial and management information, and ensuring adherence to its policies and plans.
- Impact: Factors associated with the potential impact of a Subrecipient's non-compliance to the overall success of the program objectives.
- Program Management: Factors associated with processes to manage critical personnel, approved written procedures, and knowledge of rules and regulations regarding federal-aid projects.

Following Local Agency's completion of the Risk Assessment Tool (**Exhibit L**), CDOT will determine the level of monitoring it will apply to Local Agency's performance of the Work. This risk assessment may be re-evaluated after CDOT begins performing monitoring activities.

G. Close Out

Local Agency shall close out this Award within 90 days after the Final Phase Performance End Date. Close out requires Local Agency's submission to the State of all deliverables defined in this Agreement, and Local Agency's final reimbursement request or invoice. The State will withhold 5% of allowable costs until all final documentation has been submitted and accepted by the State as substantially complete. If FHWA has not closed this Federal Award within 1 year and 90 days after the Final Phase Performance End Date due to Local Agency's failure to submit required documentation, then Local Agency may be prohibited from applying for new Federal Awards through the State until such documentation is submitted and accepted.

8. **REPORTING - NOTIFICATION**

A. Quarterly Reports

In addition to any reports required pursuant to **§19** or pursuant to any exhibit, for any contract having a term longer than 3 months, Local Agency shall submit, on a quarterly basis, a written report specifying progress made for each specified performance measure and standard in this Agreement. Such progress report shall be in accordance with the procedures developed and prescribed by the State. Progress reports shall be submitted to the State not later than five (5) Business Days following the end of each calendar quarter or at such time as otherwise specified by the State.

B. Litigation Reporting

If Local Agency is served with a pleading or other document in connection with an action before a court or other administrative decision making body, and such pleading or document relates to this Agreement or may affect Local Agency's ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement, Local Agency shall, within 10 days after being served, notify the State of such action and deliver copies of such pleading or document to the State's principal representative identified in **§16**.

C. Performance and Final Status

Local Agency shall submit all financial, performance and other reports to the State no later than 60 calendar days after the Final Phase Performance End Date or sooner termination of this Agreement, containing an Evaluation of Subrecipient's performance and the final status of Subrecipient's obligations hereunder.

D. Violations Reporting

Local Agency must disclose, in a timely manner, in writing to the State and FHWA, all violations of federal or State criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting the Federal Award. Penalties for noncompliance may include suspension or debarment (2 CFR Part 180 and 31 U.S.C. 3321).

9. LOCAL AGENCY RECORDS

A. Maintenance

Local Agency shall make, keep, maintain, and allow inspection and monitoring by the State of a complete file of all records, documents, communications, notes and other written materials, electronic media files, and communications, pertaining in any manner to the Work or the delivery of Services (including, but not limited to the operation of programs) or Goods hereunder. Local Agency shall maintain such records for a period (the "Record Retention Period") of three years following the date of submission to the State of the final expenditure report, or if this Award is renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of each quarterly or annual report, respectively. If any litigation, claim, or audit related to this Award starts before expiration of the Record Retention Period, the Record Retention Period shall extend until all litigation, claims, or audit findings have been resolved and final action taken by the State or Federal Awarding Agency. The Federal Awarding Agency, a cognizant agency for audit, oversight or indirect costs, and the State, may notify Local Agency in writing that the Record Retention Period shall extended. For records for real property and equipment, the Record Retention Period shall extend three years following final disposition of such property.

B. Inspection

Local Agency shall permit the State to audit, inspect, examine, excerpt, copy, and transcribe Local Agency Records during the Record Retention Period. Local Agency shall make Local Agency Records available during normal business hours at Local Agency's office or place of business, or at other mutually agreed upon

times or locations, upon no fewer than 2 Business Days' notice from the State, unless the State determines that a shorter period of notice, or no notice, is necessary to protect the interests of the State.

C. Monitoring

The State will monitor Local Agency's performance of its obligations under this Agreement using procedures as determined by the State. The State shall monitor Local Agency's performance in a manner that does not unduly interfere with Local Agency's performance of the Work.

D. Final Audit Report

Local Agency shall promptly submit to the State a copy of any final audit report of an audit performed on Local Agency's records that relates to or affects this Agreement or the Work, whether the audit is conducted by Local Agency or a third party.

10. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION-STATE RECORDS

A. Confidentiality

Local Agency shall hold and maintain, and cause all Subcontractors to hold and maintain, any and all State Records that the State provides or makes available to Local Agency for the sole and exclusive benefit of the State, unless those State Records are otherwise publicly available at the time of disclosure or are subject to disclosure by Local Agency under CORA. Local Agency shall not, without prior written approval of the State, use for Local Agency's own benefit, publish, copy, or otherwise disclose to any third party, or permit the use by any third party for its benefit or to the detriment of the State, any State Records, except as otherwise stated in this Agreement. Local Agency shall provide for the security of all State Confidential Information in accordance with all policies promulgated by the Colorado Office of Information Security and all applicable laws, rules, policies, publications, and guidelines. Local Agency shall immediately forward any request or demand for State Records to the State's principal representative.

B. Other Entity Access and Nondisclosure Agreements

Local Agency may provide State Records to its agents, employees, assigns and Subcontractors as necessary to perform the Work, but shall restrict access to State Confidential Information to those agents, employees, assigns and Subcontractors who require access to perform their obligations under this Agreement. Local Agency shall ensure all such agents, employees, assigns, and Subcontractors sign nondisclosure agreements with provisions at least as protective as those in this Agreement, and that the nondisclosure agreements are in force at all times the agent, employee, assign or Subcontractor has access to any State Confidential Information. Local Agency shall provide copies of those signed nondisclosure agreements to the State upon request.

C. Use, Security, and Retention

Local Agency shall use, hold and maintain State Confidential Information in compliance with any and all applicable laws and regulations in facilities located within the United States, and shall maintain a secure environment that ensures confidentiality of all State Confidential Information wherever located. Local Agency shall provide the State with access, subject to Local Agency's reasonable security requirements, for purposes of inspecting and monitoring access and use of State Confidential Information and evaluating security control effectiveness. Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, Local Agency shall return State Records provided to Local Agency or destroy such State Records and certify to the State that it has done so, as directed by the State. If Local Agency is prevented by law or regulation from returning or destroying State Confidential Information, Local Agency warrants it will guarantee the confidentiality of, and cease to use, such State Confidential Information.

D. Incident Notice and Remediation

If Local Agency becomes aware of any Incident, it shall notify the State immediately and cooperate with the State regarding recovery, remediation, and the necessity to involve law enforcement, as determined by the State. Unless Local Agency can establish that none of Local Agency or any of its agents, employees, assigns or Subcontractors are the cause or source of the Incident, Local Agency shall be responsible for the cost of notifying each person who may have been impacted by the Incident. After an Incident, Local Agency shall take steps to reduce the risk of incurring a similar type of Incident in the future as directed by the State, which
may include, but is not limited to, developing and implementing a remediation plan that is approved by the State at no additional cost to the State.

11. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

A. Actual Conflicts of Interest

Local Agency shall not engage in any business or activities, or maintain any relationships that conflict in any way with the full performance of the obligations of Local Agency under this Agreement. Such a conflict of interest would arise when a Local Agency or Subcontractor's employee, officer or agent were to offer or provide any tangible personal benefit to an employee of the State, or any member of his or her immediate family or his or her partner, related to the award of, entry into or management or oversight of this Agreement. Officers, employees and agents of Local Agency may neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from contractors or parties to subcontracts.

B. Apparent Conflicts of Interest

Local Agency acknowledges that, with respect to this Agreement, even the appearance of a conflict of interest shall be harmful to the State's interests. Absent the State's prior written approval, Local Agency shall refrain from any practices, activities or relationships that reasonably appear to be in conflict with the full performance of Local Agency's obligations under this Agreement.

C. Disclosure to the State

If a conflict or the appearance of a conflict arises, or if Local Agency is uncertain whether a conflict or the appearance of a conflict has arisen, Local Agency shall submit to the State a disclosure statement setting forth the relevant details for the State's consideration. Failure to promptly submit a disclosure statement or to follow the State's direction in regard to the actual or apparent conflict constitutes a breach of this Agreement.

12. INSURANCE

Local Agency shall obtain and maintain, and ensure that each Subcontractor shall obtain and maintain, insurance as specified in this section at all times during the term of this Agreement. All insurance policies required by this Agreement that are not provided through self-insurance shall be issued by insurance companies with an AM Best rating of A-VIII or better.

A. Local Agency Insurance

Local Agency is a "public entity" within the meaning of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, §24-10-101, *et seq.*, C.R.S. (the "GIA") and shall maintain at all times during the term of this Agreement such liability insurance, by commercial policy or self-insurance, as is necessary to meet its liabilities under the GIA.

B. Subcontractor Requirements

Local Agency shall ensure that each Subcontractor that is a public entity within the meaning of the GIA, maintains at all times during the terms of this Agreement, such liability insurance, by commercial policy or self-insurance, as is necessary to meet the Subcontractor's obligations under the GIA. Local Agency shall ensure that each Subcontractor that is not a public entity within the meaning of the GIA, maintains at all times during the terms of this Agreement all of the following insurance policies:

i. Workers' Compensation

Workers' compensation insurance as required by state statute, and employers' liability insurance covering all Local Agency or Subcontractor employees acting within the course and scope of their employment.

ii. General Liability

Commercial general liability insurance written on an Insurance Services Office occurrence form, covering premises operations, fire damage, independent contractors, products and completed operations, blanket contractual liability, personal injury, and advertising liability with minimum limits as follows:

- a. \$1,000,000 each occurrence;
- b. \$1,000,000 general aggregate;

- c. \$1,000,000 products and completed operations aggregate; and
- d. \$50,000 any 1 fire.
- iii. Automobile Liability

Automobile liability insurance covering any auto (including owned, hired and non-owned autos) with a minimum limit of \$1,000,000 each accident combined single limit.

iv. Protected Information

Liability insurance covering all loss of State Confidential Information, such as PII, PHI, PCI, Tax Information, and CJI, and claims based on alleged violations of privacy rights through improper use or disclosure of protected information with minimum limits as follows:

- a. \$1,000,000 each occurrence; and
- b. \$2,000,000 general aggregate.
- v. Professional Liability Insurance

Professional liability insurance covering any damages caused by an error, omission or any negligent act with minimum limits as follows:

- a. \$1,000,000 each occurrence; and
- b. \$1,000,000 general aggregate.
- vi. Crime Insurance

Crime insurance including employee dishonesty coverage with minimum limits as follows:

- a. \$1,000,000 each occurrence; and
- b. \$1,000,000 general aggregate.
- C. Additional Insured

The State shall be named as additional insured on all commercial general liability policies (leases and construction contracts require additional insured coverage for completed operations) required of Local Agency and Subcontractors. In the event of cancellation of any commercial general liability policy, the carrier shall provide at least 10 days prior written notice to CDOT.

D. Primacy of Coverage

Coverage required of Local Agency and each Subcontractor shall be primary over any insurance or selfinsurance program carried by Local Agency or the State.

E. Cancellation

All commercial insurance policies shall include provisions preventing cancellation or non-renewal, except for cancellation based on non-payment of premiums, without at least 30 days prior notice to Local Agency and Local Agency shall forward such notice to the State in accordance with **§16** within 7 days of Local Agency's receipt of such notice.

F. Subrogation Waiver

All commercial insurance policies secured or maintained by Local Agency or its Subcontractors in relation to this Agreement shall include clauses stating that each carrier shall waive all rights of recovery under subrogation or otherwise against Local Agency or the State, its agencies, institutions, organizations, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers.

G. Certificates

For each commercial insurance plan provided by Local Agency under this Agreement, Local Agency shall provide to the State certificates evidencing Local Agency's insurance coverage required in this Agreement within 7 Business Days following the Effective Date. Local Agency shall provide to the State certificates evidencing Subcontractor insurance coverage required under this Agreement within 7 Business Days following the Effective Date, agency's subcontract is not in effect as of the Effective Date.

Date, Local Agency shall provide to the State certificates showing Subcontractor insurance coverage required under this Agreement within 7 Business Days following Local Agency's execution of the subcontract. No later than 15 days before the expiration date of Local Agency's or any Subcontractor's coverage, Local Agency shall deliver to the State certificates of insurance evidencing renewals of coverage. At any other time during the term of this Agreement, upon request by the State, Local Agency shall, within 7 Business Days following the request by the State, supply to the State evidence satisfactory to the State of compliance with the provisions of this **§12**.

13. BREACH

A. Defined

The failure of a Party to perform any of its obligations in accordance with this Agreement, in whole or in part or in a timely or satisfactory manner, shall be a breach. The institution of proceedings under any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar law, by or against Local Agency, or the appointment of a receiver or similar officer for Local Agency or any of its property, which is not vacated or fully stayed within 30 days after the institution of such proceeding, shall also constitute a breach.

B. Notice and Cure Period

In the event of a breach, the aggrieved Party shall give written notice of breach to the other Party. If the notified Party does not cure the breach, at its sole expense, within 30 days after the delivery of written notice, the Party may exercise any of the remedies as described in **§14** for that Party. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the State, in its discretion, need not provide notice or a cure period and may immediately terminate this Agreement in whole or in part or institute any other remedy in the Agreement in order to protect the public interest of the State.

14. REMEDIES

A. State's Remedies

If Local Agency is in breach under any provision of this Agreement and fails to cure such breach, the State, following the notice and cure period set forth in **§13.B**, shall have all of the remedies listed in this **§14.A.** in addition to all other remedies set forth in this Agreement or at law. The State may exercise any or all of the remedies available to it, in its discretion, concurrently or consecutively.

i. Termination for Breach

In the event of Local Agency's uncured breach, the State may terminate this entire Agreement or any part of this Agreement. Local Agency shall continue performance of this Agreement to the extent not terminated, if any.

a. Obligations and Rights

To the extent specified in any termination notice, Local Agency shall not incur further obligations or render further performance past the effective date of such notice, and shall terminate outstanding orders and subcontracts with third parties. However, Local Agency shall complete and deliver to the State all Work not cancelled by the termination notice, and may incur obligations as necessary to do so within this Agreement's terms. At the request of the State, Local Agency shall assign to the State all of Local Agency's rights, title, and interest in and to such terminated orders or subcontracts. Upon termination, Local Agency shall take timely, reasonable and necessary action to protect and preserve property in the possession of Local Agency but in which the State has an interest. At the State's request, Local Agency shall return materials owned by the State in Local Agency's possession at the time of any termination. Local Agency shall deliver all completed Work Product and all Work Product that was in the process of completion to the State at the State's request.

b. Payments

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the State shall only pay Local Agency for accepted Work received as of the date of termination. If, after termination by the State, the State agrees that Local Agency was not in breach or that Local Agency's action or inaction was excusable, such termination shall be treated as a termination in the public interest, and the rights and obligations of the Parties shall be as if this Agreement had been terminated in the public interest under **§2.C**.

c. Damages and Withholding

Notwithstanding any other remedial action by the State, Local Agency shall remain liable to the State for any damages sustained by the State in connection with any breach by Local Agency, and the State may withhold payment to Local Agency for the purpose of mitigating the State's damages until such time as the exact amount of damages due to the State from Local Agency is determined. The State may withhold any amount that may be due Local Agency as the State deems necessary to protect the State against loss including, without limitation, loss as a result of outstanding liens and excess costs incurred by the State in procuring from third parties replacement Work as cover.

ii. Remedies Not Involving Termination

The State, in its discretion, may exercise one or more of the following additional remedies:

a. Suspend Performance

Suspend Local Agency's performance with respect to all or any portion of the Work pending corrective action as specified by the State without entitling Local Agency to an adjustment in price or cost or an adjustment in the performance schedule. Local Agency shall promptly cease performing Work and incurring costs in accordance with the State's directive, and the State shall not be liable for costs incurred by Local Agency after the suspension of performance.

b. Withhold Payment

Withhold payment to Local Agency until Local Agency corrects its Work.

c. Deny Payment

Deny payment for Work not performed, or that due to Local Agency's actions or inactions, cannot be performed or if they were performed are reasonably of no value to the state; provided, that any denial of payment shall be equal to the value of the obligations not performed.

d. Removal

Demand immediate removal from the Work of any of Local Agency's employees, agents, or Subcontractors from the Work whom the State deems incompetent, careless, insubordinate, unsuitable, or otherwise unacceptable or whose continued relation to this Agreement is deemed by the State to be contrary to the public interest or the State's best interest.

e. Intellectual Property

If any Work infringes a patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret, or other intellectual property right, Local Agency shall, as approved by the State (a) secure that right to use such Work for the State or Local Agency; (b) replace the Work with noninfringing Work or modify the Work so that it becomes noninfringing; or, (c) remove any infringing Work and refund the amount paid for such Work to the State.

B. Local Agency's Remedies

If the State is in breach of any provision of this Agreement and does not cure such breach, Local Agency, following the notice and cure period in **§13.B** and the dispute resolution process in **§15** shall have all remedies available at law and equity.

15. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

A. Initial Resolution

Except as herein specifically provided otherwise, disputes concerning the performance of this Agreement which cannot be resolved by the designated Agreement representatives shall be referred in writing to a senior departmental management staff member designated by the State and a senior manager designated by Local Agency for resolution.

B. Resolution of Controversies

If the initial resolution described in §15.A fails to resolve the dispute within 10 Business Days, Contractor shall submit any alleged breach of this Contract by the State to the Procurement Official of CDOT as

described in §24-101-301(30), C.R.S. for resolution in accordance with the provisions of §§24-106-109, 24-109-101.1, 24-109-101.5, 24-109-106, 24-109-107, 24-109-201 through 24-109-206, and 24-109-501 through 24-109-505, C.R.S., (the "Resolution Statutes"), except that if Contractor wishes to challenge any decision rendered by the Procurement Official, Contractor's challenge shall be an appeal to the executive director of the Department of Personnel and Administration, or their delegate, under the Resolution Statutes before Contractor pursues any further action as permitted by such statutes. Except as otherwise stated in this Section, all requirements of the Resolution Statutes shall apply including, without limitation, time limitations.

16. NOTICES AND REPRESENTATIVES

Each individual identified below shall be the principal representative of the designating Party. All notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be delivered (i) by hand with receipt required, (ii) by certified or registered mail to such Party's principal representative at the address set forth below or (iii) as an email with read receipt requested to the principal representative at the email address, if any, set forth below. If a Party delivers a notice to another through email and the email is undeliverable, then, unless the Party has been provided with an alternate email contact, the Party delivering the notice shall deliver the notice by hand with receipt required or by certified or registered mail to such Party's principal representative at the address set forth below. Either Party may change its principal representative or principal representative contact information by notice submitted in accordance with this §16 without a formal amendment to this Agreement. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, notices shall be effective upon delivery of the written notice.

For the State

Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT)
Jake Oneal, Project Manager
CDOT Region 4
10601 W. 10th Street
Greeley, CO 80634
970-350-2143
jake.oneal@state.co.us

For the Local Agency

City of Greeley
Scott Logan, City Traffic Engineer
1300 A Street, Building H
Greeley, CO 80631
970-350-9555
Scott.Logan@greeleygov.com

17. RIGHTS IN WORK PRODUCT AND OTHER INFORMATION

A. Work Product

Local Agency assigns to the State and its successors and assigns, the entire right, title, and interest in and to all causes of action, either in law or in equity, for past, present, or future infringement of intellectual property rights related to the Work Product and all works based on, derived from, or incorporating the Work Product. Whether or not Local Agency is under contract with the State at the time, Local Agency shall execute applications, assignments, and other documents, and shall render all other reasonable assistance requested by the State, to enable the State to secure patents, copyrights, licenses and other intellectual property rights related to the Work Product. The Parties intend the Work Product to be works made for hire.

i. Copyrights

To the extent that the Work Product (or any portion of the Work Product) would not be considered works made for hire under applicable law, Local Agency hereby assigns to the State, the entire right, title, and interest in and to copyrights in all Work Product and all works based upon, derived from, or incorporating the Work Product; all copyright applications, registrations, extensions, or renewals relating to all Work Product and all works based upon, derived from, or incorporating the Work Product; and all works based upon, derived from, or incorporating the Work Product; and all moral rights

or similar rights with respect to the Work Product throughout the world. To the extent that Local Agency cannot make any of the assignments required by this section, Local Agency hereby grants to the State a perpetual, irrevocable, royalty-free license to use, modify, copy, publish, display, perform, transfer, distribute, sell, and create derivative works of the Work Product and all works based upon, derived from, or incorporating the Work Product by all means and methods and in any format now known or invented in the future. The State may assign and license its rights under this license.

ii. Patents

In addition, Local Agency grants to the State (and to recipients of Work Product distributed by or on behalf of the State) a perpetual, worldwide, no-charge, royalty-free, irrevocable patent license to make, have made, use, distribute, sell, offer for sale, import, transfer, and otherwise utilize, operate, modify and propagate the contents of the Work Product. Such license applies only to those patent claims licensable by Local Agency that are necessarily infringed by the Work Product alone, or by the combination of the Work Product with anything else used by the State.

B. Exclusive Property of the State

Except to the extent specifically provided elsewhere in this Agreement, any pre-existing State Records, State software, research, reports, studies, photographs, negatives, or other documents, drawings, models, materials, data, and information shall be the exclusive property of the State (collectively, "State Materials"). Local Agency shall not use, willingly allow, cause or permit Work Product or State Materials to be used for any purpose other than the performance of Local Agency's obligations in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the State. Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, Local Agency shall provide all Work Product and State Materials to the State in a form and manner as directed by the State.

18. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY

Liability for claims for injuries to persons or property arising from the negligence of the Parties, their departments, boards, commissions committees, bureaus, offices, employees and officials shall be controlled and limited by the provisions of the GIA; the Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. Pt. VI, Ch. 171 and 28 U.S.C. 1346(b), and the State's risk management statutes, §§24-30-1501, *et seq.* C.R.S.

19. STATEWIDE CONTRACT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

If the maximum amount payable to Local Agency under this Agreement is \$100,000 or greater, either on the Effective Date or at anytime thereafter, this **§19** shall apply. Local Agency agrees to be governed by and comply with the provisions of §24-102-205, §24-102-206, §24-103-601, §24-103.5-101 and §24-105-102 C.R.S. regarding the monitoring of vendor performance and the reporting of contract performance information in the State's contract management system ("Contract Management System" or "CMS"). Local Agency's performance shall be subject to evaluation and review in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Colorado statutes governing CMS, and State Fiscal Rules and State Controller policies.

20. GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. Assignment

Local Agency's rights and obligations under this Agreement are personal and may not be transferred or assigned without the prior, written consent of the State. Any attempt at assignment or transfer without such consent shall be void. Any assignment or transfer of Local Agency's rights and obligations approved by the State shall be subject to the provisions of this Agreement

B. Subcontracts

Local Agency shall not enter into any subcontract in connection with its obligations under this Agreement without the prior, written approval of the State. Local Agency shall submit to the State a copy of each such subcontract upon request by the State. All subcontracts entered into by Local Agency in connection with this Agreement shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations, shall provide that they are governed by the laws of the State of Colorado, and shall be subject to all provisions of this Agreement.

C. Binding Effect

Except as otherwise provided in **§20.A.** all provisions of this Agreement, including the benefits and burdens, shall extend to and be binding upon the Parties' respective successors and assigns.

D. Authority

Each Party represents and warrants to the other that the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the performance of such Party's obligations have been duly authorized.

E. Captions and References

The captions and headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only, and shall not be used to interpret, define, or limit its provisions. All references in this Agreement to sections (whether spelled out or using the § symbol), subsections, exhibits or other attachments, are references to sections, subsections, exhibits or other attachments are preferences to sections, subsections, exhibits or other attachments are preferences to sections.

F. Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed in multiple, identical, original counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the same agreement.

G. Entire Understanding

This Agreement represents the complete integration of all understandings between the Parties related to the Work, and all prior representations and understandings related to the Work, oral or written, are merged into this Agreement. Prior or contemporaneous additions, deletions, or other changes to this Agreement shall not have any force or effect whatsoever, unless embodied herein.

H. Jurisdiction and Venue

All suits or actions related to this Agreement shall be filed and proceedings held in the State of Colorado and exclusive venue shall be in the City and County of Denver.

I. Modification

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any modification to this Agreement shall only be effective if agreed to in a formal amendment to this Agreement, properly executed and approved in accordance with applicable Colorado State law and State Fiscal Rules. Modifications permitted under this Agreement, other than contract amendments, shall conform to the policies promulgated by the Colorado State Controller.

J. Statutes, Regulations, Fiscal Rules, and Other Authority.

Any reference in this Agreement to a statute, regulation, State Fiscal Rule, fiscal policy or other authority shall be interpreted to refer to such authority then current, as may have been changed or amended since the Effective Date of this Agreement.

K. Order of Precedence

In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this Agreement and any exhibits or attachment such conflict or inconsistency shall be resolved by reference to the documents in the following order of priority:

- i. Colorado Special Provisions in the main body of this Agreement.
- ii. The provisions of the other sections of the main body of this Agreement.
- iii Exhibit A, Statement of Work.
- iv. Exhibit D, Local Agency Resolution.
- v. Exhibit C, Funding Provisions.
- vi. Exhibit B, Sample Option Letter.
- vii. Exhibit E, Local Agency Contract Administration Checklist.

viii. Other exhibits in descending order of their attachment.

L. Severability

The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect, provided that the Parties can continue to perform their obligations under this Agreement in accordance with the intent of the Agreement.

M. Survival of Certain Agreement Terms

Page 22 of <u>26</u>

Any provision of this Agreement that imposes an obligation on a Party after termination or expiration of the Agreement shall survive the termination or expiration of the Agreement and shall be enforceable by the other Party.

N. Third Party Beneficiaries

Except for the Parties' respective successors and assigns described in **§20.C**, this Agreement does not and is not intended to confer any rights or remedies upon any person or entity other than the Parties. Enforcement of this Agreement and all rights and obligations hereunder are reserved solely to the Parties. Any services or benefits which third parties receive as a result of this Agreement are incidental to the Agreement, and do not create any rights for such third parties.

O. Waiver

A Party's failure or delay in exercising any right, power, or privilege under this Agreement, whether explicit or by lack of enforcement, shall not operate as a waiver, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, power, or privilege preclude any other or further exercise of such right, power, or privilege.

P. CORA Disclosure

To the extent not prohibited by federal law, this Agreement and the performance measures and standards required under §24-103.5-101 C.R.S., if any, are subject to public release through the CORA.

Q. Standard and Manner of Performance

Local Agency shall perform its obligations under this Agreement in accordance with the highest standards of care, skill and diligence in Local Agency's industry, trade, or profession.

R. Licenses, Permits, and Other Authorizations.

Local Agency shall secure, prior to the Effective Date, and maintain at all times during the term of this Agreement, at its sole expense, all licenses, certifications, permits, and other authorizations required to perform its obligations under this Agreement, and shall ensure that all employees, agents and Subcontractors secure and maintain at all times during the term of their employment, agency or subcontract, all license, certifications, permits and other authorizations required to perform their obligations in relation to this Agreement.

21. COLORADO SPECIAL PROVISIONS (COLORADO FISCAL RULE 3-3)

These Special Provisions apply to all contracts except where noted in italics.

A. STATUTORY APPROVAL. §24-30-202(1), C.R.S.

This Contract shall not be valid until it has been approved by the Colorado State Controller or designee. If this Contract is for a Major Information Technology Project, as defined in §24-37.5-102(2.6), then this Contract shall not be valid until it has been approved by the State's Chief Information Officer or designee.

B. FUND AVAILABILITY. §24-30-202(5.5), C.R.S.

Financial obligations of the State payable after the current State Fiscal Year are contingent upon funds for that purpose being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made available.

C. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY.

Liability for claims for injuries to persons or property arising from the negligence of the State, its departments, boards, commissions committees, bureaus, offices, employees and officials shall be controlled and limited by the provisions of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, §24-10-101, et seq., C.R.S.; the Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. Pt. VI, Ch. 171 and 28 U.S.C. 1346(b), and the State's risk management statutes, §§24-30-1501, et seq. C.R.S. No term or condition of this Contract shall be construed or interpreted as a waiver, express or implied, of any of the immunities, rights, benefits, protections, or other provisions, contained in these statutes.

D. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Contractor shall perform its duties hereunder as an independent contractor and not as an employee. Neither Contractor nor any agent or employee of Contractor shall be deemed to be an agent or employee of the State.

Contractor shall not have authorization, express or implied, to bind the State to any agreement, liability or understanding, except as expressly set forth herein. Contractor and its employees and agents are not entitled to unemployment insurance or workers compensation benefits through the State and the State shall not pay for or otherwise provide such coverage for Contractor or any of its agents or employees. Contractor shall pay when due all applicable employment taxes and income taxes and local head taxes incurred pursuant to this Contract. Contractor shall (i) provide and keep in force workers' compensation and unemployment compensation insurance in the amounts required by law, (ii) provide proof thereof when requested by the State, and (iii) be solely responsible for its acts and those of its employees and agents.

E. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW.

Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal and State laws, rules, and regulations in effect or hereafter established, including, without limitation, laws applicable to discrimination and unfair employment practices.

F. CHOICE OF LAW, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE.

Colorado law, and rules and regulations issued pursuant thereto, shall be applied in the interpretation, execution, and enforcement of this Contract. Any provision included or incorporated herein by reference which conflicts with said laws, rules, and regulations shall be null and void. All suits or actions related to this Contract shall be filed and proceedings held in the State of Colorado and exclusive venue shall be in the City and County of Denver.

G. PROHIBITED TERMS.

Any term included in this Contract that requires the State to indemnify or hold Contractor harmless; requires the State to agree to binding arbitration; limits Contractor's liability for damages resulting from death, bodily injury, or damage to tangible property; or that conflicts with this provision in any way shall be void ab initio. Nothing in this Contract shall be construed as a waiver of any provision of §24-106-109 C.R.S. Any term included in this Contract that limits Contractor's liability that is not void under this section shall apply only in excess of any insurance to be maintained under this Contract, and no insurance policy shall be interpreted as being subject to any limitations of liability of this Contract.

H. SOFTWARE PIRACY PROHIBITION.

State or other public funds payable under this Contract shall not be used for the acquisition, operation, or maintenance of computer software in violation of federal copyright laws or applicable licensing restrictions. Contractor hereby certifies and warrants that, during the term of this Contract and any extensions, Contractor has and shall maintain in place appropriate systems and controls to prevent such improper use of public funds. If the State determines that Contractor is in violation of this provision, the State may exercise any remedy available at law or in equity or under this Contract, including, without limitation, immediate termination of this Contract and any remedy consistent with federal copyright laws or applicable licensing restrictions.

I. EMPLOYEE FINANCIAL INTEREST/CONFLICT OF INTEREST. §§24-18-201 and 24-50-507, C.R.S.

The signatories aver that to their knowledge, no employee of the State has any personal or beneficial interest whatsoever in the service or property described in this Contract. Contractor has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Contractor's services and Contractor shall not employ any person having such known interests.

J. VENDOR OFFSET AND ERRONEOUS PAYMENTS. §§24-30-202(1) and 24-30-202.4, C.R.S.

[Not applicable to intergovernmental agreements] Subject to §24-30-202.4(3.5), C.R.S., the State Controller may withhold payment under the State's vendor offset intercept system for debts owed to State agencies for: (i) unpaid child support debts or child support arrearages; (ii) unpaid balances of tax, accrued interest, or other charges specified in §§39-21-101, *et seq.*, C.R.S.; (iii) unpaid loans due to the Student Loan Division of the Department of Higher Education; (iv) amounts required to be paid to the Unemployment Compensation Fund; and (v) other unpaid debts owing to the State as a result of final agency determination or judicial action. The State may also recover, at the State's discretion, payments made to Contractor in error for any reason, including, but not limited to, overpayments or improper payments, and unexpended or excess funds received by Contractor by deduction from subsequent payments under this Contract, deduction from any payment due under any other contracts, grants or agreements between the State and Contractor, or by any other appropriate method for collecting debts owed to the State.

K. PUBLIC CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES. §§8-17.5-101, et seq., C.R.S.

[Not applicable to agreements relating to the offer, issuance, or sale of securities, investment advisory services or fund management services, sponsored projects, intergovernmental agreements, or information technology services or products and services [Contractor certifies, warrants, and agrees that it does not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien who will perform work under this Contract and will confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment in the United States to perform work under this Contract, through participation in the E-Verify Program or the State verification program established pursuant to §8-17.5-102(5)(c), C.R.S., Contractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this Contract or enter into a contract with a Subcontractor that fails to certify to Contractor that the Subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this Contract. Contractor (i) shall not use E-Verify Program or the program procedures of the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment ("Department Program") to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while this Contract is being performed, (ii) shall notify the Subcontractor and the contracting State agency or institution of higher education within 3 days if Contractor has actual knowledge that a Subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien for work under this Contract, (iii) shall terminate the subcontract if a Subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien within 3 days of receiving the notice, and (iv) shall comply with reasonable requests made in the course of an investigation, undertaken pursuant to §8-17.5-102(5), C.R.S., by the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment. If Contractor participates in the Department program, Contractor shall deliver to the contracting State agency, Institution of Higher Education or political subdivision, a written, notarized affirmation, affirming that Contractor has examined the legal work status of such employee, and shall comply with all of the other requirements of the Department program. If Contractor fails to comply with any requirement of this provision or §§8-17.5-101, et seq., C.R.S., the contracting State agency, institution of higher education or political subdivision may terminate this Contract for breach and, if so terminated, Contractor shall be liable for damages.

L. PUBLIC CONTRACTS WITH NATURAL PERSONS. §§24-76.5-101, et seq., C.R.S.

Contractor, if a natural person eighteen (18) years of age or older, hereby swears and affirms under penalty of perjury that Contractor (i) is a citizen or otherwise lawfully present in the United States pursuant to federal law, (ii) shall comply with the provisions of §§24-76.5-101, *et seq.*, C.R.S., and (iii) has produced one form of identification required by §24-76.5-103, C.R.S. prior to the Effective Date of this Contract.

Revised 11-1-18

22. FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

Local Agency and/or their contractors, subcontractors, and consultants shall at all times during the execution of this Agreement strictly adhere to, and comply with, all applicable federal and State laws, and their implementing regulations, as they currently exist and may hereafter be amended. A summary of applicable federal provisions are attached hereto as Exhibit F, Exhibit I, Exhibit J, Exhibit K and Exhibit M are hereby incorporated by this reference.

23. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)

Local Agency will comply with all requirements of Exhibit G and Local Agency Contract Administration Checklist regarding DBE requirements for the Work, except that if Local Agency desires to use its own DBE program to implement and administer the DBE provisions of 49 C.F.R. Part 26 under this Agreement, it must submit a copy of its program's requirements to the State for review and approval before the execution of this Agreement. If Local Agency uses any State- approved DBE program for this Agreement, Local Agency shall be solely responsible to defend that DBE program and its use of that program against all legal and other challenges or complaints, at its sole cost and expense. Such responsibility includes, without limitation, determinations concerning DBE eligibility requirements and certification, adequate legal and factual bases for DBE goals and good faith efforts. State approval (if provided) of Local Agency's DBE program does not waive or modify the sole responsibility of Local Agency for use of its program.

24. DISPUTES

Document Builder Generated Rev. 04/22/2020 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under this Agreement which is not disposed of by agreement shall be decided by the Chief Engineer of the Department of Transportation. The decision of the Chief Engineer will be final and conclusive unless, within 30 calendar days after the date of receipt of a copy of such written decision, Local Agency mails or otherwise furnishes to the State a written appeal addressed to the Executive Director of CDOT. In connection with any appeal proceeding under this clause, Local Agency shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence in support of its appeal. Pending final decision of a dispute hereunder, Local Agency shall proceed diligently with the performance of this Agreement in accordance with the Chief Engineer's decision. The decision of the Executive Director or his duly authorized representative for the determination of such appeals shall be final and conclusive and serve as final agency action. This dispute clause does not preclude consideration of questions of law in connection with decisions provided for herein. Nothing in this Agreement, however, shall be construed as making final the decision of any administrative official, representative, or board on a question of law.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

EXHIBIT A – STATEMENT OF WORK

SHO M570-059 (23897) Greeley US 34 and WCR 17 Signals

CDOT will oversee the City when the City completes the WCR 17 and US 34 signals project (hereinafter referred to as "this work"). CDOT and the City believe it will be beneficial to perform this work because it will improve traffic signal visibility and timing, reducing the frequency of crashes at the intersection.

This work will conform to the parameters articulated in the Colorado Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, AASHTO "A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets", AASHTO "Roadside Design Guide", and the CDOT Project Development Manual, CDOT M&S Standards, CDOT Design Guide, CDOT Construction Manual, Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, Highway Capacity Manual, as well as along with all applicable State and Federal guidelines.

This work will consist of intersection improvements. The design phase of this work is scheduled to begin during federal fiscal year 2022. The design phase will identify more exact requirements, qualities, and attributes for this work (herein after referred to as "the exact work"). The exact work shall be used to complete the construction phase of the project. The construction phase of the project is estimated to begin in federal fiscal year 2023 and shall finish as soon as reasonably possible thereafter.

State Agency Department of Transportation Local Agency ZVENDORNAME		Option Letter Number ZOPTLETNUM Agreement Routing Number ZSMARTNO Agreement Routing Number		
Agreement Maximum Amount Initial term State Fiscal Year ZFYY_1 Extension terms State Fiscal Year ZFYY_2 State Fiscal Year ZFYY_3 State Fiscal Year ZFYY_4	\$ ZFYA_1 \$ ZFYA_2 \$ ZFYA_3 \$ ZFYA_4	Agreement Effective Date The later of the effective date or ZSTARTDATEX		
State Fiscal Year ZFYY_5 Total for all state fiscal years	\$ ZFYA_5 \$ ZPERSVC_MAX_ AMOUNT	Current Agreement Expiration Date ZTERMDATEX		

EXHIBIT B, SAMPLE OPTION LETTER

1. OPTIONS:

A. Option to extend for an Extension Term

B. Option to unilaterally authorize the Local Agency to begin a phase which may include Design, Construction, Environmental, Utilities, ROW incidentals or Miscellaneous ONLY (does not apply to Acquisition/Relocation or Railroads) and to update encumbrance amounts (a new Exhibit C must be attached with the option letter and shall be labeled C-1, future changes for this option shall be labeled as follows: C-2, C-3, C-4, etc.).

C. Option to unilaterally transfer funds from one phase to another phase (a new Exhibit C must be attached with the option letter and shall be labeled C-1, future changes for this option shall be labeled as follows: C-2, C-3, C-4, etc.).

D. Option to unilaterally do both A and B (a new Exhibit C must be attached with the option letter and shall be labeled C-1, future changes for this option shall be labeled as follows: C-2, C-3, C-4, etc.).

E. Option to update a Phase Performance Period and/or Modify OMB Uniform Guidance Information.

2. REQUIRED PROVISIONS:

Option A

In accordance with Section 2, C of the Original Agreement referenced above, the State hereby exercises its option for an additional term, beginning on (*insert date*) and ending on the current contract expiration date shown above, under the same funding provisions stated in the Original Contract Exhibit C, as amended.

Option B

In accordance with Section 7, E of the Original Agreement referenced above, the State hereby excerises its option to authorize the Local Agency to begin a phase that will include (*describe which phase will be added and include all that apply – Design, Construction, Environmental, Utilities, ROW incidentals or Miscellaneous*) and to encumber previously budgeted funds for the phase based upon changes in funding availability and authorization. The encumbrance for (*Design, Construction, Environmental, Utilities, ROW incidentals or Miscellaneous*) is (*insert dollars here*). A new **Exhibit C-1** is made part of the original Agreement and replaces **Exhibit C**. (*The following is a NOTE only, please delete when using this option. Future changes for this option for Exhibit C shall be labled as follows: C-2, C-3, C-4, etc.*).

Option C

In accordance with Section 7, E of the Original Agreement referenced above, the State hereby excerises its option to

authorize the Local Agency to transfer funds from (*describe phase from which funds will be moved*) to (*describe phase to which funds will be moved*) based on variance in actual phase costs and original phase estimates. A new **Exhibit C-1** is made part of the original Agreement and replaces **Exhibit C**.

Option D

In accordance with Section 7, E of the Original Agreement referenced above, the State hereby excerises its option to authorize the Local Agency to begin a phase that will include (*describe which phase will be added and include all that apply – Design, Construction, Environmental, Utilities, ROW incidentals or Miscellaneous*); 2) to encumber funds for the phase based upon changes in funding availability and authorization; and 3) to transfer funds from (*describe phase from which funds will be moved*) to (*describe phase to which funds will be moved*) based on variance in actual phase costs and original phase estimates. A new **Exhibit C-1** is made part of the original Agreement and replaces **Exhibit C**.

(The following language must be included on ALL options):

The Agreement Maximum Amount table on the Contract's Signature and Cover Page is hereby deleted and replaced with the Current Agreement Maximum Amount table shown above.

Option E

In accordance with Section 7, E of the Original Agreement referenced above, the State hereby excerises its option to authorize the Local Agency to update a Phase Performance Period and/or Modify OMB Uniform Guidance Information. A new **Exhibit C-1** is made part of the original Agreement and replaces **Exhibit C**.

3. OPTION EFFECTIVE DATE:

The effective date of this option letter is upon approval of the State Controller or delegate.

APPROVALS:

State of Colorado:

Jared Polis, Governor

By: ___

_ Date: ____

Executive Director, Colorado Department of Transportation

ALL CONTRACTS MUST BE APPROVED BY THE STATE CONTROLLER

CRS §24-30-202 requires the State Controller to approve all State Contracts. This Agreement is not valid until signed and dated below by the State Controller or delegate. Contractor is not authorized to begin performance until such time. If the Local Agency begins performing prior thereto, the State of Colorado is not obligated to pay the Local Agency for such performance or for any goods and/or services provided hereunder.

> State Controller Robert Jaros, CPA, MBA, JD

By: _____

Date: _____

		CH	O NA550 05	
Exhibit C - FUNDING PROV A. Cost of Work Estimate	1510N5	SH	O M570-05	59 (23897)
	e total cost the Work to be \$125,800.00, which is to be	funded as follows:		
1. BUDGETED FUNDS	e total cost the work to be \$125,800.00, which is to be	funded as follows.		
a. Federal Funds				
(90.00% of Participating	g Costs)			\$113,220.00
b. State Matching Funds				
(10.00% of Participating	g Costs)			\$12,580.00
		TOTAL BUDGETED) FUNDS	\$125,800.00
2. OMB UNIFORM GUIDA	ANCE			
a. Federal Award Identification	on Number (FAIN):			TBD
	Phase Performance StartDate):			See Below
c. Amount of Federal Funds				\$0.00
d. Total Amount of Federal A	ward:			\$113,220.00
e. Name of Federal Awarding	gAgency:			FHWA
f. CFDA# - Highway Planni	ng and Construction		(CFDA 20.205
g. Is the Award for R&D?				No
h. Indirect Cost Rate (if appli	cable)			N/A
3. ESTIMATED PAYMENT	F TO LOCAL AGENCY			
a. Federal Funds Budgeted				\$113,220.00
b. Less Estimated Federal Sh	are of CDOT-IncurredCosts			\$0.00
c. State Funds Budgeted				\$12,580.00
	TOTAL ESTIMATED PAY	MENT TO LOCAL A	GENCY	\$125,800.00
4. FOR CDOT ENCUMBRA	NCE PURPOSES			
a. Total Encumbrance Amou				¢105.000.00
				\$125,800.00
b. Less ROW Acquisition 31	11 and/or ROW Relocation 3109	.	0.11	\$0.00
Noto. No fundo ano aurronthe quai	able. Design and Construction funds will become ava	Net to be encumbered as		\$125,800.00
(Exhibit B) or formal Amendment.	aoie. Design ana Construction junas witt become ava	uable after execution (oj an Opuon	ieiler
	Performance Period Start*/End Date			
WBS Element 23897 .10.30	TBD / TBD	Design	3020	\$0.00
WBS Element 23897 .20.10	TBD / TBD	Const.	3301	\$0.00
	·			40.00

*The Local Agency should not begin work until all three of the following are in place:

Item No. 11.

1) Phase Performance Period Start Date; 2) The execution of the document encumbering funds for the respective phase; and 3) Local Agency receipt of the official Notice to Proceed. Any work performed before these three (3) milestones are achieved will not be reimbursable.

Item No. 11.

B. Matching Funds

The matching ratio for the federal participating funds for this Work is 90.00% federal-aid funds to 10.00% State funds, it being further understood that such ratio applies only to the \$125,800.00 that is eligible for federal participation, it being further understood that all non-participating costs are borne by the Local Agency at 100%. If the total participating cost of performance of the Work exceeds \$125,800.00, and additional federal funds are made available for the Work, the State shall pay 10.00% of all such costs eligible for federal participation and 100% of all non-participating costs; if additional federal funds are not made available, the State shall pay all such excess costs. If the total participating cost of performance of the Work is less than \$125,800.00, then the amounts of State and Federal-aid funds will be decreased in accordance with the funding ratio described herein.

C. Maximum Amount Payable

The maximum amount payable to the Local Agency under this Agreement shall be \$125,800.00 (for CDOT accounting purposes, the federal funds of \$125,800.00 and the State matching funds of \$12,580.00 will be encumbered for a total encumbrance of \$125,800.00), unless such amount is increased by an appropriate written modification to this Agreement executed before any increased cost is incurred. It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that the total cost of the Work stated hereinbefore is the best estimate available, based on the design data as approved at the time of execution of this Agreement, and that such cost is subject to revisions (in accord with the procedure in the previous sentence) agreeable to the parties prior to bid and award.

The maximum amount payable shall be reduced without amendment when the actual amount of the Local Agency's awarded contract is less than the budgeted total of the federal participating funds and the State matching funds. The maximum amount payable shall be reduced through the execution of an Option Letter as described in Section 7. E. of this contract.

D. Single Audit Act Amendment

All state and local government and non-profit organizations receiving \$750,000 or more from all funding sources defined as federal financial assistance for Single Audit Act Amendment purposes shall comply with the audit requirements of 2 CFR part 200, subpart F (Audit Requirements) see also, 49 C.F.R. 18.20 through 18.26. The Single Audit Act Amendment requirements applicable to the Local Agency receiving federal funds are as follows:

i. Expenditure less than \$750,000

If the Local Agency expends less than \$750,000 in Federal funds (all federal sources, not just Highway funds) in its fiscal year then this requirement does not apply.

ii. Expenditure of \$750,000 or more-Highway Funds Only

If the Local Agency expends \$750,000 or more, in Federal funds, but only received federal Highway funds (Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance, CFDA 20.205) then a program specific audit shall be performed. This audit will examine the "financial" procedures and processes for this program area.

iii. Expenditure of \$750,000 or more-Multiple Funding Sources

If the Local Agency expends \$750,000 or more in Federal funds, and the Federal funds are from multiple sources (FTA, HUD, NPS, etc.) then the Single Audit Act applies, which is an audit on the entire organization/entity.

iiii. Independent CPA

Single Audit shall only be conducted by an independent CPA, not by an auditor on staff. An audit is an allowable direct or indirect cost.

EXHIBIT D, LOCAL AGENCY RESOLUTION

(IF APPLICABLE)

			LIST		
Project N	No.	STIP No.	Project Co	de	Region
-	M570-059	SR4666.086	23897		4
Project I	Location			Date	;
	4 and WCR 17 Intersection			10/4	/2021
	Description c Signal Improvements				
Local Ag	gency	Local Agency Project Manag	er		
City o	of Greeley	Scott Logan			
	Resident Engineer	CDOT Project Manager			
	Reeves	Jake Oneal			
The che of the <i>C</i> , The che party res the Loca concur c Tasks th procedu The che Agency CDOT R Note:	ecklist shall be utilized to establish the contract administrecklist becomes an attachment to the Local Agency agree CDOT Local Agency Manual. Ecklist shall be prepared by placing an "X" under the responsible for initiating and executing the task. Only one for a Agency is responsible for a task, not applicable (NA) so approve. That will be performed by Headquarters staff will be indicatives, will determine who will perform all other tasks that a ecklist shall be prepared by the CDOT Resident Enginee Project Manager, and submitted to the Region Program Resident Engineer, in cooperation with the Local Agency	ement. Section numbers correst ponsible party, opposite each o responsible party should be se shall be noted. In addition, a "#" ated. The Regions, in accordan are the responsibility of CDOT. or or the CDOT Project Manage Engineer. If contract administry Project Manager, will prepare	spond to the ap f the tasks. The lected. When n will denote that ce with establis r, in cooperatio ation responsite and distribute a	e "X" de either at CDC shed po n with pilities	le chapters enotes the CDOT nor T must olicies and the Local change, the
				_	tion in
NO.	DESCRIPTION OF TASK		R	ESP(PA	ONSIBLE ARTY
NO.	DESCRIPTION OF TASK			ESP(PA	ONSIBLE ARTY
TIP / S	TIP AND LONG-RANGE PLANS		R	ESP(PA	ONSIBLE ARTY CDOT
TIP / S		d amendments thereto	R	ESP(PA	ONSIBLE ARTY
TIP / S 2.1	STIP AND LONG-RANGE PLANS Review Project to ensure it is consistent with STIP and		R	ESP(PA	ONSIBLE ARTY CDOT
TIP / S 2.1 FEDEF	TIP AND LONG-RANGE PLANS		R	ESP(PA	ONSIBLE ARTY CDOT
TIP / S 2.1 FEDEF 4.1	STIP AND LONG-RANGE PLANS Review Project to ensure it is consistent with STIP and RAL FUNDING OBLIGATION AND AUTHOR Authorize funding by phases (CDOT Form 418 - Federal- concurrence/involvement)		R	ESP(PA	ONSIBLE ARTY CDOT
TIP / S 2.1 FEDEF 4.1 PROJE	STIP AND LONG-RANGE PLANS Review Project to ensure it is consistent with STIP and RAL FUNDING OBLIGATION AND AUTHOR Authorize funding by phases (CDOT Form 418 - Federal- concurrence/involvement) ECT DEVELOPMENT		R	ESP(PA	ONSIBLE ARTY CDOT
TIP / S 2.1 FEDEF 4.1 PROJE 5.1	STIP AND LONG-RANGE PLANS Review Project to ensure it is consistent with STIP and RAL FUNDING OBLIGATION AND AUTHOR Authorize funding by phases (CDOT Form 418 - Federal- concurrence/involvement) ECT DEVELOPMENT Prepare Design Data - CDOT Form 463	-aid Program Data. Requires FHW.	R	ESP(PA	DNSIBLE ARTY CDOT
TIP / S 2.1 FEDEF 4.1 PROJE 5.1 5.2	STIP AND LONG-RANGE PLANS Review Project to ensure it is consistent with STIP and RAL FUNDING OBLIGATION AND AUTHOR Authorize funding by phases (CDOT Form 418 - Federal- concurrence/involvement) ECT DEVELOPMENT	eement (see also Chapter 3)	R	ESP(PA	ONSIBLE ARTY CDOT
TIP / S 2.1 FEDEF 4.1 PROJE 5.1 5.2	STIP AND LONG-RANGE PLANS Review Project to ensure it is consistent with STIP and RAL FUNDING OBLIGATION AND AUTHOR Authorize funding by phases (CDOT Form 418 - Federal- concurrence/involvement) ECT DEVELOPMENT Prepare Design Data - CDOT Form 463 Prepare Local Agency/CDOT Inter-Governmental Agree Conduct Consultant Selection/Execute Consultant Agree • Project Development	aid Program Data. Requires FHW.	R	ESP(PA	DNSIBLE ARTY CDOT
TIP / S 2.1 FEDEF 4.1 PROJE 5.1 5.2 5.3	STIP AND LONG-RANGE PLANS Review Project to ensure it is consistent with STIP and RAL FUNDING OBLIGATION AND AUTHOR Authorize funding by phases (CDOT Form 418 - Federal- concurrence/involvement) ECT DEVELOPMENT Prepare Design Data - CDOT Form 463 Prepare Local Agency/CDOT Inter-Governmental Agric Conduct Consultant Selection/Execute Consultant Agric • Project Development • Construction Contract Administration (including Family construction Contract Administration Contract Administration (including Family construction Contract Administration Contract Administration Contract Administration (including Family construction Contract Administration Contract Administration Contract Administration (including Family construction Contract Administration Contract Administration Contract Administration Contract Administration Contradministratice Construction Contract Administratice Co	aid Program Data. Requires FHW.	R	ESP(PA A	DNSIBLE ARTY CDOT
TIP / S 2.1 FEDEF 4.1 PROJE 5.1 5.2 5.3	STIP AND LONG-RANGE PLANS Review Project to ensure it is consistent with STIP and RAL FUNDING OBLIGATION AND AUTHOR Authorize funding by phases (CDOT Form 418 - Federal- concurrence/involvement) ECT DEVELOPMENT Prepare Design Data - CDOT Form 463 Prepare Local Agency/CDOT Inter-Governmental Agency Conduct Consultant Selection/Execute Consultant Agency • Project Development • Construction Contract Administration (including Fa Conduct Design Scoping Review Meeting	aid Program Data. Requires FHW.	R	ESP(PA A	DNSIBLE ARTY CDOT
TIP / S 2.1 FEDEF 4.1 PROJE 5.1 5.2 5.3 5.4 5.5	STIP AND LONG-RANGE PLANS Review Project to ensure it is consistent with STIP and RAL FUNDING OBLIGATION AND AUTHOR Authorize funding by phases (CDOT Form 418 - Federal- concurrence/involvement) ECT DEVELOPMENT Prepare Design Data - CDOT Form 463 Prepare Local Agency/CDOT Inter-Governmental Agency Conduct Consultant Selection/Execute Consultant Agency • Project Development • Construction Contract Administration (including Faconduct Design Scoping Review Meeting Conduct Public Involvement	aid Program Data. Requires FHW.	R	ESP(PA A	DNSIBLE ARTY CDOT
TIP / S 2.1 FEDEF 4.1 PROJE 5.1 5.2 5.3 5.4 5.5 5.6	STIP AND LONG-RANGE PLANS Review Project to ensure it is consistent with STIP and RAL FUNDING OBLIGATION AND AUTHOR Authorize funding by phases (CDOT Form 418 - Federal- concurrence/involvement) ECT DEVELOPMENT Prepare Design Data - CDOT Form 463 Prepare Local Agency/CDOT Inter-Governmental Agron Conduct Consultant Selection/Execute Consultant Agron • Project Development • Construction Contract Administration (including Fail Conduct Design Scoping Review Meeting Conduct Field Inspection Review (FIR)	AIZATION -aid Program Data. Requires FHW. reement (see also Chapter 3) reement abrication Inspection Services)	R	ESP(PA A X X X X X X X	DNSIBLE ARTY CDOT X X X X X 4 X 4 X
TIP / S 2.1 FEDEF 4.1 PROJE 5.1 5.2 5.3 5.4 5.5 5.6 5.7	STIP AND LONG-RANGE PLANS Review Project to ensure it is consistent with STIP and RAL FUNDING OBLIGATION AND AUTHOR Authorize funding by phases (CDOT Form 418 - Federal- concurrence/involvement) ECT DEVELOPMENT Prepare Design Data - CDOT Form 463 Prepare Local Agency/CDOT Inter-Governmental Agree Conduct Consultant Selection/Execute Consultant Agree • Project Development • Construction Contract Administration (including Fa Conduct Design Scoping Review Meeting Conduct Public Involvement Conduct Field Inspection Review (FIR) Conduct Environmental Processes (may require FHWA	A IZATION -aid Program Data. Requires FHW. reement (see also Chapter 3) reement abrication Inspection Services) concurrence/involvement)	R	ESP(PA A X X X X X X X X X	DNSIBLE ARTY CDOT X X X X X X X X X X
2.1 FEDEF 4.1	STIP AND LONG-RANGE PLANS Review Project to ensure it is consistent with STIP and RAL FUNDING OBLIGATION AND AUTHOR Authorize funding by phases (CDOT Form 418 - Federal- concurrence/involvement) ECT DEVELOPMENT Prepare Design Data - CDOT Form 463 Prepare Local Agency/CDOT Inter-Governmental Agron Conduct Consultant Selection/Execute Consultant Agron • Project Development • Construction Contract Administration (including Fail Conduct Design Scoping Review Meeting Conduct Field Inspection Review (FIR)	A IZATION -aid Program Data. Requires FHW. reement (see also Chapter 3) reement abrication Inspection Services) concurrence/involvement)	R	ESP(PA A X X X X X X X	DNSIBLE ARTY CDOT

NO.	DESCRIPTION OF TASK		RESPONSIBLE PARTY	
		LA	CDOT	
5.11	Justify Force Account Work by the Local Agency	Х	#	
5.12	Justify Proprietary, Sole Source, or Local Agency Furnished Items	Х	#	
5.13	Document Design Exceptions - CDOT Form 464	Х	#	
5.14	Prepare Plans, Specifications, Construction Cost Estimates and Submittals	Х	#	
5.15	Ensure Authorization of Funds for Construction		X	
PROJ	ECT DEVELOPMENT CIVIL RIGHTS AND LABOR COMPLIANCE			
6.1	Set Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Goals for Consultant and Construction Contracts (CDOT Region EEO/Civil Rights Specialist).		Х	
6.2	Determine Applicability of Davis-Bacon Act This project is is not exempt from Davis-Bacon requirements as determined by the functional classification of the project location (Projects located on local roads and rural minor collectors may be exempt.)		X	
	Bryce Reeves 3/20/20			
	CDOT Resident Engineer (Signature on File) Date			
6.3	Set On-the-Job Training Goals (CDOT Region EEO/Civil Rights Specialist)		Х	
6.4	Title VI Assurances	Х		
	Ensure the correct Federal Wage Decision, all required Disadvantaged Business Enterprise/On-the-Job Training special provisions and FHWA Form 1273 are included in the Contract (CDOT Resident Engineer)		x	
7.1	Obtain Approval for Advertisement Period of Less Than Three Weeks	V	X	
7.2	Advertise for Bids	Х	#	
7.3	Distribute "Advertisement Set" of Plans and Specifications	Х		
7.4	Review Worksite and Plan Details with Prospective Bidders While Project Is Under Advertisement	Х		
7.5	Open Bids	Х		
7.6	Process Bids for Compliance	<u>_</u>		
	Check CDOT Form 1415 – Commitment Confirmation when the low bidder meets DBE goals		X	
	Evaluate CDOT Form 1416 - Good Faith Effort Report and determine if the Contractor has			
	made a good faith effort when the low bidder does not meet DBE goals		X	
	Submit required documentation for CDOT award concurrence	Х		
7.7	Concurrence from CDOT to Award		Х	
7.8	Approve Rejection of Low Bidder		Х	
7.9	Award Contract	Х	#	
7.10	Provide "Award" and "Record" Sets of Plans and Specifications	Х		
CONS				
8.1	Issue Notice to Proceed to the Contractor	Х	#	
8.2	Project Safety	Х		
8.3	Conduct Conferences:			
	Pre-Construction Conference (Appendix B)	v	ш	
	Fabrication Inspection Notifications	Х	#	
	Pre-survey			
	Construction staking	Х		
	Monumentation			
	Partnering (Optional)	Х		
	Structural Concrete Pre-Pour (Agenda is in CDOT Construction Manual)	X	#	
	Concrete Pavement Pre-Paving (Agenda is in CDOT Construction Manual)	X	#	
	HMA Pre-Paving (Agenda is in CDOT Construction Manual)	X	#	
	Develop and distribute Public Notice of Planned Construction to media and local residents			

NO.	DESCRIPTION OF TASK		RESPONSIBLE PARTY	
			CDOT	
8.5	Supervise Construction			
	A Professional Engineer (PE) registered in Colorado, who will be "in responsible charge of			
	construction supervision." 970-350-9555			
	- Scoll Fogau	Х		
	Local Agency Professional Engineer or Phone number			
	CDOT Resident Engineer			
	Provide competent, experienced staff who will ensure the Contract work is constructed in	Х		
	accordance with the plans and specifications			
	Construction inspection and documentation	X		
0.6	Fabrication Inspection and documentation	X		
8.6 8.7	Approve Shop Drawings Perform Traffic Control Inspections	X	#	
<u>8.8</u>	Perform Construction Surveying	X	#	
<u>8.9</u>	Monument Right-of-Way	X		
8.10	Prepare and Approve Interim and Final Contractor Pay Estimates. Collect and review CDOT	^		
0.10	Form 1418 (or equivalent)			
	Provide the name and phone number of the person authorized for this task.	x		
	Scott Logan 970-350-9555			
	Local Agency Representative Phone number			
8.11	Prepare and Approve Interim and Final Utility and Railroad Billings	Х		
8.12	Prepare and Authorize Change Orders	Х	#	
8.13	Submit Change Order Package to CDOT	Х		
8.14	Prepare Local Agency Reimbursement Requests	Х		
8.15	Monitor Project Financial Status	Х		
8.16	Prepare and Submit Monthly Progress Reports	Х		
8.17	Resolve Contractor Claims and Disputes	Х		
8.18	Conduct Routine and Random Project Reviews			
	Provide the name and phone number of the person responsible for this task.		X	
	Bryce Reeves 970-350-2126			
	CDOT Resident Engineer Phone number			
8.19	Ongoing Oversight of DBE Participation	Х		
		1		
9.1	ERIALS Discuss Materials at Pre-Construction Meeting	Х		
	Buy America documentation required prior to installation of steel	^		
9.2	Complete CDOT Form 250 - Materials Documentation Record			
	Generate form, which includes determining the minimum number of required tests and		Х	
	applicable material submittals for all materials placed on the project			
	Update the form as work progresses	Х		
	Complete and distribute form after work is completed	Х		
9.3	Perform Project Acceptance Samples and Tests	Х		
9.4	Perform Laboratory Verification Tests	Х		
9.5	Accept Manufactured Products			
	Inspection of structural components:	X		
	Fabrication of structural steel and pre-stressed concrete structural components	^		
	Bridge modular expansion devices (0" to 6" or greater)			
	Fabrication of bearing devices			
9.6	Approve Sources of Materials	Х		
9.7	Independent Assurance Testing (IAT), Local Agency Procedures 🗌 CDOT Procedures 🗵			
	Generate IAT schedule		Х	
	Schedule and provide notification	Х		
	Conduct IAT	Х		

NO.	DESCRIPTION OF TASK	RESPONSIBLE PARTY	
		LA	CDOT
9.8	Approve mix designs		
	Concrete	Х	#
	Hot mix asphalt	Х	#
9.9	Check Final Materials Documentation	Х	#
9.10	Complete and Distribute Final Materials Documentation	Х	#
CONS	TRUCTION CIVIL RIGHTS AND LABOR COMPLIANCE		
10.1	Fulfill Project Bulletin Board and Pre-Construction Packet Requirements	Х	
10.2	Process CDOT Form 205 - Sublet Permit Application		
	Review and sign completed CDOT Form 205 for each subcontractor, and submit to EEO/Civil Rights Specialist	Х	#
10.3	Conduct Equal Employment Opportunity and Labor Compliance Verification Employee Interviews. Complete CDOT Form 280	Х	
10.4	Monitor Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Participation to Ensure Compliance with the "Commercially Useful Function" Requirements	Х	
10.5	 Conduct Interviews When Project Utilizes On-the-Job Trainees. Complete CDOT Form 1337 – Contractor Commitment to Meet OJT Requirements. Complete CDOT Form 838 – OJT Trainee / Apprentice Record. Complete CDOT Form 200 - OJT Training Questionnaire 	х	
10.6	Check Certified Payrolls (Contact the Region EEO/Civil Rights Specialists for training requirements.)	Х	#
10.7	Submit FHWA Form 1391 - Highway Construction Contractor's Annual EEO Report	X	"
FINAL			
11.1	Conduct Final Project Inspection. Complete and submit CDOT Form 1212 - Final Acceptance Report (Resident Engineer with mandatory Local Agency participation.)		X
11.2	Write Final Project Acceptance Letter	Х	
11.3	Advertise for Final Settlement	Х	
11.4	Prepare and Distribute Final As-Constructed Plans	Х	
11.5	Prepare EEO Certification and Collect EEO Forms	Х	
11.6	Check Final Quantities, Plans, and Pay Estimate; Check Project Documentation; and submit Final Certifications	Х	#
11.7	Check Material Documentation and Accept Final Material Certification (See Chapter 9)	Х	
11.8	Obtain CDOT Form 1419 from the Contractor and Submit to the CDOT Project Manager	Х	
11.9	(FHWA Form 47 discontinued)		NA
11.10	Complete and Submit CDOT Form 1212 – Final Acceptance Report (by CDOT)		Х
11.11	Process Final Payment	Х	#
11.12	Complete and Submit CDOT Form 950 - Project Closure		Х
11.13	Retain Project Records for Six Years from Date of Project Closure	Х	
11.14	Retain Final Version of Local Agency Contract Administration Checklist	Х	

cc: CDOT Resident Engineer/Project Manager CDOT Region Program Engineer CDOT Region EEO/Civil Rights Specialist CDOT Region Materials Engineer CDOT Contracts and Market Analysis Branch Local Agency Project Manager

EXHIBIT F, CERTIFICATION FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS

The Local Agency certifies, by signing this Agreement, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that:

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, Agreement, loan, or cooperative agreement.

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, Agreement, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

The prospective participant also agree by submitting his or her bid or proposal that he or she shall require that the language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed \$100,000 and that all such sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

EXHIBIT G

SECTION 1. Policy.

It is the policy of the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) that disadvantaged business enterprises shall have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds under this agreement, pursuant to 49 CFR Part 26. Consequently, the 49 CFR Part IE DBE requirements the Colorado Department of Transportation DBE Program (or a Local Agency DBE Program approved in advance by the State) apply to this agreement.

SECTION 2. DBE Obligation.

The recipient or its the Local Agency agrees to ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises as determined by the Office of Certification at the Colorado Department of Regulatory Agencies have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds provided under this agreement. In this regard, all participants or contractors shall take all necessary and reasonable steps in accordance with the CDOT DBE program (or a Local Agency DBE Program approved in advance by the State) to ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises have the maximum opportunity to compete for and perform contracts. Recipients and their contractors shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award and performance of CDOT assisted contracts.

SECTION 3 DBE Program.

The Local Agency (sub-recipient) shall be responsible for obtaining the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program of the Colorado Department of Transportation, 1988, as amended, and shall comply with the applicable provisions of the program. (If applicable). A copy of the DBE Program is available from and will be mailed to the Local Agency upon request:

Civil Rights & Business Resource Center Colorado Department of Transportation 2829 W. Howard Place Denver, Colorado 80204 Phone: (303) 757-9234

REVISED 1/22/98

REQUIRED BY 49 CFR PART 26

EXHIBIT H, LOCAL AGENCY PROCEDURES FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES

Title 23 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 172 applies to a federally funded Local Agency project agreement administered by CDOT that involves professional consultant services. 23 CFR 172.1 states "The policies and procedures involve federally funded contracts for engineering and design related services for projects subject to the provisions of 23 U.S.C. 112(a) and are issued to ensure that a qualified consultant is obtained through an equitable selection process, that prescribed work is properly accomplished in a timely manner, and at fair and reasonable cost" and according to 23 CFR 172.5 "Price shall not be used as a factor in the analysis and selection phase." Therefore, local agencies must comply with these CFR requirements when obtaining professional consultant services under a federally funded consultant contract administered by CDOT.

CDOT has formulated its procedures in Procedural Directive (P.D.) 400.1 and the related operations guidebook titled "Obtaining Professional Consultant Services". This directive and guidebook incorporate requirements from both Federal and State regulations, i.e., 23 CFR 172 and CRS §24-30-1401 et seq. Copies of the directive and the guidebook may be obtained upon request from CDOT's Agreements and Consultant Management Unit. [Local agencies should have their own written procedures on file for each method of procurement that addresses the items in 23 CFR 172].

Because the procedures and laws described in the Procedural Directive and the guidebook are quite lengthy, the subsequent steps serve as a short-hand guide to CDOT procedures that a Local Agency must follow in obtaining professional consultant services. This guidance follows the format of 23 CFR 172. The steps are:

1. The contracting Local Agency shall document the need for obtaining professional services.

2. Prior to solicitation for consultant services, the contracting Local Agency shall develop a detailed scope of work and a list of evaluation factors and their relative importance. The evaluation factors are those identified in C.R.S. 24-30-1403. Also, a detailed cost estimate should be prepared for use during negotiations.

3. The contracting agency must advertise for contracts in conformity with the requirements of C.R.S. 24-30-1405. The public notice period, when such notice is required, is a minimum of 15 days prior to the selection of the three most qualified firms and the advertising should be done in one or more daily newspapers of general circulation.

4. The Local Agency shall not advertise any federal aid contract without prior review by the CDOT Regional Civil Rights Office (RCRO) to determine whether the contract shall be subject to a DBE contract goal. If the RCRO determines a goal is necessary, then the Local Agency shall include the goal and the applicable provisions within the advertisement. The Local Agency shall not award a contract to any Contractor or Consultant without the confirmation by the CDOT Civil Rights and Business Resource Center that the Contractor or Consultant has demonstrated good faith efforts. The Local Agency shall work with the CDOT RCRO to ensure compliance with the established terms during the performance of the contract.

5. The Local Agency shall require that all contractors pay subcontractors for satisfactory performance of work no later than 30 days after the receipt of payment for that work from the contractor. For construction projects, this tiem period shall be reduced to seven days in accordance with Colorado Revised Statute 24-91-103(2). If the Local Agency withholds retainage from contractors and/or allows contractors to withhold retainage from subcontractors, such retainage provisions must comply with 49 CFR 26.29.

6. Payments to all Subconsultants shall be made within thirty days of receipt of payment from [the Local Agency] or no later than ninety days from the date of the submission of a complete invoice from the Subconsultant, whichever occurs first. If the Consultant has good cause to dispute an amount invoiced by a Subconsultant, the Consultant shall notify [the Local Agency] no later than the required date for payment. Such notification shall include the amount disputed and justification for the withholding. The Consultant shall maintain records of payment that show amounts paid to all Subconsultants. Good cause does not include the Consultant's failure to submit an invoice to the Local Agency or to deposit payments made.

7. The analysis and selection of the consultants shall be done in accordance with CRS §24-30-1403. This section of the regulation identifies the criteria to be used in the evaluation of CDOT pre-qualified prime consultants and their team. It also shows which criteria are used to short-list and to make a final selection.

The short-list is based on the following evaluation factors:

a. Qualifications,

- b. Approach to the Work,
- c. Ability to furnish professional services.
- d. Anticipated design concepts, and
- e. Alternative methods of approach for furnishing the professional services.

Evaluation factors for final selection are the consultant's:

- a. Abilities of their personnel,
- b. Past performance,
- c. Willingness to meet the time and budget requirement,
- d. Location,
- e. Current and projected work load,
- f. Volume of previously awarded contracts, and
- g. Involvement of minority consultants.

8. Once a consultant is selected, the Local Agency enters into negotiations with the consultant to obtain a fair and reasonable price for the anticipated work. Pre-negotiation audits are prepared for contracts expected to be greater than \$50,000. Federal reimbursements for costs are limited to those costs allowable under the cost principles of 48 CFR 31. Fixed fees (profit) are determined with consideration given to size, complexity, duration, and degree of risk involved in the work. Profit is in the range of six to 15 percent of the total direct and indirect costs.

9. A qualified Local Agency employee shall be responsible and in charge of the Work to ensure that the work being pursued is complete, accurate, and consistent with the terms, conditions, and specifications of the contract. At the end of Work, the Local Agency prepares a performance evaluation (a CDOT form is available) on the consultant.

CRS §§24-30-1401 THROUGH 24-30-1408, 23 CFR PART 172, AND P.D. 400.1, PROVIDE ADDITIONAL DETAILS FOR COMPLYING WITH THE PRECEEDING EIGHT (8) STEPS.

EXHIBIT I, FEDERAL-AID CONTRACT PROVISIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

FHWA-1273 -- Revised May 1, 2012

REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS FEDERAL-AID CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

. General

- II. Nondiscrimination
- III. Nonsegregated Facilities
- IV. Davis-Bacon and Related Act Provisions
- V. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act Provisions
- VI. Subletting or Assigning the Contract
- VII. Safety: Accident Prevention
- VIII. False Statements Concerning Highway Projects IX. Implementation of Clean Air Act and Federal Water
- Pollution Control Act X. Compliance with Governmentwide Suspension and Debarment Requirements
- XI. Certification Regarding Use of Contract Funds for Lobbying

ATTACHMENTS

A. Employment and Materials Preference for Appalachian Development Highway System or Appalachian Local Access Road Contracts (included in Appalachian contracts only)

I. GENERAL

 Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated in each construction contract funded under Title 23 (excluding emergency contracts solely intended for debris removal). The contractor (or subcontractor) must insert this form in each subcontract and further require its inclusion in all lower tier subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services).

The applicable requirements of Form FHWA-1273 are incorporated by reference for work done under any purchase order, rental agreement or agreement for other services. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider.

Form FHWA-1273 must be included in all Federal-aid designbuild contracts, in all subcontracts and in lower tier subcontracts (excluding subcontracts for design services, purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services). The design-builder shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider.

Contracting agencies may reference Form FHWA-1273 in bid proposal or request for proposal documents, however, the Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated (not referenced) in all contracts, subcontracts and lower-tier subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services related to a construction contract).

 Subject to the applicability criteria noted in the following sections, these contract provisions shall apply to all work performed on the contract by the contractor's own organization and with the assistance of workers under the contractor's immediate superintendence and to all work performed on the contract by piecework, station work, or by subcontract. A breach of any of the stipulations contained in these Required Contract Provisions may be sufficient grounds for withholding of progress payments, withholding of final payment, termination of the contract, suspension / debarment or any other action determined to be appropriate by the contracting agency and FHWA.

4. Selection of Labor: During the performance of this contract, the contractor shall not use convict labor for any purpose within the limits of a construction project on a Federal-aid highway unless it is labor performed by convicts who are on parole, supervised release, or probation. The term Federal-aid highway does not include roadways functionally classified as local roads or rural minor collectors.

II. NONDISCRIMINATION

The provisions of this section related to 23 CFR Part 230 are applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of \$10,000 or more. The provisions of 23 CFR Part 230 are not applicable to material supply, engineering, or architectural service contracts.

In addition, the contractor and all subcontractors must comply with the following policies: Executive Order 11246, 41 CFR 60, 29 CFR 1625-1627, Title 23 USC Section 140, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 USC 794), Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21, 26 and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633.

The contractor and all subcontractors must comply with: the requirements of the Equal Opportunity Clause in 41 CFR 60-1.4(b) and, for all construction contracts exceeding \$10,000, the Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications in 41 CFR 60-4.3.

Note: The U.S. Department of Labor has exclusive authority to determine compliance with Executive Order 11246 and the policies of the Secretary of Labor including 41 CFR 60, and 29 CFR 1625-1627. The contracting agency and the FHWA have the authority and the responsibility to ensure compliance with Title 23 USC Section 140, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 USC 794), and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21. 26 and 27: and 23 CFR Parts 200. 230, and 633.

The following provision is adopted from 23 CFR 230, Appendix A, with appropriate revisions to conform to the U.S. Department of Labor (US DOL) and FHWA requirements.

 Equal Employment Opportunity: Equal employment opportunity (EEO) requirements not to discriminate and to take affirmative action to assure equal opportunity as set forth under laws, executive orders, rules, regulations (28 CFR 35, 29 CFR 1630, 29 CFR 1625-1627, 41 CFR 60 and 49 CFR 27) and orders of the Secretary of Labor as modified by the provisions prescribed herein, and imposed pursuant to 23 U.S.C. 140 shall constitute the EEO and specific affirmative action standards for the contractor's project activities under this contract. The provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) set forth under 28 CFR 35 and 29 CFR 1630 are incorporated by reference in this contract. In the execution of this contract, the contractor agrees to comply with the following minimum specific requirement activities of EEO:

a. The contractor will work with the contracting agency and the Federal Government to ensure that it has made every good faith effort to provide equal opportunity with respect to all of its terms and conditions of employment and in their review of activities under the contract.

b. The contractor will accept as its operating policy the following statement:

"It is the policy of this Company to assure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, religion, sex, color, national origin, age or disability. Such action shall include: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship, pre-apprenticeship, and/or on-thejob training."

 EEO Officer: The contractor will designate and make known to the contracting officers an EEO Officer who will have the responsibility for and must be capable of effectively administering and promoting an active EEO program and who must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to do so.

3. Dissemination of Policy: All members of the contractor's staff who are authorized to hire, supervise, promote, and discharge employees, or who recommend such action, or who are substantially involved in such action, will be made fully cognizant of, and will implement, the contractor's EEO policy and contractual responsibilities to provide EEO in each grade and classification of employment. To ensure that the above agreement will be met, the following actions will be taken as a minimum:

a. Periodic meetings of supervisory and personnel office employees will be conducted before the start of work and then not less often than once every six months, at which time the contractor's EEO policy and its implementation will be reviewed and explained. The meetings will be conducted by the EEO Officer.

b. All new supervisory or personnel office employees will be given a thorough indoctrination by the EEO Officer, covering all major aspects of the contractor's EEO obligations within thirty days following their reporting for duty with the contractor.

c. All personnel who are engaged in direct recruitment for the project will be instructed by the EEO Officer in the contractor's procedures for locating and hiring minorities and women.

d. Notices and posters setting forth the contractor's EEO policy will be placed in areas readily accessible to employees, applicants for employment and potential employees.

e. The contractor's EEO policy and the procedures to implement such policy will be brought to the attention of employees by means of meetings, employee handbooks, or other appropriate means. 4. Recruitment: When advertising for employees, the contractor will include in all advertisements for employees the notation: "An Equal Opportunity Employer." All such advertisements will be placed in publications having a large circulation among minorities and women in the area from which the project work force would normally be derived.

a. The contractor will, unless precluded by a valid bargaining agreement, conduct systematic and direct recruitment through public and private employee referral sources likely to yield qualified minorities and women. To meet this requirement, the contractor will identify sources of potential minority group employees, and establish with such identified sources procedures whereby minority and women applicants may be referred to the contractor for employment consideration.

b. In the event the contractor has a valid bargaining agreement providing for exclusive hiring hall referrals, the contractor is expected to observe the provisions of that agreement to the extent that the system meets the contractor's compliance with EEO contract provisions. Where implementation of such an agreement has the effect of discriminating against minorities or women, or obligates the contractor to do the same, such implementation violates Federal nondiscrimination provisions.

c. The contractor will encourage its present employees to refer minorities and women as applicants for employment. Information and procedures with regard to referring such applicants will be discussed with employees.

5. Personnel Actions: Wages, working conditions, and employee benefits shall be established and administered, and personnel actions of every type, including hiring, upgrading, promotion, transfer, demotion, layoff, and termination, shall be taken without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability. The following procedures shall be followed:

 The contractor will conduct periodic inspections of project sites to insure that working conditions and employee facilities do not indicate discriminatory treatment of project site personnel.

b. The contractor will periodically evaluate the spread of wages paid within each classification to determine any evidence of discriminatory wage practices.

c. The contractor will periodically review selected personnel actions in depth to determine whether there is evidence of discrimination. Where evidence is found, the contractor will promptly take corrective action. If the review indicates that the discrimination may extend beyond the actions reviewed, such corrective action shall include all affected persons.

d. The contractor will promptly investigate all complaints of alleged discrimination made to the contractor in connection with its obligations under this contract, will attempt to resolve such complaints, and will take appropriate corrective action within a reasonable time. If the investigation indicates that the discrimination may affect persons other than the complainant, such corrective action shall include such other persons. Upon completion of each investigation, the contractor will inform every complainant of all of their avenues of appeal.

6. Training and Promotion:

a. The contractor will assist in locating, qualifying, and increasing the skills of minorities and women who are applicants for employment or current employees. Such efforts should be aimed at developing full journey level status employees in the type of trade or job classification involved.

b. Consistent with the contractor's work force requirements and as permissible under Federal and State regulations, the contractor shall make full use of training programs, i.e., apprenticeship, and on-the-job training programs for the geographical area of contract performance. In the event a special provision for training is provided under this contract, this subparagraph will be superseded as indicated in the special provision. The contracting agency may reserve training positions for persons who receive welfare assistance in accordance with 23 U.S.C. 140(a).

 The contractor will advise employees and applicants for employment of available training programs and entrance requirements for each.

d. The contractor will periodically review the training and promotion potential of employees who are minorities and women and will encourage eligible employees to apply for such training and promotion.

7. Unions: If the contractor relies in whole or in part upon unions as a source of employees, the contractor will use good faith efforts to obtain the cooperation of such unions to increase opportunities for minorities and women. Actions by the contractor, either directly or through a contractor's association acting as agent, will include the procedures set forth below:

a. The contractor will use good faith efforts to develop, in cooperation with the unions, joint training programs aimed toward qualifying more minorities and women for membership in the unions and increasing the skills of minorities and women so that they may qualify for higher paying employment.

b. The contractor will use good faith efforts to incorporate an EEO clause into each union agreement to the end that such union will be contractually bound to refer applicants without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability.

c. The contractor is to obtain information as to the referral practices and policies of the labor union except that to the extent such information is within the exclusive possession of the labor union and such labor union refuses to furnish such information to the contractor, the contractor shall so certify to the contracting agency and shall set forth what efforts have been made to obtain such information.

d. In the event the union is unable to provide the contractor with a reasonable flow of referrals within the time limit set forth in the collective bargaining agreement, the contractor will, through independent recruitment efforts, fill the employment vacancies without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability; making full efforts to obtain qualified and/or qualifiable minorities and women. The failure of a union to provide sufficient referrals (even though it is obligated to provide exclusive referrals under the terms of a collective bargaining agreement) does not relieve the contractor from the requirements of this paragraph. In the event the union referral practice prevents the contractor from meeting the obligations pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and these special provisions, such contractor shall immediately notify the contracting agency.

 Reasonable Accommodation for Applicants / Employees with Disabilities: The contractor must be familiar with the requirements for and comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act and all rules and regulations established there under. Employers must provide reasonable accommodation in all employment activities unless to do so would cause an undue hardship.

9. Selection of Subcontractors, Procurement of Materials and Leasing of Equipment: The contractor shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor shall take all necessary and reasonable steps to ensure nondiscrimination in the administration of this contract.

 The contractor shall notify all potential subcontractors and suppliers and lessors of their EEO obligations under this contract.

b. The contractor will use good faith efforts to ensure subcontractor compliance with their EEO obligations.

10. Assurance Required by 49 CFR 26.13(b):

 The requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 and the State DOT's U.S. DOT-approved DBE program are incorporated by reference.

b. The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the contracting agency deems appropriate.

11. Records and Reports: The contractor shall keep such records as necessary to document compliance with the EEO requirements. Such records shall be retained for a period of three years following the date of the final payment to the contractor for all contract work and shall be available at reasonable times and places for inspection by authorized representatives of the contracting agency and the FHWA.

a. The records kept by the contractor shall document the following:

 The number and work hours of minority and nonminority group members and women employed in each work classification on the project;

(2) The progress and efforts being made in cooperation with unions, when applicable, to increase employment opportunities for minorities and women; and

(3) The progress and efforts being made in locating, hiring, training, qualifying, and upgrading minorities and women;

b. The contractors and subcontractors will submit an annual report to the contracting agency each July for the duration of the project, indicating the number of minority, women, and non-minority group employees currently engaged in each work classification required by the contract work. This information is to be reported on <u>Form FHWA-1391</u>. The staffing data should represent the project work force on board in all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of July. If on-the-job training is being required by special provision, the contractor will be required to collect and report training data. The employment data should reflect the work force on board during all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of July.

III. NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of \$10,000 or more.

The contractor must ensure that facilities provided for employees are provided in such a manner that segregation on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin cannot result. The contractor may neither require such segregated use by written or oral policies nor tolerate such use by employee custom. The contractor's obligation extends further to ensure that its employees are not assigned to perform their services at any location, under the contractor's control, where the facilities are segregated. The term "facilities" includes waiting rooms, work areas, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, restrooms, washrooms, locker rooms, and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing provided for employees. The contractor shall provide separate or single-user restrooms and necessary dressing or sleeping areas to assure privacy between sexes.

IV. DAVIS-BACON AND RELATED ACT PROVISIONS

This section is applicable to all Federal-aid construction projects exceeding \$2,000 and to all related subcontracts and lower-tier subcontracts (regardless of subcontract size). The requirements apply to all projects located within the right-ofway of a roadway that is functionally classified as Federal-aid highway. This excludes roadways functionally classified as local roads or rural minor collectors, which are exempt. Contracting agencies may elect to apply these requirements to other projects.

The following provisions are from the U.S. Department of Labor regulations in 29 CFR 5.5 "Contract provisions and related matters" with minor revisions to conform to the FHWA-1273 format and FHWA program requirements.

1. Minimum wages

a. All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work, will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (20 CFR part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph 1.d. of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under paragraph 1.b. of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

b.(1) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:

 (i) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and

(ii) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and

(iii) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.

(2) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

(3) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Wage and Hour Administrator for determination. The Wage and Hour Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

(4) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs 1.b.(2) or 1.b.(3) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.

c. Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.

d. If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.

2. Withholding

The contracting agency shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract, or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federallyassisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part of the wages required by the contract, the contracting agency may, after written notice to the contractor, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

3. Payrolls and basic records

a. Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the DavisBacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.

b.(1) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the contracting agency. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to the contracting agency for transmission to the State DOT, the FHWA or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to the contracting agency..

(2) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:

(i) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under §5.5 (a)(3)(ii) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, the appropriate information is being maintained under §5.5 (a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, and that such information is correct and complete;

(ii) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3:

(iii) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract. (3) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph 3.b.(2) of this section.

(4) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code.

c. The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph 3.a. of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the contracting agency, the State DOT, the FHWA, or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the FHWA may, after written notice to the contractor, the contracting agency or the State DOT, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.

4. Apprentices and trainees

a. Apprentices (programs of the USDOL).

Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice.

The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed.

Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination.

In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

b. Trainees (programs of the USDOL).

Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration.

The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration.

Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed.

In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

c. Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR part 30. d. Apprentices and Trainees (programs of the U.S. DOT).

Apprentices and trainees working under apprenticeship and skill training programs which have been certified by the Secretary of Transportation as promoting EEO in connection with Federal-aid highway construction programs are not subject to the requirements of paragraph 4 of this Section IV. The straight time hourly wage rates for apprentices and trainees under such programs will be established by the particular programs. The ratio of apprentices and trainees to journeymen shall not be greater than permitted by the terms of the particular program.

 Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.

6. Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert Form FHWA-1273 in any subcontracts and also require the subcontractors to include Form FHWA-1273 in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.

 Contract termination: debarment. A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.

 Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.

9. Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 20 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

10. Certification of eligibility.

a. By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

b. No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

c. The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.

V. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT

The following clauses apply to any Federal-aid construction contract in an amount in excess of \$100,000 and subject to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. These clauses shall be inserted in addition to the clauses required by 29 CFR 5.5(a) or 29 CFR 4.6. As used in this paragraph, the terms laborers and mechanics include watchmen and guards.

1. Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section, the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section.

3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The FHWA or the contacting agency shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2.) of this section.

4. Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraph (1.) through (4.) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1.) through (4.) of this section.

VI. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNING THE CONTRACT

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts on the National Highway System.

 The contractor shall perform with its own organization contract work amounting to not less than 30 percent (or a greater percentage if specified elsewhere in the contract) of the total original contract price, excluding any specialty items designated by the contracting agency. Specialty items may be performed by subcontract and the amount of any such specialty items performed may be deducted from the total original contract price before computing the amount of work required to be performed by the contractor's own organization (23 CFR 635.116).

a. The term "perform work with its own organization" refers to workers employed or leased by the prime contractor, and equipment owned or rented by the prime contractor, with or without operators. Such term does not include employees or equipment of a subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor, agents of the prime contractor, or any other assignees. The term may include payments for the costs of hiring leased employees from an employee leasing firm meeting all relevant Federal and State regulatory requirements. Leased employees may only be included in this term if the prime contractor meets all of the following conditions:

 the prime contractor maintains control over the supervision of the day-to-day activities of the leased employees;

(2) the prime contractor remains responsible for the quality of the work of the leased employees;

(3) the prime contractor retains all power to accept or exclude individual employees from work on the project; and (4) the prime contractor remains ultimately responsible for

the payment of predetermined minimum wages, the submission of payrolls, statements of compliance and all other Federal regulatory requirements.

b. "Specialty Items" shall be construed to be limited to work that requires highly specialized knowledge, abilities, or equipment not ordinarily available in the type of contracting organizations qualified and expected to bid or propose on the contract as a whole and in general are to be limited to minor components of the overall contract.

 The contract amount upon which the requirements set forth in paragraph (1) of Section VI is computed includes the cost of material and manufactured products which are to be purchased or produced by the contractor under the contract provisions.

3. The contractor shall furnish (a) a competent superintendent or supervisor who is employed by the firm, has full authority to direct performance of the work in accordance with the contract requirements, and is in charge of all construction operations (regardless of who performs the work) and (b) such other of its own organizational resources (supervision, management, and engineering services) as the contracting officer determines is necessary to assure the performance of the contract.

4. No portion of the contract shall be sublet, assigned or otherwise disposed of except with the written consent of the contracting officer, or authorized representative, and such consent when given shall not be construed to relieve the contractor of any responsibility for the fulfillment of the contract. Written consent will be given only after the contracting agency has assured that each subcontract is evidenced in writing and that it contains all pertinent provisions and requirements of the prime contract.

 The 30% self-performance requirement of paragraph (1) is not applicable to design-build contracts; however, contracting agencies may establish their own self-performance requirements.

VII. SAFETY: ACCIDENT PREVENTION

T h is provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

 In the performance of this contract the contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws governing safety, health, and sanitation (23 CFR 635). The contractor shall provide all safeguards, safety devices and protective equipment and take any other needed actions as it determines, or as the contracting officer may determine, to be reasonably necessary to protect the life and health of employees on the job and the safety of the public and to protect property in connection with the performance of the work covered by the contract.

2. It is a condition of this contract, and shall be made a condition of each subcontract, which the contractor enters into pursuant to this contract, that the contractor and any subcontractor shall not permit any employee, in performance of the contract, to work in surroundings or under conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous to his/her health or safety, as determined under construction safety and health standards (29 CFR 1926) promulgated by the Secretary of Labor, in accordance with Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3704).

3. Pursuant to 29 CFR 1928.3, it is a condition of this contract that the Secretary of Labor or authorized representative thereof, shall have right of entry to any site of contract performance to inspect or investigate the matter of compliance with the construction safety and health standards and to carry out the duties of the Secretary under Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C.3704).

VIII. FALSE STATEMENTS CONCERNING HIGHWAY PROJECTS

T h is provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

In order to assure high quality and durable construction in conformity with approved plans and specifications and a high degree of reliability on statements and representations made by engineers, contractors, suppliers, and workers on Federalaid highway projects, it is essential that all persons concerned with the project perform their functions as carefully, thoroughly, and honestly as possible. Willful falsification, distortion, or misrepresentation with respect to any facts related to the project is a violation of Federal law. To prevent any misunderstanding regarding the seriousness of these and similar acts, Form FHWA-1022 shall be posted on each Federal-aid highway project (23 CFR 635) in one or more places where it is readily available to all persons concerned with the project:

18 U.S.C. 1020 reads as follows:

"Whoever, being an officer, agent, or employee of the United States, or of any State or Territory, or whoever, whether a person, association, firm, or corporation, knowingly makes any false statement, false representation, or false report as to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of the material used or to be used, or the quantity or quality of the work performed or to be performed, or the cost thereof in connection with the submission of plans, maps, specifications, contracts, or costs of construction on any highway or related project submitted for approval to the Secretary of Transportation; or

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement, false representation, false report or false claim with respect to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of any work performed or to be performed, or materials furnished or to be furnished, in connection with the construction of any highway or related project approved by the Secretary of Transportation; or

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement or false representation as to material fact in any statement, certificate, or report submitted pursuant to provisions of the Federal-aid Roads Act approved July 1, 1916, (39 Stat. 355), as amended and supplemented;

Shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 5 years or both."

IX. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

By submission of this bid/proposal or the execution of this contract, or subcontract, as appropriate, the bidder, proposer, Federal-aid construction contractor, or subcontractor, as appropriate, will be deemed to have stipulated as follows:

 That any person who is or will be utilized in the performance of this contract is not prohibited from receiving an award due to a violation of Section 508 of the Clean Water Act or Section 308 of the Clean Air Act.

 That the contractor agrees to include or cause to be included the requirements of paragraph (1) of this Section X in every subcontract, and further agrees to take such action as the contracting agency may direct as a means of enforcing such requirements.

X. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts, design-build contracts, subcontracts, lower-tier subcontracts, purchase orders, lease agreements, consultant contracts or any other covered transaction requiring FHWA approval or that is estimated to cost \$25,000 or more – as defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200.

1. Instructions for Certification - First Tier Participants:

a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective first tier participant is providing the certification set out below.

b. The inability of a person to provide the certification set out below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective first tier participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective first tier participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such a person from participation in this transaction.

c. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the contracting agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the contracting agency may terminate this transaction for cause of default.

d. The prospective first tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the contracting agency to whom this proposal is submitted if any time the prospective first tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

e. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. "First Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction between a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds and a participant (such as the prime or general contract). "Lower Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction under a First Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts). "First Tier Participant" refers to the participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds (such as the prime or general contractor). "Lower Tier Participant" refers any participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers).

f. The prospective first tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency entering into this transaction.

g. The prospective first tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by the department or contracting agency, entering into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding the \$25,000 threshold.

h. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the Excluded Parties List System website (https://www.epis.gov/), which is compiled by the General Services Administration.

i. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require the establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of the prospective participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

j. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph (f) of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

2. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion – First Tier Participants:

a. The prospective first tier participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

 Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(2) Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(3) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (a)(2) of this certification; and

(4) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

b. Where the prospective participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

2. Instructions for Certification - Lower Tier Participants:

(Applicable to all subcontracts, purchase orders and other lower tier transactions requiring prior FHWA approval or estimated to cost \$25,000 or more - 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200)

a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier is providing the certification set out below.

b. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department, or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

c. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

d. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. "First Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction between a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds and a participant (such as the prime or general contract). "Lower Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction under a First Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts). "First Tier Participant" refers to the participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds (such as the prime or general contractor). "Lower Tier Participant" refers any participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers).

e. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated.

f. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding the \$25,000 threshold.

g. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the Excluded Parties List System website (<u>https://www.epls.gov/</u>), which is compiled by the General Services Administration.

h. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

i. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph e of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier Participants:

 The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency.

Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

XI. CERTIFICATION REGARDING USE OF CONTRACT FUNDS FOR LOBBYING

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts which exceed \$100,000 (49 CFR 20).

 The prospective participant certifies, by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

 The prospective participant also agrees by submitting its bid or proposal that the participant shall require that the language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed \$100,000 and that all such recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.
ATTACHMENT A - EMPLOYMENT AND MATERIALS PREFERENCE FOR APPALACHIAN DEVELOPMENT HIGHWAY SYSTEM OR APPALACHIAN LOCAL ACCESS ROAD CONTRACTS

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid projects funded under the Appalachian Regional Development Act of 1965.

 During the performance of this contract, the contractor undertaking to do work which is, or reasonably may be, done as on-site work, shall give preference to qualified persons who regularly reside in the labor area as designated by the DOL wherein the contract work is situated, or the subregion, or the Appalachian counties of the State wherein the contract work is situated, except:

a. To the extent that qualified persons regularly residing in the area are not available.

b. For the reasonable needs of the contractor to employ supervisory or specially experienced personnel necessary to assure an efficient execution of the contract work.

c. For the obligation of the contractor to offer employment to present or former employees as the result of a lawful collective bargaining contract, provided that the number of nonresident persons employed under this subparagraph (1c) shall not exceed 20 percent of the total number of employees employed by the contractor on the contract work, except as provided in subparagraph (4) below.

2. The contractor shall place a job order with the State Employment Service indicating (a) the classifications of the laborers, mechanics and other employees required to perform the contract work, (b) the number of employees required in each classification, (c) the date on which the participant estimates such employees will be required, and (d) any other pertinent information required by the State Employment Service to complete the job order form. The job order may be placed with the State Employment Service in writing or by telephone. If during the course of the contract work, the information submitted by the contractor in the original job order is substantially modified, the participant shall promptly notify the State Employment Service.

3. The contractor shall give full consideration to all qualified job applicants referred to him by the State Employment Service. The contractor is not required to grant employment to any job applicants who, in his opinion, are not qualified to perform the classification of work required.

4. If, within one week following the placing of a job order by the contractor with the State Employment Service, the State Employment Service is unable to refer any qualified job applicants to the contractor, or less than the number requested, the State Employment Service will forward a certificate to the contractor indicating the unavailability of applicants. Such certificate shall be made a part of the contractor's permanent project records. Upon receipt of this certificate, the contractor may employ persons who do not normally reside in the labor area to fill positions covered by the certificate, notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (1c) above.

 The provisions of 23 CFR 633.207(e) allow the contracting agency to provide a contractual preference for the use of mineral resource materials native to the Appalachian region. The contractor shall include the provisions of Sections 1 through 4 of this Attachment A in every subcontract for work which is, or reasonably may be, done as on-site work.

EXHIBIT J, ADDITIONAL FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

Federal laws and regulations that may be applicable to the Work include:

Executive Order 11246

Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965 entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 13, 1967 and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR Chapter 60) (All construction contracts awarded in excess of \$10,000 by the Local Agencys and their contractors or the Local Agencys).

Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act

The Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3) (All contracts and sub-Agreements for construction or repair).

Davis-Bacon Act

The Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a to a-7) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5) (Construction contracts in excess of \$2,000 awarded by the Local Agencys and the Local Agencys when required by Federal Agreement program legislation. This act requires that all laborers and mechanics employed by contractors or sub-contractors to work on construction projects financed by federal assistance must be paid wages not less than those established for the locality of the project by the Secretary of Labor).

Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act

Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-330) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). (Construction contracts awarded by the Local Agency's in excess of \$2,000, and in excess of \$2,500 for other contracts which involve the employment of mechanics or laborers).

Clear Air Act

Standards, orders, or requirements issued under section 306 of the Clear Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857(h), section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368). Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency regulations (40 CFR Part 15) (contracts, subcontracts, and sub-Agreements of amounts in excess of \$100,000).

Energy Policy and Conservation Act

Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Pub. L. 94-163).

OMB Circulars

Office of Management and Budget Circulars A-87, A-21 or A-122, and A-102 or A-110, whichever is applicable.

Hatch Act

The Hatch Act (5 USC 1501-1508) and Public Law 95-454 Section 4728. These statutes state that federal funds cannot be used for partisan political purposes of any kind by any person or organization involved in the administration of federally-assisted programs.

Nondiscrimination

The Local Agency shall not exclude from participation in, deny the benefits of, or subject to discrimination any person in the United States on the ground of race, color national origin, sex, age or disability. Prior to the receipt of any Federal financial assistance from CDOT, the Local Agency shall execute the attached Standard DOT Title VI assurance. As appropriate, the Local Agency shall include Appendix A, B, or C to the Standard DOT Title VI assurance in any contract utilizing federal funds, land or other aid. The Local Agency shall also include the following in all contract advertisements:

The [Local Agency], in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (79 Stat. 252, 42 US.C. §§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, DBEs will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grouds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for any award.

ADA

In any contract utilizing federal funds, land, or other federal aid, the Local Agency shall require the federalaid recipient or contractor to provide a statement of written assurance that they will comply with Section 504 and not discriminate on the basis of disability.

Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act

The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act, as amended (Public Law 91-646, as amended and Public Law 100-17, 101 Stat. 246-256). (If the contractor is acquiring real property and displacing households or businesses in the performance of the Agreement).

Drug-Free Workplace Act

The Drug-Free Workplace Act (Public Law 100-690 Title V, subtitle D, 41 USC 701 et seq.).

Age Discrimination Act of 1975

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 42 U.S.C. Sections 6101 <u>et. seq.</u> and its implementing regulation, 45 C.F.R. Part 91; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. 794, as amended, and implementing regulation 45 C.F.R. Part 84.

23 C.F.R. Part 172

23 C.F.R. Part 172, concerning "Administration of Engineering and Design Related Contracts".

23 C.F.R Part 633

23 C.F.R Part 633, concerning "Required Contract Provisions for Federal-Aid Construction Contracts".

23 C.F.R. Part 635

23 C.F.R. Part 635, concerning "Construction and Maintenance Provisions".

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and 162(a) of the Federal Aid Highway Act of 1973

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and 162(a) of the Federal Aid Highway Act of 1973. The requirements for which are shown in the Nondiscrimination Provisions, which are attached hereto and made a part hereof.

Nondiscrimination Provisions:

In compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and with Section 162(a) of the Federal Aid Highway Act of 1973, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest, agree as follows:

v. Compliance with Regulations

The Contractor will comply with the Regulations of the Department of Transportation relative to nondiscrimination in Federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation (Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, hereinafter referred to as the "Regulations"), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement.

vi. Nondiscrimination

The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by it after award and prior to completion of the contract work, will not discriminate on the ground of race, color, sex, mental or physical handicap or national origin in the selection and retention of Subcontractors, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The Contractor will not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix C of the Regulations.

vii. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment

In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurement of materials or equipment, each potential Subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the Contractor of the Contractor's obligations under this Agreement and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the ground of race, color, sex, mental or physical handicap or national origin.

viii. Information and Reports

The Contractor will provide all information and reports required by the Regulations, or orders and instructions issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information and its facilities as may be determined by the State or the FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders and instructions. Where any information required of the Contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Contractor shall so certify to the State, or the FHWA as appropriate and shall set forth what efforts have been made to obtain the information.

ix. Sanctions for Noncompliance

In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of this Agreement, the State shall impose such contract sanctions as it or the FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: **a.** Withholding of payments to the Contractor under the contract until the Contractor complies, and/or **b.** Cancellation, termination or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part.

Incorporation of Provisions §22

The Contractor will include the provisions of this Exhibit J in every subcontract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, orders, or instructions issued pursuant thereto. The Contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the State or the FHWA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance; provided, however, that, in the event the Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a Subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the Contractor may request the State to enter into such litigation to protect the interest of the State and in addition, the Contractor may request the FHWA to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

SAMPLE

The United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) Standard Title VI/Non-Discrimination

Assurances for Local Agencies

DOT Order No. 1050.2A

The [Local Agency] (herein referred to as the "Recipient"), **HEREBY AGREES THAT**, as a condition to receiving any Federal financial assistance from the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), through the Colorado Department of Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), Federal Transit Administration (FTA), and Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), is subject to and will comply with the following:

Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

- Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin);
- 49 C.F.R. Part 21 (entitled Non-discrimination In Federally-Assisted Programs Of The Department Of Transportation-Effectuation Of Title VI Of The Civil Rights Act Of 1964);
- 28 C.F.R. section 50.3 (U.S. Department of Justice Guidelines for Enforcement of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964);

The preceding statutory and regulatory cites hereinafter are referred to as the "Acts" and "Regulations," respectively.

General Assurances

In accordance with the Acts, the Regulations, and other pertinent directives, circulars, policy, memoranda, and/or guidance, the Recipient hereby gives assurance that it will promptly take any measures necessary to ensure that:

"No person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity, "for which the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance from DOT, including the FHWA, FTA, or FAA.

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 clarified the original intent of Congress, with respect to Title VI and other Non-discrimination requirements (The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973), by restoring the broad, institutional-wide scope and coverage of these non- discrimination statutes and requirements to include all programs and activities of the Recipient, so long as any portion of the program is Federally assisted.

Specific Assurances

More specifically, and without limiting the above general Assurance, the Recipient agrees with and gives the following Assurances with respect to its Federally assisted FHWA, FTA, and FAA assisted programs:

- 1. The Recipient agrees that each "activity," "facility," or "program," as defined in §§ 21.23(b) and 21.23(e) of 49 C.F.R. § 21 will be (with regard to an "activity") facilitated, or will be (with regard to a "facility") operated, or will be (with regard to a "program") conducted in compliance with all requirements imposed by, or pursuant to the Acts and the Regulations.
- The Recipient will insert the following notification in all solicitations for bids, Requests For Proposals for work, or material subject to the Acts and the Regulations made in connection with all FHWA, FTA and FAA programs and, in adapted form, in all proposals for negotiated agreements regardless of funding source:
- 3. "The [Local Agency] in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 US.C. §§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity

- 4. to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for an award."
- 5. The Recipient will insert the clauses of Appendix A and E of this Assurance in every contract or agreement subject to the Acts and the Regulations.
- 6. The Recipient will insert the clauses of Appendix B of this Assurance, as a covenant running with the land, in any deed from the United States effecting or recording a transfer of real property, structures, use, or improvements thereon or interest therein to a Recipient.
- 7. That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance to construct a facility, or part of a facility, the Assurance will extend to the entire facility and facilities operated in connection therewith.
- 8. That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance in the form, or for the acquisition of real property or an interest in real property, the Assurance will extend to rights to space on, over, or under such property.
- 9. That the Recipient will include the clauses set forth in Appendix C and Appendix D of this Assurance, as a covenant running with the land, in any future deeds, leases, licenses, permits, or similar instruments entered into by the Recipient with other parties:
 - a. for the subsequent transfer of real property acquired or improved under the applicable activity, project, or program; and
 - b. for the construction or use of, or access to, space on, over, or under real property acquired or improved under the applicable activity, project, or program.
- 10. That this Assurance obligates the Recipient for the period during which Federal financial assistance is extended to the program, except where the Federal financial assistance is to provide, or is in the form of, personal property, or real property, or interest therein, or structures or improvements thereon, in which case the Assurance obligates the Recipient, or any transferee for the longer of the following periods:
 - a. the period during which the property is used for a purpose for which the Federal financial assistance is extended, or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits; or
 - b. the period during which the Recipient retains ownership or possession of the property.
- 11. The Recipient will provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found by the Secretary of Transportation or the official to whom he/she delegates specific authority to give reasonable guarantee that it, other recipients, sub-recipients, sub-grantees, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, transferees, successors in interest, and other participants of Federal financial assistance under such program will comply with all requirements imposed or pursuant to the Acts, the Regulations, and this Assurance.
- 12. The Recipient agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to any matter arising under the Acts, the Regulations, and this Assurance.

By signing this ASSURANCE, the [Local Agency] also agrees to comply (and require any sub-recipients, subgrantees, contractors, successors, transferees, and/or assignees to comply) with all applicable provisions governing the FHWA, FTA, and FAA's access to records, accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff. You also recognize that you must comply with any program or compliance reviews, and/or complaint investigations conducted by CDOT, FHWA, FTA, or FAA. You must keep records, reports, and submit the material for review upon request to CDOT, FHWA, FTA, or FAA, or its designee in a timely, complete, and accurate way. Additionally, you must comply with all other reporting, data collection, and evaluation requirements, as prescribed by law or detailed in program guidance.

[Local Agency] gives this ASSURANCE in consideration of and for obtaining any Federal grants, loans, contracts, agreements, property, and/or discounts, or other Federal-aid and Federal financial assistance extended after the date hereof to the recipients by the U.S. Department of Transportation under the FHWA, FTA, and FAA. This ASSURANCE is binding on [Local Agency], other recipients, sub-recipients, sub-grantees, contractors, subcontractors and their subcontractors', transferees, successors in interest, and any other participants in the FHWA, FTA, and FAA funded programs. The person(s) signing below is authorized to sign this ASSURANCE on behalf of the Recipient.

(Name of Recipient)

by_

(Signature of Authorized Official)

DATED_____

APPENDIX A

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees as follows:

- 1. **Compliance with Regulations**: The contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) will comply with the Acts and the Regulations relative to Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation, FHWA, as they may be amended from time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract.
- 2. **Non-discrimination**: The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor will not participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations, including employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 21.
- 3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the contractor of the contractor's obligations under this contract and the Acts and the Regulations relative to Non-discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.
- 4. **Information and Reports**: The contractor will provide all information and reports required by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the [Local Agency], CDOT or FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Acts, Regulations, and instructions. Where any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the contractor will so certify to the [Local Agency], CDOT or FHWA, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.
- 5. **Sanctions for Noncompliance**: In the event of a contractor's noncompliance with the Non- discrimination provisions of this contract, the [Local Agency] will impose such contract sanctions as it, CDOT or FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:
 - a. withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies; and/or
 - b. cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.
- 6. **Incorporation of Provisions**: The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one through six in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto. The contractor will take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the Recipient or the [Local Agency], CDOT or FHWA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the contractor may request the Recipient to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the Recipient. In addition, the contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

APPENDIX B

CLAUSES FOR DEEDS TRANSFERRING UNITED STATES PROPERTY

The following clauses will be included in deeds effecting or recording the transfer of real property, structures, or improvements thereon, or granting interest therein from the United States pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 4:

NOW, THEREFORE, the U.S. Department of Transportation as authorized by law and upon the condition that the [Local Agency] will accept title to the lands and maintain the project constructed thereon in accordance with (*Name of Appropriate Legislative Authority*), the Regulations for the Administration of (*Name of Appropriate Program*), and the policies and procedures prescribed by the FHWA of the U.S. Department of Transportation in accordance and in compliance with all requirements imposed by Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S Department of Transportation pertaining to and effectuating the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252; 42 U.S.C. § 2000d to 2000d-4), does hereby remise, release, quitclaim and convey unto the [Local Agency] all the right, title and interest of the U.S. Department of Transportation in and to said lands described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof.

(HABENDUM CLAUSE)

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said lands and interests therein unto [Local Agency] and its successors forever, subject, however, to the covenants, conditions, restrictions and reservations herein contained as follows, which will remain in effect for the period during which the real property or structures are used for a purpose for which Federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits and will be binding on the [Local Agency] its successors and assigns.

The [Local Agency], in consideration of the conveyance of said lands and interests in lands, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land for itself, its successors and assigns, that (1) no person will on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination with regard to any facility located wholly or in part on, over, or under such lands hereby conveyed [,] [and]* (2) that the [Local Agency] will use the lands and interests in lands and interests in lands so conveyed, in compliance with all requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation, Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulations and Acts may be amended [, and (3) that in the event of breach of any of the above-mentioned non-discrimination conditions, the Department will have a right to enter or re-enter said lands and facilities on said land, and that above described land and facilities will thereon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of the U.S. Department of Transportation and its assigns as such interest existed prior to this instruction].*

(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary in order

APPENDIX C

CLAUSES FOR TRANSFER OF REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED OR IMPROVED UNDER THE ACTIVITY, FACILITY, OR PROGRAM

The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar instruments entered into by the [Local Agency] pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 7(a):

- A. The (grantee, lessee, permittee, etc. as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree [in the case of deeds and leases add "as a covenant running with the land"] that:
 - 1. In the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the property described in this (deed, license, lease, permit, etc.) for a purpose for which a U.S. Department of Transportation activity, facility, or program is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits, the (grantee, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.) will maintain and operate such facilities and services in compliance with all requirements imposed by the Acts and Regulations (as may be amended) such that no person on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities.
- B. With respect to licenses, leases, permits, etc., in the event of breach of any of the above Non-discrimination covenants, [Local Agency] will have the right to terminate the (lease, license, permit, etc.) and to enter, re-enter, and repossess said lands and facilities thereon, and hold the same as if the (lease, license, permit, etc.) had never been made or issued.*
- C. With respect to a deed, in the event of breach of any of the above Non-discrimination covenants, the [Local Agency] will have the right to enter or re-enter the lands and facilities thereon, and the above described lands and facilities will there upon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of the [Local Agency] and its assigns.*

(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.)

APPENDIX D

CLAUSES FOR CONSTRUCTION/USE/ACCESS TO REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED UNDER THE ACTIVITY, FACILITY OR PROGRAM

The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, permits, or similar instruments/agreements entered into by [Local Agency] pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 7(b):

- A. The (grantee, licensee, permittee, etc., as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree (in the case of deeds and leases add, "as a covenant running with the land") that (1) no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) that in the construction of any improvements on, over, or under such land, and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination, (3) that the (grantee, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.) will use the premises in compliance with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to the Acts and Regulations, as amended, set forth in this Assurance.
- B. With respect to (licenses, leases, permits, etc.), in the event of breach of any of the above Non- discrimination covenants, [Local Agency] will have the right to terminate the (license, permit, etc., as appropriate) and to enter or re-enter and repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and hold the same as if said (license, permit, etc., as appropriate) had never been made or issued.*
- C. With respect to deeds, in the event of breach of any of the above Non-discrimination covenants, [Local Agency] will there upon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of [Local Agency] of Transportation and its assigns.*

(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.)

APPENDIX E

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to:

Pertinent Non-Discrimination Authorities:

- Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21.
- The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);
- Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex);
- Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 27;
- The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of age);
- Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);
- The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not);
- Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 C.F.R. parts 37 and 38;
- The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);
- Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures discrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;
- Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of Limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);
- Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).

EXHIBIT K, FFATA SUPPLEMENTAL FEDERAL PROVISIONS

State of Colorado Supplemental Provisions for Federally Funded Contracts, Grants, and Purchase Orders Subject to The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA), As Amended Revised as of 3-20-13

The contract, grant, or purchase order to which these Supplemental Provisions are attached has been funded, in whole or in part, with an Award of Federal funds. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of these Supplemental Provisions, the Special Provisions, the contract or any attachments or exhibits incorporated into and made a part of the contract, the provisions of these Supplemental Provisions shall control.

- **1. Definitions.** For the purposes of these Supplemental Provisions, the following terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them below.
 - **1.1.** "Award" means an award of Federal financial assistance that a non-Federal Entity receives or administers in the form of:
 - 1.1.1. Grants;
 - **1.1.2.** Contracts;
 - **1.1.3.** Cooperative agreements, which do not include cooperative research and development agreements (CRDA) pursuant to the Federal Technology Transfer Act of 1986, as amended (15 U.S.C. 3710);
 - 1.1.4. Loans;
 - **1.1.5.** Loan Guarantees;
 - **1.1.6.** Subsidies;
 - 1.1.7. Insurance;
 - **1.1.8.** Food commodities;
 - 1.1.9. Direct appropriations;
 - 1.1.10. Assessed and voluntary contributions; and
 - **1.1.11.** Other financial assistance transactions that authorize the expenditure of Federal funds by non-Federal Entities.

Award *does not* include:

- **1.1.12.** Technical assistance, which provides services in lieu of money;
- **1.1.13.** A transfer of title to Federally-owned property provided in lieu of money; even if the award is called a grant;
- 1.1.14. Any award classified for security purposes; or
- **1.1.15.** Any award funded in whole or in part with Recovery funds, as defined in section 1512 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) of 2009 (Public Law 111-5).
- **1.2.** "Contract" means the contract to which these Supplemental Provisions are attached and includes all Award types in §1.1.1 through 1.1.11 above.
- **1.3. "Contractor"** means the party or parties to a Contract funded, in whole or in part, with Federal financial assistance, other than the Prime Recipient, and includes grantees, subgrantees, Subrecipients, and borrowers. For purposes of Transparency Act reporting, Contractor does not include Vendors.
- **1.4. "Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) Number"** means the nine-digit number established and assigned by Dun and Bradstreet, Inc. to uniquely identify a business entity. Dun and Bradstreet's website may be found at: <u>http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform</u>.
- 1.5. "Entity" means all of the following as defined at 2 CFR part 25, subpart C;

1.5.1. A governmental organization, which is a State, local government, or Indian Tribe;

1.5.2. A foreign public entity;

1.5.3. A domestic or foreign non-profit organization;

- 1.5.4. A domestic or foreign for-profit organization; and
- **1.5.5.** A Federal agency, but only a Subrecipient under an Award or Subaward to a non-Federal entity.
- **1.6.** "Executive" means an officer, managing partner or any other employee in a management position.
- **1.7. "Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)"** means an Award number assigned by a Federal agency to a Prime Recipient.
- **1.8. "FFATA"** means the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (Public Law 109-282), as amended by §6202 of Public Law 110-252. FFATA, as amended, also is referred to as the "Transparency Act."
- **1.9. "Prime Recipient"** means a Colorado State agency or institution of higher education that receives an Award.
- **1.10. "Subaward"** means a legal instrument pursuant to which a Prime Recipient of Award funds awards all or a portion of such funds to a Subrecipient, in exchange for the Subrecipient's support in the performance of all or any portion of the substantive project or program for which the Award was granted.
- **1.11. "Subrecipient"** means a non-Federal Entity (or a Federal agency under an Award or Subaward to a non-Federal Entity) receiving Federal funds through a Prime Recipient to support the performance of the Federal project or program for which the Federal funds were awarded. A Subrecipient is subject to the terms and conditions of the Federal Award to the Prime Recipient, including program compliance requirements. The term "Subrecipient" includes and may be referred to as Subgrantee.
- **1.12. "Subrecipient Parent DUNS Number"** means the subrecipient parent organization's 9-digit Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number that appears in the subrecipient's System for Award Management (SAM) profile, if applicable.
- **1.13. "Supplemental Provisions"** means these Supplemental Provisions for Federally Funded Contracts, Grants, and Purchase Orders subject to the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006, As Amended, as may be revised pursuant to ongoing guidance from the relevant Federal or State of Colorado agency or institution of higher education.
- **1.14.** "System for Award Management (SAM)" means the Federal repository into which an Entity must enter the information required under the Transparency Act, which may be found at <u>http://www.sam.gov</u>.
- **1.15. "Total Compensation"** means the cash and noncash dollar value earned by an Executive during the Prime Recipient's or Subrecipient's preceding fiscal year and includes the following:
 - 1.15.1. Salary and bonus;
 - **1.15.2.** Awards of stock, stock options, and stock appreciation rights, using the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to the fiscal year in accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2005) (FAS 123R), Shared Based Payments;
 - **1.15.3.** Earnings for services under non-equity incentive plans, not including group life, health, hospitalization or medical reimbursement plans that do not discriminate in favor of Executives and are available generally to all salaried employees;
 - 1.15.4. Change in present value of defined benefit and actuarial pension plans;
 - 1.15.5. Above-market earnings on deferred compensation which is not tax-qualified;
 - **1.15.6.** Other compensation, if the aggregate value of all such other compensation (e.g. severance, termination payments, value of life insurance paid on behalf of the employee, perquisites or property) for the Executive exceeds \$10,000.
- **1.16. "Transparency Act**" means the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (Public Law 109-282), as amended by §6202 of Public Law 110-252. The Transparency Act also is referred to as FFATA.
- **1.17** "Vendor" means a dealer, distributor, merchant or other seller providing property or services required for a project or program funded by an Award. A Vendor is not a Prime Recipient or a Subrecipient and is not subject to the terms and conditions of the Federal award. Program compliance requirements do not pass through to a Vendor.

2. Compliance. Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Transparency Act and the regulations issued pursuant thereto, including but not limited to these Supplemental Provisions. Any revisions to such provisions or regulations shall automatically become a part of these Supplemental Provisions, without the necessity of either party executing any further instrument. The State of Colorado may provide written notification to Contractor of such revisions, but such notice shall not be a condition precedent to the effectiveness of such revisions.

3. System for Award Management (SAM) and Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) Requirements.

- **3.1. SAM.** Contractor shall maintain the currency of its information in SAM until the Contractor submits the final financial report required under the Award or receives final payment, whichever is later. Contractor shall review and update SAM information at least annually after the initial registration, and more frequently if required by changes in its information.
- **3.2. DUNS.** Contractor shall provide its DUNS number to its Prime Recipient, and shall update Contractor's information in Dun & Bradstreet, Inc. at least annually after the initial registration, and more frequently if required by changes in Contractor's information.
- **4.** Total Compensation. Contractor shall include Total Compensation in SAM for each of its five most highly compensated Executives for the preceding fiscal year if:
 - 4.1. The total Federal funding authorized to date under the Award is \$25,000 or more; and
 - **4.2.** In the preceding fiscal year, Contractor received:
 - **4.2.1.** 80% or more of its annual gross revenues from Federal procurement contracts and subcontracts and/or Federal financial assistance Awards or Subawards subject to the Transparency Act; and
 - **4.2.2.** \$25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from Federal procurement contracts and subcontracts and/or Federal financial assistance Awards or Subawards subject to the Transparency Act; and
 - **4.3.** The public does not have access to information about the compensation of such Executives through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 78o(d) or § 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.
- 5. Reporting. Contractor shall report data elements to SAM and to the Prime Recipient as required in §7 below if Contractor is a Subrecipient for the Award pursuant to the Transparency Act. No direct payment shall be made to Contractor for providing any reports required under these Supplemental Provisions and the cost of producing such reports shall be included in the Contract price. The reporting requirements in §7 below are based on guidance from the US Office of Management and Budget (OMB), and as such are subject to change at any time by OMB. Any such changes shall be automatically incorporated into this Contract and shall become part of Contractor's obligations under this Contract, as provided in §2 above. The Colorado Office of the State Controller will provide summaries of revised OMB reporting requirements at http://www.colorado.gov/dpa/dfp/sco/FFATA.htm.
- 6. Effective Date and Dollar Threshold for Reporting. The effective date of these Supplemental Provisions apply to new Awards as of October 1, 2010. Reporting requirements in §7 below apply to new Awards as of October 1, 2010, if the initial award is \$25,000 or more. If the initial Award is below \$25,000 but subsequent Award modifications result in a total Award of \$25,000 or more, the Award is subject to the reporting requirements as of the date the Award exceeds \$25,000. If the initial Award is \$25,000 or more, but funding is subsequently de-obligated such that the total award amount falls below \$25,000, the Award shall continue to be subject to the reporting requirements.
- **7.** Subrecipient Reporting Requirements. If Contractor is a Subrecipient, Contractor shall report as set forth below.

- **7.1 ToSAM.** A Subrecipient shall register in SAM and report the following data elements in SAM *for each* Federal Award Identification Number no later than the end of the month following the month in which the Subaward was made:
 - 7.1.1 Subrecipient DUNS Number;
 - 7.1.2 Subrecipient DUNS Number + 4 if more than one electronic funds transfer (EFT) account;
 - 7.1.3 Subrecipient Parent DUNS Number;
 - **7.1.4** Subrecipient's address, including: Street Address, City, State, Country, Zip + 4, and Congressional District;
 - **7.1.5** Subrecipient's top 5 most highly compensated Executives if the criteria in §4 above are met; and
 - **7.1.6** Subrecipient's Total Compensation of top 5 most highly compensated Executives if criteria in §4 above met.
- **7.2 To Prime Recipient.** A Subrecipient shall report to its Prime Recipient, upon the effective date of the Contract, the following data elements:
 - 7.2.1 Subrecipient's DUNS Number as registered in SAM.
 - **7.2.2** Primary Place of Performance Information, including: Street Address, City, State, Country, Zip code + 4, and Congressional District.

8. Exemptions.

- **8.1.** These Supplemental Provisions do not apply to an individual who receives an Award as a natural person, unrelated to any business or non-profit organization he or she may own or operate in his or her name.
- **8.2** A Contractor with gross income from all sources of less than \$300,000 in the previous tax year is exempt from the requirements to report Subawards and the Total Compensation of its most highly compensated Executives.
- **8.3** Effective October 1, 2010, "Award" currently means a grant, cooperative agreement, or other arrangement as defined in Section 1.1 of these Special Provisions. On future dates "Award" may include other items to be specified by OMB in policy memoranda available at the OMB Web site; Award also will include other types of Awards subject to the Transparency Act.
- 8.4 There are no Transparency Act reporting requirements for Vendors.

Event of Default. Failure to comply with these Supplemental Provisions shall constitute an event of default under the Contract and the State of Colorado may terminate the Contract upon 30 days prior written notice if the default remains uncured five calendar days following the termination of the 30 day notice period. This remedy will be in addition to any other remedy available to the State of Colorado under the Contract, at law or in equity.

EXHIBIT L, SAMPLE SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING AND RISK ASSESSMENT

CDOT SUBRECIPIENT RISK ASSESSMENT	Date:		
Name of Entity (Subrecipient):			
Name of Project / Program:			
Estimated Award Period:			
Entity Executive Director or VP:			
Entity Chief Financial Officer:			
Entity Representative for this Self Assessment:			
nstructions: (See "Instructions" tab for more information) I. Check only one box for each question. All questions are required to beanswered. 2. Utilize the "Comment" section below the last question for additional responses. 3. When complete, check the box at the bottom of the form to authorize.	Yes	No	N/A
EXPERIENCE ASSESSMENT	Yes	No	N/A
1 Is your entity new to operating or managing federal funds (has not done so within the past three years)?			
2 Is this funding program new for your entity (managed for less than three years)? <i>Examples of funding programs include CMAQ, TAP, STP-M, etc.</i>			
3 Does your staff assigned to the program have at least three full years of experience with this federal program?			
MONITORING/AUDIT ASSESSMENT	Yes	No	N/A
4 Has your entity had an on-site project or grant review from an external entity (<i>e.g., CDOT, FHWA</i>) within the last three years?			
5 a) Were there non-compliance issues in this prior review?			
b) What were the number and extent of issues in prior review?	1 to 2	>3	
DPERATION ASSESSMENT	Yes	No	N/A
6 Does your entity have a time and effort reporting system in place to account for 100% of all employees' time, that can provide a breakdown of the actual time spent on each funded project? If No, in the comment section please explain how you intend to document 100% of hours worked by employees and breakdown of time spent on each funding project.			
FINANCIAL ASSESSMENT	Yes	No	N/A
$\underline{7}$ a) Does your entity have an indirect cost rate that is approved and current?			
b) If Yes, who approved the rate, and what date was it approved?			
8 Is this grant/award 10% or more of your entity's overall funding?	>10%	<10%	
9 Has your entity returned lapsed* funds? *Funds "lapse" when they are no longer available for obligation.			
10 Has your entity had difficulty meeting local match requirements in the last three years?			
11 What is the total federal funding your entity has been awarded for the last federal fiscal year,			

IN	TERNAL CONTROLS ASSESSMENT	Yes	No	N/A
<u>12</u>	Has your entity had any significant changes in key personnel or accounting system(s) in the last year? (e.g., Controller, Exec Director, Program Mgr, Accounting Mgr, etc.) If Yes, in the comment section, please identify the accounting system(s), and / or list personnel positions and identify any that are vacant.			
<u>13</u>	Does your entity have financial procedures and controls in place to accommodate a federal-aid project?			
<u>14</u>	Does your accounting system identify the receipts and expenditures of program funds separately for each award?			
<u>15</u>	Will your accounting system provide for the recording of expenditures for each award by the budget cost categories shown in the approved budget?			
<u>16</u>	Does your agency have a review process for all expenditures that will ensure that all costs are reasonable, allowable and allocated correctly to each funding source? <i>If Yes, in the comment section, please explain your current process for reviewing costs.</i>	1		
<u>17</u>	How many total FTE perform accounting functions within your organization?	<u>></u> 6	2 to 5	< 2
IM	PACT ASSESSMENT	Yes	No	N/A
<u>18</u>	For this upcoming federal award or in the immediate future, does your entity have any potential conflicts of interest* in accordance with applicable Federal awarding agency policy? If Yes, please disclose these conflicts in writing, along with supporting information, and submit with this form. (*Any practices, activities or relationships that reasonably appear to be in conflict with the full performance of the Subrecipient's obligations to the State.)			
<u>19</u>	For this award, has your entity disclosed to CDOT, in writing, violations of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting the award? <i>Response</i> options: YES = Check if have one or more violation(s) and have either disclosed previously to CDOT or as part of this form. In the comment section, list all violations with names of supporting documentation and submit with this form. NO = Check if have one or more violation(s) and have not disclosed previously or will not disclose as part of this form. Explain in the comment section. N/A = Check if have no violations.			
PR	OGRAM MANAGEMENT ASSESSMENT	Yes	No	N/A
	Does your entity have a written process/procedure or certification statement approved by your governing board ensuring critical project personnel are capable of effectively managing Federal- aid projects? <i>If Yes, please submit with this form.</i>			
<u>21</u>	Does your entity have written procurement policies or certification statement for consultant selection approved by your governing board in compliance with 23 CFR 172*? If Yes, please submit with this form. (*The Brooks Act requires agencies to promote open competition by advertising, ranking, selecting, and negotiating contracts based on demonstrated competence and qualifications, at a fair and reasonable price.)			
22	a) Is your staff familiar with the relevant CDOT manuals and federal program requirements?			
	b) Does your entity have a written policy or a certification statement approved by your governing board assuring federal-aid projects will receive adequate inspections? If Yes, please submit with this form.			
	c) Does your entity have a written process or a certification statement approved by your governing board assuring a contractor's work will be completed in conformance with approved plans and specifications? If Yes, please submit with this form.			

d) Does your entity have a written policy or certification statement approved by your governing board assuring that materials installed on the projects are sampled and tested per approved processes. If Yes, please submit with this form.			
e) Does your entity have a written policy or certification statement approved by your governing board assuring that only US manufactured steel will be incorporated into the project (Buy America requirements)? If Yes, please submit with this form.			
Comments - As needed, include the question number and provide comments related to the a Insert additional rows as needed.	above qu	uestion.	s.
By checking this box, the Executive Director, VP or Chief Financial Officer of this entity certifies that all	A CDC	τ Τοσ	ol Version:
information provided on this form is true and correct.	co	v2.0) (081816)

EXHIBIT M, OMB Uniform Guidance for Federal Awards Subject to The Office of Management and Budget Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance"), Federal Register, Vol. 78, No. 248, 78590

The agreement to which these Uniform Guidance Supplemental Provisions are attached has been funded, in whole or in part, with an award of Federal funds. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of these Supplemental Provisions, the Special Provisions, the agreement or any attachments or exhibits incorporated into and made a part of the agreement, the provisions of these Uniform Guidance Supplemental Provisions shall control. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of these Supplemental Provisions and the FFATA Supplemental Provisions, the FFATA Supplemental Provisions shall control.

- **9. Definitions.** For the purposes of these Supplemental Provisions, the following terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them below.
 - **9.1.** "Award" means an award by a Recipient to a Subrecipient funded in whole or in part by a Federal Award. The terms and conditions of the Federal Award flow down to the Award unless the terms and conditions of the Federal Award specifically indicate otherwise. 2 CFR §200.38
 - **9.2. "Federal Award"** means an award of Federal financial assistance or a cost-reimbursement contract under the Federal Acquisition Requirements by a Federal Awarding Agency to a Recipient. "Federal Award" also means an agreement setting forth the terms and conditions of the Federal Award. The term does not include payments to a contractor or payments to an individual that is a beneficiary of a Federal program.
 - **9.3. "Federal Awarding Agency"** means a Federal agency providing a Federal Award to a Recipient. 2 CFR §200.37
 - **9.4. "FFATA"** means the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (Public Law 109-282), as amended by §6202 of Public Law 110-252.
 - **9.5.** "Grant" or "Grant Agreement" means an agreement setting forth the terms and conditions of an Award. The term does not include an agreement that provides only direct Federal cash assistance to an individual, a subsidy, a loan, a loan guarantee, insurance, or acquires property or services for the direct benefit of use of the Federal Awarding Agency or Recipient. 2 CFR §200.51.
 - 9.6. "OMB" means the Executive Office of the President, Office of Management and Budget.
 - **9.7. "Recipient"** means a Colorado State department, agency or institution of higher education that receives a Federal Award from a Federal Awarding Agency to carry out an activity under a Federal program. The term does not include Subrecipients. 2 CFR §200.86
 - **9.8.** "State" means the State of Colorado, acting by and through its departments, agencies and institutions of higher education.
 - **9.9.** "Subrecipient" means a non-Federal entity receiving an Award from a Recipient to carry out part of a Federal program. The term does not include an individual who is a beneficiary of such program.
 - **9.10. "Uniform Guidance"** means the Office of Management and Budget Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, which supersedes requirements from OMB Circulars A-21, A-87, A-110, and A-122, OMB Circulars A-89, A-102, and A-133, and the guidance in Circular A-50 on Single Audit Act follow-up. The terms and conditions of the Uniform Guidance flow down to Awards to Subrecipients unless the Uniform Guidance or the terms and conditions of the Federal Award specifically indicate otherwise.
 - **9.11. "Uniform Guidance Supplemental Provisions"** means these Supplemental Provisions for Federal Awards subject to the OMB Uniform Guidance, as may be revised pursuant to ongoing guidance from relevant Federal agencies or the Colorado State Controller.
- **10.** Compliance. Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Uniform Guidance, including but not limited to these Uniform Guidance Supplemental Provisions. Any revisions to such provisions

automatically shall become a part of these Supplemental Provisions, without the necessity of either party executing any further instrument. The State of Colorado may provide written notification to Subrecipient of such revisions, but such notice shall not be a condition precedent to the effectiveness of such revisions.

11. Procurement Standards.

- **3.1 Procurement Procedures.** Subrecipient shall use its own documented procurement procedures which reflect applicable State, local, and Tribal laws and regulations, provided that the procurements conform to applicable Federal law and the standards identified in the Uniform Guidance, including without limitation, §§200.318 through 200.326 thereof.
- **3.2 Procurement of Recovered Materials**. If Subrecipient is a State Agency or an agency of a political subdivision of a state, its contractors must comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds \$10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded \$10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.
- 4. Access to Records. Subrecipient shall permit Recipient and auditors to have access to Subrecipient's records and financial statements as necessary for Recipient to meet the requirements of §200.331 (Requirements for pass-through entities), §§200.300 (Statutory and national policy requirements) through 200.309 (Period of performance), and Subpart F-Audit Requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 2 CFR §200.331(a)(5).
- 5. Single Audit Requirements. If Subrecipient expends \$750,000 or more in Federal Awards during Subrecipient's fiscal year, Subrecipient shall procure or arrange for a single or program-specific audit conducted for that year in accordance with the provisions of Subpart F-Audit Requirements of the Uniform Guidance, issued pursuant to the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, (31 U.S.C. 7501-7507). 2 CFR \$200.501.
 - 5.1 Election. Subrecipient shall have a single audit conducted in accordance with Uniform Guidance §200.514 (Scope of audit), except when it elects to have a program-specific audit conducted in accordance with §200.507 (Program-specific audits). Subrecipient may elect to have a program-specific audit if Subrecipient expends Federal Awards under only one Federal program (excluding research and development) and the Federal program's statutes, regulations, or the terms and conditions of the Federal award do not require a financial statement audit of Recipient. A program-specific audit may not be elected for research and development unless all of the Federal Awards expended were received from Recipient and Recipient approves in advance a program-specific audit.
 - **5.2 Exemption**. If Subrecipient expends less than \$750,000 in Federal Awards during its fiscal year, Subrecipient shall be exempt from Federal audit requirements for that year, except as noted in 2 CFR \$200.503 (Relation to other audit requirements), but records shall be available for review or audit by appropriate officials of the Federal agency, the State, and the Government Accountability Office.
 - **5.3 Subrecipient Compliance Responsibility**. Subrecipient shall procure or otherwise arrange for the audit required by Part F of the Uniform Guidance and ensure it is properly performed and submitted when due in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. Subrecipient shall prepare appropriate financial statements, including the schedule of expenditures of Federal awards in accordance with Uniform Guidance §200.510 (Financial statements) and provide the auditor with access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other information as needed for the auditor to perform the audit required by Uniform Guidance Part F-Audit Requirements.
- 6. Contract Provisions for Subrecipient Contracts. Subrecipient shall comply with and shall include all of the following applicable provisions in all subcontracts entered into by it pursuant to this Grant Agreement.

6.1 Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all contracts that meet the definition of "federally assisted construction contract" in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 shall include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR 60-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity" (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," and implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor."

"During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

(1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

(2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

(3) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided by the agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under section 202 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.

(4) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

(5) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the contracting agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

(6) In the event of the contractor's non-compliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

(7) The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may be directed by the Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: *Provided, however*, that in the event the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States."

4.2 Davis-Bacon Act. Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148). When required by Federal program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of \$2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-

3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction"). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week. The non-Federal entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States"). The Act provides that each contractor or Subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.

- **4.3 Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement.** If the Federal Award meets the definition of "funding agreement" under 37 CFR §401.2 (a) and Subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," Subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.
- 4.4 Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as amended. Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of \$150,000 must contain a provision that requires the non-Federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).
- 4.5 Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689). A contract award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government wide exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 Comp., p. 235), "Debarment and Suspension." SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.
- **4.6 Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352).** Contractors that apply or bid for an award exceeding \$100,000 must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-Federal award.
- 7. Certifications. Unless prohibited by Federal statutes or regulations, Recipient may require Subrecipient to submit certifications and representations required by Federal statutes or regulations on an annual basis. 2 CFR §200.208. Submission may be required more frequently if Subrecipient fails to meet a requirement of the Federal award. Subrecipient shall certify in writing to the State at the end of the Award that the project or activity was completed or the level of effort was expended. 2 CFR §200.201(3). If the required level of activity or effort was not carried out, the amount of the Award must be adjusted.
- **2. 8.Event of Default.** Failure to comply with these Uniform Guidance Supplemental Provisions shall constitute an event of default under the Grant Agreement (2 CFR §200.339) and the State may terminate the Grant upon 30

days prior written notice if the default remains uncured five calendar days following the termination of the 30 day notice period. This remedy will be in addition to any other remedy available to the State of Colorado under the Grant, at law or in equity.

9. Effective Date. The effective date of the Uniform Guidance is December 26, 2013. 2 CFR §200.110. The procurement standards set forth in Uniform Guidance §§200.317-200.326 are applicable to new Awards made by Recipient as of December 26, 2015. The standards set forth in Uniform Guidance Subpart F-Audit Requirements are applicable to audits of fiscal years beginning on or after December 26, 2014.

10. Performance Measurement

The Uniform Guidance requires completion of OMB-approved standard information collection forms (the PPR). The form focuses on outcomes, as related to the Federal Award Performance Goals that awarding Federal agencies are required to detail in the Awards.

Section 200.301 provides guidance to Federal agencies to measure performance in a way that will help the Federal awarding agency and other non-Federal entities to improve program outcomes.

The Federal awarding agency is required to provide recipients with clear performance goals, indicators, and milestones (200.210). Also, must require the recipient to relate financial data to performance accomplishments of the Federal award.

Council Agenda Summary

January 18, 2022

Key Staff Contact: Paul Trombino, Public Works Director, 970-350-9795

<u>Title:</u>

A Resolution approving an Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Greeley and the Greeley-Weld County Airport Authority

Summary:

As part of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has enacted the Airport Rescue Gram Program, with the City of Greeley (COG) being the sponsor of the Greeley-Weld County Airport Authority. Through this program, the Greeley-Weld County Airport Authority has allocated \$59,000 in grant funding for various purposes. As an airport sponsor these funds may be used for costs related to operations, personnel, cleaning, sanitization, janitorial services and debt service payments. These funds are FAA ARPA funds and not COG ARPA funds.

Fiscal Impact:

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley?		No		
If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?		\$59,000 American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funding		
What is the annual impact?		N/A		
What fund of the City will provide Funding?		N/A		
What is the source of revenue within the fund?		N/A – 100% ARPA Funding		
Is there grant funding for this item?		Yes		
If yes, does this grant require a match?		No		
Is this grant onetime or ongoing?		Onetime		
Additional Comments:	None			

Legal Issues:

None - City Attorney's Office has reviewed.

Other Issues and Considerations:

None.

<u>Strategic Work Program Item or Applicable Council Priority and Goal:</u>

Safety: Manage the health, safety and welfare in a way that promotes a sense of security and well-being for residents, businesses and visitors.

Decision Options:

- 1. Adopt the resolution as presented; or
- 2. Amend the resolution and adopt as amended; or
- 3. Deny the resolution;
- 4. Continue consideration of the resolution to a date certain

Council's Recommended Action:

A motion to adopt the Resolution.

Attachments:

Resolution Greeley-Weld County Airport Approval Letter Airport Rescue Grant Transmittal Letter Airport Rescue Grant Agreement

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO

RESOLUTION____, 2022

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPROVAL OF AN AIRPORT RESCUE GRANT AGREEMENT AND OFFER FROM THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION ("FAA") TO THE GREELEY-WELD COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, pursuant to the American Rescue Plan Act, the City of Greeley ("City"), Weld County, and the Greeley-Weld County Airport Authority ("Authority") have applied for an FAA Airport Rescue Grant ("Grant"); and

WHEREAS, the FAA has offered the Grant in the amount of \$59,000 [AIP Grant Number 3-08-0028-029-2022/Contract No. DOT-FA22NM-K1010]; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Grant is to prevent, prepare for, and respond to the coronavirus pandemic by providing funding related to operations, personnel, cleaning, sanitization, janitorial services, combating the spread of pathogens at the airport, and debt service payments; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has accepted the Grant, which will be used to pay salaries and wages of airport staff and has recommended that the City accept the Grant; and

WHEREAS, the use of the Grant will contribute to the health and safety of the citizens of the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Greeley, Colorado, as follows:

Section 1. The Grant is hereby accepted by the City.

<u>Section 2</u>. The Mayor, on behalf of the City as a sponsor of the Grant, is authorized to sign the Grant agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A approving, ratifying, and adopting the Grant application and agreeing to comply with the Grant's terms and conditions.

<u>Section 3</u>. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage, as provided by the Greeley City Charter.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS ____ DAY OF JANUARY, 2022.

ATTEST:

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO

Interim City Clerk

Mayor



City Council & Mayor Gates 1001 11th Ave Greeley, CO 80631

Description of Action Item:

As part of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) the Federal Aviation Administration has enacted the Airport Rescue Grant Program. Through this program, the Greeley-Weld County Airport Authority is allocated \$59,000.00 in grant funding for various purposes. After speaking with our FAA Airport District office, the Greeley-Weld County Airport Authority will utilize these funds to pay for salaries and wages of airport staff.

Council Options:

City Council can choose to either approve or deny the request for ARPA grant funding. The grant paperwork includes the same language and stipulations as previous grants the Council has approved in the past including the recent CARES and CRRSA act grants. A short list of stipulations for the grant include: auditing requirements, grant assurances, buy America first, etc. With the City of Greeley being a sponsor of the Greeley-Weld County Airport Authority, the city could potentially be liable for the airport's violation of the requirements of the grant. The Greeley-Weld County Airport Authority has approved the grant funding.

Recommendation:

I recommend that the City Council approve the ARPA grant funding for the Greeley-Weld County Airport Authority in the amount of \$59,000.00 from the Federal Aviation Administration.

Thank you,

Cooper Anderson, C.M. Airport Director Greeley-Weld County Airport





U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Aviation Administration

Airports Division Northwest Mountain Region Colorado, Utah, Wyoming FAA DEN ADO 26805 E 68th Ave, Suite 224 Denver, CO 80249

Airport Rescue Grant Transmittal Letter

November 17, 2021

Mr. Brett Payton Chair, Greeley-Weld County Airport Authority P.O. Box 727 Greeley, Colorado 80632

Mr. Steve Moreno, Chair Weld County Commissioners P.O. Box 758 Greeley, Colorado 80632

The Honorable John Gates, Mayor City of Greeley 1000 10th Street Greeley, Colorado 80632

Dear Mr. Payton, Chairman Moreno, and Mayor Gates:

Please find the following electronic Airport Rescue Grant Offer, Grant No. 3-08-0028-029-2022 for Greeley-Weld County Airport. This letter outlines expectations for success. Please read and follow the instructions carefully.

To properly enter into this agreement, you must do the following:

- a. The governing body must provide authority to execute the grant to the individual signing the grant; i.e., the sponsor's authorized representative.
- b. The sponsor's authorized representative must execute the grant, followed by the attorney's certification, no later than **December 17, 2021** in order for the grant to be valid.
- c. You may not make any modification to the text, terms, or conditions of the grant offer.
- d. The grant offer must be digitally signed by the sponsor's legal signatory authority and then routed via email to the sponsor's attorney. Once the attorney has digitally attested to the grant, an email with the executed grant will be sent to all parties.

Subject to the requirements in 2 CFR § 200.305, each payment request for reimbursement under this grant must be made electronically via the Delphi elnvoicing System. Please see the attached Grant Agreement for more information regarding the use of this System. The terms and conditions of this agreement require you draw down and expend these funds within four years.

An airport sponsor may use these funds for costs related to operations, personnel, cleaning, sanitization, janitorial services, combating the spread of pathogens at the airport, and debt service payments. Please refer to the Airport Rescue Grants Frequently Asked Questions for further information.

With each payment request you are required to upload an invoice summary directly to Delphi. The invoice summary should include enough detail to permit FAA to verify compliance with the American Rescue Plan Act (Public Law 117-2). Additional details or invoices may be requested by FAA during the review of your payment requests.

As part of your final payment request, you are required to include in Delphi:

- A signed SF-425, Federal Financial Report
- A signed closeout report (a sample report is available here).

Until the grant is completed and closed, you are responsible for submitting a signed and dated SF-425 annually, due 90 days after the end of each Federal fiscal year in which this grant is open (due December 31 of each year this grant is open).

As a condition of receiving Federal assistance under this award, you must comply with audit requirements as established under 2 CFR part 200. Subpart F requires non-Federal entities that expend \$750,000 or more in Federal awards to conduct a single or program specific audit for that year. Note that this includes Federal expenditures made under other Federal-assistance programs. Please take appropriate and necessary action to assure your organization will comply with applicable audit requirements and standards.

Mike Matz is the assigned program manager for this grant and is readily available to assist you and your designated representative with the requirements stated herein. If you should have any questions, please contact Mike Matz at michael.b.matz@faa.gov. The FAA sincerely values your cooperation in these efforts.

Sincerely,

John P. Bauer Manager, Denver Airports District Office



U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Aviation Administration

AIRPORT RESCUE GRANT

GRANT AGREEMENT

Part I - Offer

Federal Award Offer Date November 17, 2021			
Airport/Planning Area	Greeley-Weld County Air	port	
Airport Rescue Grant No.	3-08-0028-029-2022	[Contract No. DOT-FA22NM-K1010]	
Unique Entity Identifier	16-500-2726		

TO: Greeley-Weld County Airport Authority, County of Weld and City of Greeley, Colorado (herein called the "Sponsor") (herein called the "Sponsor") (For Co-Sponsors, list all Co-Sponsor names. The word "Sponsor" in this Grant Agreement also applies to a Co-Sponsor.)

FROM: **The United States of America** (acting through the Federal Aviation Administration, herein called the "FAA")

WHEREAS, the Sponsor has submitted to the FAA an Airport Rescue Grant Application dated September 7, 2021, for a grant of Federal funds at or associated with Greeley-Weld County Airport, which is included as part of this Airport Rescue Grant Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Sponsor has accepted the terms of FAA's Airport Rescue Grant offer;

WHEREAS, in consideration of the promises, representations and assurances provided by the Sponsor, the FAA has approved the Airport Rescue Grant Application for the Greeley-Weld County Airport, (herein called the "Grant" or "Airport Rescue Grant") consisting of the following:

This Airport Rescue Grant is provided in accordance with the American Rescue Plan Act ("ARP Act", or "the Act"), Public Law 117-2, as described below, to provide eligible Sponsors with funding for costs related to operations, personnel, cleaning, sanitization, janitorial services, combating the spread of pathogens at the airport, and debt service payments. Airport Rescue Grant amounts to specific airports are derived by legislative formula (See Section 7102 of the Act).

The purpose of this Airport Rescue Grant is to prevent, prepare for, and respond to the coronavirus pandemic. Funds provided under this Airport Rescue Grant Agreement must be used only for purposes directly related to the airport. Such purposes can include the reimbursement of an airport's operational expenses or debt service payments in accordance with the limitations prescribed in the Act. Airport Rescue Grants may be used to reimburse airport operational expenses directly related to Greeley-Weld County Airport incurred no earlier than January 20, 2020. Airport Rescue Grants also may be used to reimburse a Sponsor's payment of debt service where such payments occur on or after March 11, 2021.

Funds provided under this Airport Rescue Grant Agreement will be governed by the same principles that govern "airport revenue." New airport development projects not directly related to combating the spread of pathogens may not be funded with this Grant. Funding under this Grant for airport development projects to combat the spread of pathogens will be reallocated using an addendum to this Agreement for identified and approved projects.

NOW THEREFORE, in accordance with the applicable provisions of the ARP Act, Public Law 117-2, the representations contained in the Grant Application, and in consideration of (a) the Sponsor's acceptance of this Offer; and, (b) the benefits to accrue to the United States and the public from the accomplishment of the Grant and in compliance with the conditions as herein provided,

THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE UNITED STATES, HEREBY OFFERS AND AGREES to pay 100% percent of the allowable costs incurred as a result of and in accordance with this Grant Agreement.

Assistance Listings Number (Formerly CFDA Number): 20.106

This Offer is made on and SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

CONDITIONS

1. <u>Maximum Obligation</u>. The maximum obligation of the United States payable under this Offer is \$59,000, allocated as follows:

\$59,000 ARPA KW2022

- 2. <u>Grant Performance</u>. This Airport Rescue Grant Agreement is subject to the following Federal award requirements:
 - a. The Period of Performance:
 - Shall start on the date the Sponsor formally accepts this agreement, and is the date signed by the last Sponsor signatory to the agreement. The end date of the period of performance is 4 years (1,460 calendar days) from the date of acceptance. The period of performance end date shall not affect, relieve, or reduce Sponsor obligations and assurances that extend beyond the closeout of this Grant Agreement.
 - Means the total estimated time interval between the start of an initial Federal award and the planned end date, which may include one or more funded portions, or budget periods. (2 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) § 200.1)
 - b. The Budget Period:
 - For this Airport Rescue Grant is 4 years (1,460 calendar days). Pursuant to 2 CFR § 200.403(h), the Sponsor may charge to the Grant only allowable costs incurred during the budget period.
 - Means the time interval from the start date of a funded portion of an award to the end date of that funded portion during which the Sponsor is authorized to expend the funds awarded, including any funds carried forward or other revisions pursuant to § 200.308.
 - c. Close out and Termination.
 - 1. Unless the FAA authorizes a written extension, the Sponsor must submit all Grant closeout documentation and liquidate (pay-off) all obligations incurred under this award no later

than 120 calendar days after the end date of the period of performance. If the Sponsor does not submit all required closeout documentation within this time period, the FAA will proceed to close out the Grant within one year of the period of performance end date with the information available at the end of 120 days. (2 CFR § 200.344)

- 2. The FAA may terminate this Airport Rescue Grant, in whole or in part, in accordance with the conditions set forth in 2 CFR § 200.340, or other Federal regulatory or statutory authorities as applicable.
- 3. <u>Unallowable Costs</u>. The Sponsor shall not seek reimbursement for any costs that the FAA has determined to be unallowable under the ARP Act.
- Indirect Costs Sponsor. The Sponsor may charge indirect costs under this award by applying the indirect cost rate identified in the Grant Application as accepted by the FAA, to allowable costs for Sponsor direct salaries and wages only.
- 5. <u>Final Federal Share of Costs</u>. The United States' share of allowable Grant costs is 100%.
- 6. <u>Completing the Grant without Delay and in Conformance with Requirements</u>. The Sponsor must carry out and complete the Grant without undue delays and in accordance with this Airport Rescue Grant Agreement, the ARP Act, and the regulations, policies, standards, and procedures of the Secretary of Transportation ("Secretary"). Pursuant to 2 CFR § 200.308, the Sponsor agrees to report to the FAA any disengagement from funding eligible expenses under the Grant that exceeds three months or a 25 percent reduction in time devoted to the Grant, and request prior approval from FAA. The report must include a reason for the stoppage. The Sponsor agrees to comply with the attached assurances, which are part of this agreement and any addendum that may be attached hereto at a later date by mutual consent.
- 7. <u>Amendments or Withdrawals before Grant Acceptance</u>. The FAA reserves the right to amend or withdraw this offer at any time prior to its acceptance by the Sponsor.
- Offer Expiration Date. This offer will expire and the United States will not be obligated to pay any part of the costs unless this offer has been accepted by the Sponsor on or before December 17, 2021, or such subsequent date as may be prescribed in writing by the FAA.
- 9. Improper Use of Federal Funds. The Sponsor must take all steps, including litigation if necessary, to recover Federal funds spent fraudulently, wastefully, or in violation of Federal antitrust statutes, or misused in any other manner, including uses that violate this Airport Rescue Grant Agreement, the ARP Act, or other provision of applicable law. For the purposes of this Airport Rescue Grant Agreement, the term "Federal funds" means funds however used or dispersed by the Sponsor that were originally paid pursuant to this or any other Federal grant agreement(s). The Sponsor must return the recovered Federal share, including funds recovered by settlement, order, or judgment, to the Secretary. The Sponsor must furnish to the Secretary, upon request, all documents and records pertaining to the determination of the amount of the Federal share or to any settlement, litigation, negotiation, or other efforts taken to recover such funds. All settlements or other final positions of the Sponsor, in court or otherwise, involving the recovery of such Federal share require advance approval by the Secretary.
- 10. United States Not Liable for Damage or Injury. The United States is not responsible or liable for damage to property or injury to persons which may arise from, or relate to this Airport Rescue Grant Agreement, including, but not limited to, any action taken by a Sponsor related to or arising from, directly or indirectly, this Airport Rescue Grant Agreement.

11. System for Award Management (SAM) Registration and Unique Entity Identifier (UEI).

- a. Requirement for System for Award Management (SAM): Unless the Sponsor is exempted from this requirement under 2 CFR 25.110, the Sponsor must maintain the currency of its information in SAM until the Sponsor submits the final financial report required under this Grant, or receives the final payment, whichever is later. This requires that the Sponsor review and update the information at least annually after the initial registration and more frequently if required by changes in information or another award term. Additional information about registration procedures may be found at the SAM website (currently at http://www.sam.gov).
- Unique entity identifier (UEI) means a 12-character alpha-numeric value used to identify a specific commercial, nonprofit, or governmental entity. A UEI may be obtained from SAM.gov at <u>https://sam.gov/SAM/pages/public/index.jsf</u>.
- 12. <u>Electronic Grant Payment(s)</u>. Unless otherwise directed by the FAA, the Sponsor must make each payment request under this agreement electronically via the Delphi elnvoicing System for Department of Transportation (DOT) Financial Assistance Awardees.
- **13.** <u>Air and Water Quality</u>. The Sponsor is required to comply with all applicable air and water quality standards for all projects in this grant. If the Sponsor fails to comply with this requirement, the FAA may suspend, cancel, or terminate this Agreement.
- 14. <u>Financial Reporting and Payment Requirements</u>. The Sponsor will comply with all Federal financial reporting requirements and payment requirements, including submittal of timely and accurate reports.
- **15.** <u>Buy American</u>. Unless otherwise approved in advance by the FAA, in accordance with 49 United States Code (U.S.C.) § 50101, the Sponsor will not acquire or permit any contractor or subcontractor to acquire any steel or manufactured goods produced outside the United States to be used for any project for which funds are provided under this grant. The Sponsor will include a provision implementing Buy American in every contract.

16. Audits for Sponsors.

PUBLIC SPONSORS. The Sponsor must provide for a Single Audit or program-specific audit in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200. The Sponsor must submit the audit reporting package to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse on the Federal Audit Clearinghouse's Internet Data Entry System at http://harvester.census.gov/facweb/. Upon request of the FAA, the Sponsor shall provide one copy of the completed audit to the FAA.

- **17.** <u>Suspension or Debarment</u>. When entering into a "covered transaction" as defined by 2 CFR § 180.200, the Sponsor must:
 - a. Verify the non-Federal entity is eligible to participate in this Federal program by:
 - Checking the excluded parties list system (EPLS) as maintained within the System for Award Management (SAM) to determine if the non-Federal entity is excluded or disqualified; or
 - 2. Collecting a certification statement from the non-Federal entity attesting the entity is not excluded or disqualified from participating; or
 - 3. Adding a clause or condition to covered transactions attesting the individual or firm is not excluded or disqualified from participating.

- b. Require prime contractors to comply with 2 CFR § 180.330 when entering into lower-tier transactions (e.g., subcontracts).
- c. Immediately disclose to the FAA whenever the Sponsor (1) learns the Sponsor has entered into a covered transaction with an ineligible entity, or (2) suspends or debars a contractor, person, or entity.

18. Ban on Texting While Driving.

- a. In accordance with Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving, October 1, 2009, and DOT Order 3902.10, Text Messaging While Driving, December 30, 2009, the Sponsor is encouraged to:
 - 1. Adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text messaging while driving when performing any work for, or on behalf of, the Federal government, including work relating to this Airport Rescue Grant or subgrant funded by this Grant.
 - 2. Conduct workplace safety initiatives in a manner commensurate with the size of the business, such as:
 - A. Establishment of new rules and programs or re-evaluation of existing programs to prohibit text messaging while driving; and
 - B. Education, awareness, and other outreach to employees about the safety risks associated with texting while driving.
- b. The Sponsor must insert the substance of this clause on banning texting while driving in all subgrants, contracts, and subcontracts funded by this Airport Rescue Grant.

19. Trafficking in Persons.

- a. You as the recipient, your employees, subrecipients under this Airport Rescue Grant, and subrecipients' employees may not
 - 1. Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the award is in effect;
 - 2. Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is in effect; or
 - 3. Use forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under the Airport Rescue Grant.
- b. The FAA as the Federal awarding agency may unilaterally terminate this award, without penalty, if you or a subrecipient that is a private entity
 - 1. Is determined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph a. of this Airport Rescue Grant Agreement term; or
 - 2. Has an employee who is determined by the agency official authorized to terminate the Airport Rescue Grant Agreement to have violated a prohibition in paragraph a. of this Airport Rescue Grant term through conduct that is either
 - A. Associated with performance under this Airport Rescue Grant; or
 - B. Imputed to the subrecipient using the standards and due process for imputing the conduct of an individual to an organization that are provided in 2 CFR Part 180, "OMB

Guidelines to Agencies on Government-wide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement)," as implemented by the FAA at 2 CFR Part 1200.

- c. You must inform us immediately of any information you receive from any source alleging a violation of a prohibition in paragraph a. of this Grant condition during this Airport Rescue Grant Agreement.
- d. Our right to terminate unilaterally that is described in paragraph a. of this Grant condition:
 - 1. Implements section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA), as amended (22 U.S.C. § 7104(g)), and
 - 2. Is in addition to all other remedies for noncompliance that are available to the FAA under this Airport Rescue Grant.

20. Employee Protection from Reprisal.

- a. Prohibition of Reprisals -
 - 1. In accordance with 41 U.S.C. § 4712, an employee of a grantee or subgrantee may not be discharged, demoted, or otherwise discriminated against as a reprisal for disclosing to a person or body described in sub-paragraph (a)(2) of this Grant condition, information that the employee reasonably believes is evidence of:
 - a. Gross mismanagement of a Federal grant;
 - b. Gross waste of Federal funds;
 - c. An abuse of authority relating to implementation or use of Federal funds;
 - d. A substantial and specific danger to public health or safety; or
 - e. A violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a Federal grant.
 - 2. Persons and bodies covered: The persons and bodies to which a disclosure by an employee is covered are as follows:
 - a. A member of Congress or a representative of a committee of Congress;
 - b. An Inspector General;
 - c. The Government Accountability Office;
 - d. A Federal employee responsible for oversight or management of a grant program at the relevant agency;
 - e. A court or grand jury;
 - f. A management official or other employee of the Sponsor, contractor, or subcontractor who has the responsibility to investigate, discover, or address misconduct; or
 - g. An authorized official of the Department of Justice or other law enforcement agency.
 - Submission of Complaint A person who believes that they have been subjected to a reprisal prohibited by paragraph a. of this Airport Rescue Grant Agreement may submit a complaint regarding the reprisal to the Office of Inspector General (OIG) for the U.S. Department of Transportation.
 - 4. Time Limitation for Submittal of a Complaint A complaint may not be brought under this subsection more than three years after the date on which the alleged reprisal took place.
 - 5. Required Actions of the Inspector General Actions, limitations, and exceptions of the Inspector General's office are established under 41 U.S.C. § 4712(b).
- 6. Assumption of Rights to Civil Remedy Upon receipt of an explanation of a decision not to conduct or continue an investigation by the Office of Inspector General, the person submitting a complaint assumes the right to a civil remedy under 41 U.S.C. § 4712(c).
- **21.** <u>Co-Sponsor</u>. The Co-Sponsors understand and agree that they jointly and severally adopt and ratify the representations and assurances contained herein and that the word "Sponsor" as used in the application and other assurances is deemed to include all co-sponsors.
- 22. <u>Limitations</u>. Nothing provided herein shall be construed to limit, cancel, annul, or modify the terms of any Federal grant agreement(s), including all terms and assurances related thereto, that have been entered into by the Sponsor and the FAA prior to the date of this Airport Rescue Grant Agreement.
- 23. <u>Face Coverings Policy</u>. The sponsor agrees to implement a face-covering (mask) policy to combat the spread of pathogens. This policy must include a requirement that all persons wear a mask, in accordance with Centers for Disease Control (CDC) and Transportation Security Administration (TSA) requirements, as applicable, at all times while in all public areas of the airport property, except to the extent exempted under those requirements. This special condition requires the airport sponsor continue to require masks until <u>Executive Order 13998</u>, <u>Promoting COVID-19 Safety in Domestic and International Travel</u>, is no longer effective.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS FOR USE OF AIRPORT RESCUE GRANT FUNDS

CONDITIONS FOR EQUIPMENT -

- 1. <u>Equipment or Vehicle Replacement</u>. The Sponsor agrees that when using funds provided by this Grant to replace equipment, the proceeds from the trade-in or sale of such replaced equipment shall be classified and used as airport revenue.
- 2. <u>Equipment Acquisition</u>. The Sponsor agrees that for any equipment acquired with funds provided by this Grant, such equipment shall be used solely for purposes directly related to combating the spread of pathogens at the airport.
- **3.** <u>Low Emission Systems</u>. The Sponsor agrees that vehicles and equipment acquired with funds provided in this Grant:
 - a. Will be maintained and used at the airport for which they were purchased; and
 - b. Will not be transferred, relocated, or used at another airport without the advance consent of the FAA.

The Sponsor further agrees that it will maintain annual records on individual vehicles and equipment, project expenditures, cost effectiveness, and emission reductions.

CONDITIONS FOR UTILITIES AND LAND -

- 4. <u>Utilities Proration</u>. For purposes of computing the United States' share of the allowable airport operations and maintenance costs, the allowable cost of utilities incurred by the Sponsor to operate and maintain airport(s) included in the Grant must not exceed the percent attributable to the capital or operating costs of the airport.
- 5. Utility Relocation in Grant. The Sponsor understands and agrees that:

- a. The United States will not participate in the cost of any utility relocation unless and until the Sponsor has submitted evidence satisfactory to the FAA that the Sponsor is legally responsible for payment of such costs;
- b. FAA participation is limited to those utilities located on-airport or off-airport only where the Sponsor has an easement for the utility; and
- c. The utilities must serve a purpose directly related to the Airport.

The Sponsor's acceptance of this Offer and ratification and adoption of the Airport Rescue Grant Application incorporated herein shall be evidenced by execution of this instrument by the Sponsor. The Offer and Acceptance shall comprise an Airport Rescue Grant Agreement, as provided by the ARP Act, constituting the contractual obligations and rights of the United States and the Sponsor with respect to this Grant. The effective date of this Airport Rescue Grant Agreement is the date of the Sponsor's acceptance of this Offer.

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or sign documents electronically. If you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and withdraw your consent at any time.

Dated November 17, 2021

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION

Nov 17, 2021 11:30 MST) (Signature)

John P. Bauer

(Typed Name)

Manager, Denver Airports District Office

(Title of FAA Official)

The Sponsor does hereby ratify and adopt all assurances, statements, representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements contained in the Project Application and incorporated materials referred to in the foregoing Offer, and does hereby accept this Offer and by such acceptance agrees to comply with all of the Grant Assurances, terms, and conditions in this Offer and in the Project Application.

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or sign documents electronically. If you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and withdraw your consent at any time.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.¹

Dated November 17, 2021

GREELEY-WELD COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

(Name of Sponsor)

Brett Payton Brett Payton (Nov 17, 2021 12:11 MST)

(Signature of Sponsor's Authorized Official)

By: Brett Payton

(Typed Name of Sponsor's Authorized Official)

Title: Chairman

(Title of Sponsor's Authorized Official)

Attested By:

<u>گ در ۲۰۱۸</u> Darrel Dilley (Nov 23, 2021 17:26 MST)

(Signature of Sponsor's Attestation)

Darrel Dilley

(Typed Name of Sponsor's Attestation)

Secretary/ Treasure

(Title of Sponsor's Attestation)

¹ Knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federal government is a violation of 18 U.S.C. Section 1001 (False Statements) and could subject you to fines, imprisonment, or both.

١,

CERTIFICATE OF SPONSOR'S ATTORNEY

, acting as Attorney for the Sponsor do hereby certify:

That in my opinion the Sponsor is empowered to enter into the foregoing Grant Agreement under the laws of the State of Colorado. Further, I have examined the foregoing Grant Agreement and the actions taken by said Sponsor and Sponsor's official representative has been duly authorized and that the execution thereof is in all respects due and proper and in accordance with the laws of the said State and the ARP Act. The Sponsor understands funding made available under this Grant Agreement may only be used for costs related to operations, personnel, cleaning, sanitization, janitorial services, and combating the spread of pathogens at the airport incurred on or after January 20, 2020, or for debt service payments that are due on or after March 11, 2021. Further, it is my opinion the foregoing Grant Agreement constitutes a legal and binding obligation of the Sponsor in accordance with the terms thereof.

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or sign documents electronically. If you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and withdraw your consent at any time.

Dated at

By:

(Signature of Sponsor's Attorney)

The Sponsor does hereby ratify and adopt all assurances, statements, representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements contained in the Airport Recue Grant Application and incorporated materials referred to in the foregoing Offer under Part I of this Airport Rescue Grant Agreement, and does hereby accept this Offer and by such acceptance agrees to comply with all of the terms and conditions in this Offer and in the Airport Rescue Grant Application and all applicable terms and conditions provided for in the ARP Act and other applicable provisions of Federal law.

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or sign documents electronically. If you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and withdraw your consent at any time.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed this

COUNTY OF WELD, COLORADO

(Name of Sponsor)

(Signature of Sponsor's Designative Official/Representative)

By:

(Type Name of Sponsor's Designative Official/Representative)

Title:

(Title of Sponsor's Designative Official/Representative)

¹ Knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federal government is a violation of 18 U.S.C. Section 1001 (False Statements) and could subject you to fines, imprisonment, or both.

١,

CERTIFICATE OF SPONSOR'S ATTORNEY

, acting as Attorney for the Sponsor do hereby certify:

That in my opinion the Sponsor is empowered to enter into the foregoing Grant Agreement under the laws of the State of Colorado. Further, I have examined the foregoing Grant Agreement and the actions taken by said Sponsor and Sponsor's official representative has been duly authorized and that the execution thereof is in all respects due and proper and in accordance with the laws of the said State and the ARP Act. The Sponsor understands funding made available under this Grant Agreement may only be used for costs related to operations, personnel, cleaning, sanitization, janitorial services, and combating the spread of pathogens at the airport incurred on or after January 20, 2020 or for debt service payments that are due on or after March 11, 2021. Further, it is my opinion the foregoing Grant Agreement constitutes a legal and binding obligation of the Sponsor in accordance with the terms thereof.

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or sign documents electronically. If you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and withdraw your consent at any time.

Dated at

By:

(Signature of Sponsor's Attorney)

The Sponsor does hereby ratify and adopt all assurances, statements, representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements contained in the Airport Recue Grant Application and incorporated materials referred to in the foregoing Offer under Part I of this Airport Rescue Grant Agreement, and does hereby accept this Offer and by such acceptance agrees to comply with all of the terms and conditions in this Offer and in the Airport Rescue Grant Application and all applicable terms and conditions provided for in the ARP Act and other applicable provisions of Federal law.

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or sign documents electronically. If you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and withdraw your consent at any time.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed this

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO

(Name of Sponsor)

(Signature of Sponsor's Designative Official/Representative)

By:

(Type Name of Sponsor's Designative Official/Representative)

Title:

(Title of Sponsor's Designative Official/Representative)

¹ Knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federal government is a violation of 18 U.S.C. Section 1001 (False Statements) and could subject you to fines, imprisonment, or both.

١,

CERTIFICATE OF SPONSOR'S ATTORNEY

, acting as Attorney for the Sponsor do hereby certify:

That in my opinion the Sponsor is empowered to enter into the foregoing Grant Agreement under the laws of the State of Colorado. Further, I have examined the foregoing Grant Agreement and the actions taken by said Sponsor and Sponsor's official representative has been duly authorized and that the execution thereof is in all respects due and proper and in accordance with the laws of the said State and the ARP Act. The Sponsor understands funding made available under this Grant Agreement may only be used for costs related to operations, personnel, cleaning, sanitization, janitorial services, and combating the spread of pathogens at the airport incurred on or after January 20, 2020 or for debt service payments that are due on or after March 11, 2021. Further, it is my opinion the foregoing Grant Agreement constitutes a legal and binding obligation of the Sponsor in accordance with the terms thereof.

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or sign documents electronically. If you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and withdraw your consent at any time.

Dated at

By:

(Signature of Sponsor's Attorney)

AIRPORT RESCUE GRANT ASSURANCES AIRPORT SPONSORS

A. General.

- These Airport Rescue Grant Assurances are required to be submitted as part of the application by sponsors requesting funds under the provisions of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 ("ARP Act," or "the Act"), Public Law 117-2. As used herein, the term "public agency sponsor" means a public agency with control of a public-use airport; the term "private sponsor" means a private owner of a public-use airport; and the term "sponsor" includes both public agency sponsors and private sponsors.
- 2. Upon acceptance of this Airport Rescue Grant offer by the sponsor, these assurances are incorporated into and become part of this Airport Rescue Grant Agreement.

B. Sponsor Certification.

The sponsor hereby assures and certifies, with respect to this Airport Rescue Grant that:

It will comply with all applicable Federal laws, regulations, executive orders, policies, guidelines, and requirements as they relate to the application, acceptance, and use of Federal funds for this Airport Rescue Grant including but not limited to the following:

FEDERAL LEGISLATION

- a. 49 U.S.C. Chapter 471, as applicable
- b. Davis-Bacon Act 40 U.S.C. 276(a), et. seq.
- c. Federal Fair Labor Standards Act 29 U.S.C. 201, et. seq.
- d. Hatch Act 5 U.S.C. 1501, <u>et. seq.²</u>
- e. Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 Title 42 U.S.C. 4601, <u>et. seq.</u>
- f. National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 Section 106 16 U.S.C. 470(f).
- g. Archeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 16 U.S.C. 469 through 469c.
- h. Native Americans Grave Repatriation Act 25 U.S.C. Section 3001, et. seq.
- i. Clean Air Act, P.L. 90-148, as amended.
- j. Coastal Zone Management Act, P.L. 93-205, as amended.
- k. Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 Section 102(a) 42 U.S.C. 4012a.
- I. Title 49, U.S.C., Section 303, (formerly known as Section 4(f)).
- m. Rehabilitation Act of 1973 29 U.S.C. 794.
- n. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin).
- o. Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.), prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability).
- p. Age Discrimination Act of 1975 42 U.S.C. 6101, et. seq.
- q. American Indian Religious Freedom Act, P.L. 95-341, as amended.

- r. Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 42 U.S.C. 4151, et. seq.
- s. Power plant and Industrial Fuel Use Act of 1978 Section 403- 2 U.S.C. 8373.
- t. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 40 U.S.C. 327, et. seq.
- u. Copeland Anti-kickback Act 18 U.S.C. 874.1.
- v. National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 42 U.S.C. 4321, et. seq.
- w. Wild and Scenic Rivers Act, P.L. 90-542, as amended.
- x. Single Audit Act of 1984 31 U.S.C. 7501, et. seq.²
- y. Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 41 U.S.C. 702 through 706.
- z. The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006, as amended (Pub. L. 109-282, as amended by section 6202 of Pub. L. 110-252).

EXECUTIVE ORDERS

- a. Executive Order 11246 Equal Employment Opportunity
- b. Executive Order 11990 Protection of Wetlands
- c. Executive Order 11998 Flood Plain Management
- d. Executive Order 12372 Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs
- e. Executive Order 12699 Seismic Safety of Federal and Federally Assisted New Building Construction
- f. Executive Order 12898 Environmental Justice
- g. Executive Order 14005 Ensuring the Future Is Made in All of America by All of America's Workers.

FEDERAL REGULATIONS

- a. 2 CFR Part 180 OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement).
- b. 2 CFR Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.^{3, 4}
- c. 2 CFR Part 1200 Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment.
- d. 28 CFR Part 35 Discrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government Services.
- e. 28 CFR § 50.3 U.S. Department of Justice Guidelines for Enforcement of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.
- f. 29 CFR Part 1 Procedures for predetermination of wage rates.¹
- g. 29 CFR Part 3 Contractors and subcontractors on public building or public work financed in whole or part by loans or grants from the United States. ¹
- h. 29 CFR Part 5 Labor standards provisions applicable to contracts covering Federally financed and assisted construction (also labor standards provisions applicable to non-construction contracts subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act).¹

- i. 41 CFR Part 60 Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor (Federal and Federally assisted contracting requirements).¹
- j. 49 CFR Part 20 New restrictions on lobbying.
- k. 49 CFR Part 21 Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.
- I. 49 CFR Part 23 Participation by Disadvantage Business Enterprise in Airport Concessions.
- m. 49 CFR Part 26 Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Program.
- n. 49 CFR Part 27 Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance.¹
- o. 49 CFR Part 28 Enforcement of Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs or Activities conducted by the Department of Transportation.
- p. 49 CFR Part 30 Denial of public works contracts to suppliers of goods and services of countries that deny procurement market access to U.S. contractors.
- q. 49 CFR Part 32 Government-wide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Financial Assistance).
- r. 49 CFR Part 37 Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA).
- s. 49 CFR Part 41 Seismic safety of Federal and Federally assisted or regulated new building construction.

FOOTNOTES TO AIRPORT RESCUE GRANT ASSURANCE B

- ¹ These laws do not apply to airport planning sponsors.
- ² These laws do not apply to private sponsors.
- ³ Cost principles established in 2 CFR Part 200 subpart E must be used as guidelines for determining the eligibility of specific types of expenses.
- ⁴ Audit requirements established in 2 CFR Part 200 subpart F are the guidelines for audits.

SPECIFIC ASSURANCES

Specific assurances required to be included in grant agreements by any of the above laws, regulations, or circulars are incorporated by reference in this Grant Agreement.

1. Purpose Directly Related to the Airport

It certifies that the reimbursement sought is for a purpose directly related to the airport.

2. Responsibility and Authority of the Sponsor.

a. Public Agency Sponsor:

It has legal authority to apply for this Grant, and to finance and carry out the proposed grant; that an official decision has been made by the applicant's governing body authorizing the filing of the application, including all understandings and assurances contained therein, and directing and authorizing the person identified as the official representative of the applicant to act in connection with the application and to provide such additional information as may be required.

b. Private Sponsor:

It has legal authority to apply for this Grant and to finance and carry out the proposed Grant and comply with all terms, conditions, and assurances of this Grant Agreement. It shall designate an official representative and shall in writing direct and authorize that person to file this application, including all understandings and assurances contained therein; to act in connection with this application; and to provide such additional information as may be required.

3. Good Title.

It, a public agency or the Federal government, holds good title, satisfactory to the Secretary, to the landing area of the airport or site thereof, or will give assurance satisfactory to the Secretary that good title will be acquired.

4. Preserving Rights and Powers.

- a. It will not take or permit any action which would operate to deprive it of any of the rights and powers necessary to perform any or all of the terms, conditions, and assurances in this Grant Agreement without the written approval of the Secretary, and will act promptly to acquire, extinguish, or modify any outstanding rights or claims of right of others which would interfere with such performance by the sponsor. This shall be done in a manner acceptable to the Secretary.
- b. If the sponsor is a private sponsor, it will take steps satisfactory to the Secretary to ensure that the airport will continue to function as a public-use airport in accordance with this Grant Agreement.
- c. If an arrangement is made for management and operation of the airport by any agency or person other than the sponsor or an employee of the sponsor, the sponsor will reserve sufficient rights and authority to insure that the airport will be operated and maintained in accordance Title 49, United States Code, the regulations, and the terms and conditions of this Grant Agreement.

5. Consistency with Local Plans.

Any project undertaken by this Grant Agreement is reasonably consistent with plans (existing at the time of submission of the Airport Rescue Grant application) of public agencies that are authorized by the State in which the project is located to plan for the development of the area surrounding the airport.

6. Consideration of Local Interest.

It has given fair consideration to the interest of communities in or near where any project undertaken by this Grant Agreement may be located.

7. Consultation with Users.

In making a decision to undertake any airport development project undertaken by this Grant Agreement, it has undertaken reasonable consultations with affected parties using the airport at which project is proposed.

8. Pavement Preventative Maintenance.

With respect to a project undertaken by this Grant Agreement for the replacement or reconstruction of pavement at the airport, it assures or certifies that it has implemented an effective airport pavement maintenance-management program and it assures that it will use such program for the useful life of any pavement constructed, reconstructed, or repaired with Federal

financial assistance at the airport, including Airport Rescue Grant funds provided under this Grant Agreement. It will provide such reports on pavement condition and pavement management programs as the Secretary determines may be useful.

9. Accounting System, Audit, and Record Keeping Requirements.

- a. It shall keep all Grant accounts and records which fully disclose the amount and disposition by the recipient of the proceeds of this Grant, the total cost of the Grant in connection with which this Grant is given or used, and the amount or nature of that portion of the cost of the Grant supplied by other sources, and such other financial records pertinent to the Grant. The accounts and records shall be kept in accordance with an accounting system that will facilitate an effective audit in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984.
- b. It shall make available to the Secretary and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives, for the purpose of audit and examination, any books, documents, papers, and records of the recipient that are pertinent to this Grant. The Secretary may require that an appropriate audit be conducted by a recipient. In any case in which an independent audit is made of the accounts of a sponsor relating to the disposition of the proceeds of a Grant or relating to the Grant in connection with which this Grant was given or used, it shall file a certified copy of such audit with the Comptroller General of the United States not later than six (6) months following the close of the fiscal year for which the audit was made.

10. Minimum Wage Rates.

It shall include, in all contracts in excess of \$2,000 for work on the airport funded under this Grant Agreement which involve labor, provisions establishing minimum rates of wages, to be predetermined by the Secretary of Labor, in accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 276a-276a-5), which contractors shall pay to skilled and unskilled labor, and such minimum rates shall be stated in the invitation for bids and shall be included in proposals or bids for the work.

11. Veteran's Preference.

It shall include in all contracts for work on any airport development project funded under this Grant Agreement which involve labor, such provisions as are necessary to insure that, in the employment of labor (except in executive, administrative, and supervisory positions), preference shall be given to Vietnam-era veterans, Persian Gulf veterans, Afghanistan-Iraq war veterans, disabled veterans, and small business concerns owned and controlled by disabled veterans as defined in Section 47112 of Title 49, United States Code. However, this preference shall apply only where the individuals are available and qualified to perform the work to which the employment relates.

12. Operation and Maintenance.

a. The airport and all facilities which are necessary to serve the aeronautical users of the airport, other than facilities owned or controlled by the United States, shall be operated at all times in a safe and serviceable condition and in accordance with the minimum standards as may be required or prescribed by applicable Federal, State, and local agencies for maintenance and operation. It will not cause or permit any activity or action thereon which would interfere with its use for airport purposes. It will suitably operate and maintain the airport and all facilities thereon or connected therewith, with due regard to climatic and flood conditions. Any proposal to temporarily close the airport for non-aeronautical purposes must first be approved by the Secretary. In furtherance of this assurance, the sponsor will have in effect arrangements for:

- 1. Operating the airport's aeronautical facilities whenever required;
- 2. Promptly marking and lighting hazards resulting from airport conditions, including temporary conditions; and
- 3. Promptly notifying airmen of any condition affecting aeronautical use of the airport. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to require that the airport be operated for aeronautical use during temporary periods when snow, flood, or other climatic conditions interfere with such operation and maintenance. Further, nothing herein shall be construed as requiring the maintenance, repair, restoration, or replacement of any structure or facility which is substantially damaged or destroyed due to an act of God or other condition or circumstance beyond the control of the sponsor.
- b. It will suitably operate and maintain noise compatibility program items that it owns or controls upon which Federal funds have been expended.

13. Hazard Removal and Mitigation.

It will take appropriate action to assure that such terminal airspace as is required to protect instrument and visual operations to the airport (including established minimum flight altitudes) will be adequately cleared and protected by removing, lowering, relocating, marking, or lighting or otherwise mitigating existing airport hazards and by preventing the establishment or creation of future airport hazards.

14. Compatible Land Use.

It will take appropriate action, to the extent reasonable, including the adoption of zoning laws, to restrict the use of land adjacent to or in the immediate vicinity of the airport to activities and purposes compatible with normal airport operations, including landing and takeoff of aircraft.

15. Exclusive Rights.

The sponsor shall not grant an exclusive right to use an air navigation facility on which this Grant has been expended. However, providing services at an airport by only one fixed-based operator is not an exclusive right if—

- a. it is unreasonably costly, burdensome, or impractical for more than one fixed-based operator to provide the services; and
- b. allowing more than one fixed-based operator to provide the services requires a reduction in space leased under an agreement existing on September 3, 1982, between the operator and the airport.

16. Airport Revenues.

- a. This Grant shall be available for any purpose for which airport revenues may lawfully be used to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus. Funds provided under this Airport Rescue Grant Agreement will only be expended for the capital or operating costs of the airport; the local airport system; or other local facilities which are owned or operated by the owner or operator of the airport(s) subject to this agreement and all applicable addendums for costs related to operations, personnel, cleaning, sanitization, janitorial services, combating the spread of pathogens at the airport, and debt service payments as prescribed in the Act.
- b. For airport development, 49 U.S.C. § 47133 applies.

17. Reports and Inspections.

It will:

- a. submit to the Secretary such annual or special financial and operations reports as the Secretary may reasonably request and make such reports available to the public; make available to the public at reasonable times and places a report of the airport budget in a format prescribed by the Secretary;
- b. in a format and time prescribed by the Secretary, provide to the Secretary and make available to the public following each of its fiscal years, an annual report listing in detail:
 - 1. all amounts paid by the airport to any other unit of government and the purposes for which each such payment was made; and
 - 2. all services and property provided by the airport to other units of government and the amount of compensation received for provision of each such service and property.

18. Land for Federal Facilities.

It will furnish without cost to the Federal Government for use in connection with any air traffic control or air navigation activities, or weather-reporting and communication activities related to air traffic control, any areas of land or water, or estate therein, or rights in buildings of the sponsor as the Secretary considers necessary or desirable for construction, operation, and maintenance at Federal expense of space or facilities for such purposes. Such areas or any portion thereof will be made available as provided herein within four months after receipt of a written request from the Secretary.

19. Airport Layout Plan.

- a. Subject to the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2018, Public Law 115-254, Section 163, it will keep up to date at all times an airport layout plan of the airport showing:
 - boundaries of the airport and all proposed additions thereto, together with the boundaries of all offsite areas owned or controlled by the sponsor for airport purposes and proposed additions thereto;
 - 2. the location and nature of all existing and proposed airport facilities and structures (such as runways, taxiways, aprons, terminal buildings, hangars and roads), including all proposed extensions and reductions of existing airport facilities;
 - 3. the location of all existing and proposed non-aviation areas and of all existing improvements thereon; and
 - 4. all proposed and existing access points used to taxi aircraft across the airport's property boundary. Such airport layout plans and each amendment, revision, or modification thereof, shall be subject to the approval of the Secretary which approval shall be evidenced by the signature of a duly authorized representative of the Secretary on the face of the airport layout plan. The sponsor will not make or permit any changes or alterations in the airport or any of its facilities which are not in conformity with the airport layout plan as approved by the Secretary and which might, in the opinion of the Secretary, adversely affect the safety, utility or efficiency of the airport.
- b. Subject to the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2018, Public Law 115-254, Section 163, if a change or alteration in the airport or the facilities is made which the Secretary determines adversely affects the safety, utility, or efficiency of any federally owned, leased, or funded property on or

off the airport and which is not in conformity with the airport layout plan as approved by the Secretary, the owner or operator will, if requested, by the Secretary (1) eliminate such adverse effect in a manner approved by the Secretary; or (2) bear all costs of relocating such property (or replacement thereof) to a site acceptable to the Secretary and all costs of restoring such property (or replacement thereof) to the level of safety, utility, efficiency, and cost of operation existing before the unapproved change in the airport or its facilities except in the case of a relocation or replacement of an existing airport facility due to a change in the Secretary's design standards beyond the control of the airport sponsor.

20. Civil Rights.

It will promptly take any measures necessary to ensure that no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in any activity conducted with, or benefiting from, funds received from this Grant.

- Using the definitions of activity, facility, and program as found and defined in §§ 21.23 (b) and 21.23 (e) of 49 CFR Part 21, the sponsor will facilitate all programs, operate all facilities, or conduct all programs in compliance with all non-discrimination requirements imposed by or pursuant to these assurances.
- b. Applicability
 - 1. Programs and Activities. If the sponsor has received a grant (or other Federal assistance) for any of the sponsor's program or activities, these requirements extend to all of the sponsor's programs and activities.
 - 2. Facilities. Where it receives a grant or other Federal financial assistance to construct, expand, renovate, remodel, alter, or acquire a facility, or part of a facility, the assurance extends to the entire facility and facilities operated in connection therewith.
 - 3. Real Property. Where the sponsor receives a grant or other Federal financial assistance in the form of, or for the acquisition of, real property or an interest in real property, the assurance will extend to rights to space on, over, or under such property.
- c. Duration

The sponsor agrees that it is obligated to this assurance for the period during which Federal financial assistance is extended to the program, except where the Federal financial assistance is to provide, or is in the form of, personal property, or real property, or interest therein, or structures or improvements thereon, in which case the assurance obligates the sponsor, or any transferee for the longer of the following periods:

- 1. So long as the airport is used as an airport, or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits; or
- 2. So long as the sponsor retains ownership or possession of the property.
- d. Required Solicitation Language

It will include the following notification in all solicitations for bids, Requests for Proposals for work, or material under this Grant and in all proposals for agreements, including airport concessions, regardless of funding source:

"Greeley-Weld County Airport Authority, County of Weld and City of Greeley, Colorado, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C.

§§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that for any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises and airport concession disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for an award."

- e. Required Contract Provisions.
 - It will insert the non-discrimination contract clauses requiring compliance with the acts and regulations relative to non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the DOT, and incorporating the acts and regulations into the contracts by reference in every contract or agreement subject to the non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the DOT Acts and regulations.
 - 2. It will include a list of the pertinent non-discrimination authorities in every contract that is subject to the non-discrimination acts and regulations.
 - 3. It will insert non-discrimination contract clauses as a covenant running with the land, in any deed from the United States effecting or recording a transfer of real property, structures, use, or improvements thereon or interest therein to a sponsor.
 - 4. It will insert non-discrimination contract clauses prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, creed, sex, age, or handicap as a covenant running with the land, in any future deeds, leases, license, permits, or similar instruments entered into by the sponsor with other parties:
 - A. For the subsequent transfer of real property acquired or improved under the applicable activity, grant, or program; and
 - B. For the construction or use of, or access to, space on, over, or under real property acquired or improved under the applicable activity, grant, or program.
 - C. It will provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found by the Secretary to give reasonable guarantee that it, other recipients, sub-recipients, sub-grantees, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, transferees, successors in interest, and other participants of Federal financial assistance under such program will comply with all requirements imposed or pursuant to the acts, the regulations, and this assurance.
 - D. It agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to any matter arising under the acts, the regulations, and this assurance.

21. Foreign Market Restrictions.

It will not allow funds provided under this Grant to be used to fund any activity that uses any product or service of a foreign country during the period in which such foreign country is listed by the United States Trade Representative as denying fair and equitable market opportunities for products and suppliers of the United States in procurement and construction.

22. Policies, Standards and Specifications.

It will carry out any project funded under an Airport Rescue Grant in accordance with policies, standards, and specifications approved by the Secretary including, but not limited to, current FAA Advisory Circulars for AIP projects, as of September 7, 2021.

23. Access By Intercity Buses.

The airport owner or operator will permit, to the maximum extent practicable, intercity buses or other modes of transportation to have access to the airport; however, it has no obligation to fund special facilities for intercity buses or for other modes of transportation.

24. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises.

The sponsor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the award and performance of any DOT-assisted contract covered by 49 CFR Part 26, or in the award and performance of any concession activity contract covered by 49 CFR Part 23. In addition, the sponsor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the administration of its Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) and Airport Concessions Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (ACDBE) programs or the requirements of 49 CFR Parts 23 and 26. The sponsor shall take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Parts 23 and 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts, and/or concession contracts. The sponsor's DBE and ACDBE programs, as required by 49 CFR Parts 26 and 23, and as approved by DOT, are incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation of these programs is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this agreement. Upon notification to the sponsor of its failure to carry out its approved program, the Department may impose sanctions as provided for under Parts 26 and 23 and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1936 (31 U.S.C. 3801).

25. Acquisition Thresholds.

The FAA deems equipment to mean tangible personal property having a useful life greater than one year and a per-unit acquisition cost equal to or greater than \$5,000. Procurements by micro-purchase means the acquisition of goods or services for which the aggregate dollar amount does not exceed \$10,000, unless authorized in accordance with 2 CFR § 200.320. Procurement by small purchase procedures means those relatively simple and informal procurement methods for securing goods or services that do not exceed the \$250,000 threshold for simplified acquisitions.

Current FAA Advisory Circulars Required for Use in AIP Funded and PFC Approved Projects

View the most current Series 150 Advisory Circulars (ACs) for Airport Projects at http://www.faa.gov/airports/resources/advisory_circulars and http://www.faa.gov/airports/resources/advisory_circulars and http://www.faa.gov/airports/resources/advisory_circulars and http://www.faa.gov/airports/resources/advisory_circulars and http://www.faa.gov/regulations_policies/advisory_circulars

Council Agenda Summary

January 18th, 2022

Agenda Item Number

Key Staff Contact: Paul Trombino III, Public Works Department, 970-350-9795

<u>Title</u>

Resolution authorizing an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Colorado Department of Transportation for the Expansion of the City of Greeley's Fiber Optic Network

<u>Summary</u>

Through a competitive grant process, facilitated by the North Front Range Metropolitan Planning Organization (NFRMPO), the City of Greeley has been awarded a Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) grant for the expansion of the City's traffic fiber optic network. The adoption of this Resolution will facilitate staff's ability to receive reimbursement for the 7.8 miles of fiber, outlined within the attached map, at 100%. This project will not only facilitate the ability to enhance traffic operations through improved Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS), hence improving air quality but will also facilitate redundancy by creating a fiber loop around the city.

Fiscal Impact

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley?	No
If yes, what is the initial or onetime impact?	\$2,375,653.00 CMAQ funding
	\$0.00 Local match
	\$2,375,653.00 Total
What is the annual impact?	N/A
What fund of the City will provide funding?	N/A
What is the source of revenue within the fund?	N/A – 100% Grant Funding
Is there grant funding for this item?	Yes
If yes, does this grant require a match?	No

	Is this grant onetime or ongoing?	Onetime
Additional Comments: This project will have no impact on Allo's work.		

Legal Issues

None - City Attorney's Office Has Reviewed

Other Issues and Considerations

None

Applicable Council Goal or Objective

Safety: Manage the health, safety and welfare in a way that promotes a sense of security and well-being for residents, businesses and visitors.

Infrastructure & Growth: Establish the capital and human infrastructure to support and maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and successful community.

Decision Options

- 1. Adopt the resolution as presented; or
- 2. Amend the resolution and adopt as amended; or
- 3. Deny the resolution;
- 4. Continue consideration of the resolution to a date certain

Council's Recommended Action

A motion to adopt the Resolution

<u>Attachments</u>

Resolution

Intergovernmental Agreement

Project Map

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO RESOLUTION _____, 2022

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE EXPANSION OF THE TRAFFIC FIBER OPTIC NETWORK

WHEREAS, in accordance with C.R.S. §29-1-203, governments may cooperate or contract with one another to provide function, service or facility lawfully authorized to each of the cooperating or contracting units of government; and

WHEREAS, the City of Greeley and the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) desire to enter into an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) to obtain a Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) grant from the North Front Range Metropolitan Planning Organization (NFRMPO) for the design and construction of an expansion of the City's fiber optic network; and

WHEREAS, the NFRMPO has awarded the City a CMAQ grant in the amount of Two Million Three Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Six Hundred Fifty-Three Dollars (\$2,375,653.00) for the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Project will require no funds from the City; and

WHEREAS, the Project will expand the City's fiber optic network, consistent with the City 2018 Fiber Plan, installing approximately 7.8 miles of fiber and adding traffic signals to the adaptive timing system; and

WHEREAS, the Project will not only enhance traffic operations through improved Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS), hence improving air quality, but will also facilitate redundancy by creating a fiber loop around the City; and

WHEREAS, CDOT will be responsible for the general administration and supervision of the performance of the Project; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to comply with the applicable requirements for CDOT's general administration and supervision of the Project through this IGA, in order to obtain federal funds; and

WHEREAS, the City is adequately staffed and suitably equipped to undertake and satisfactorily complete some or all of the work on the Project; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City for Council to enter into this IGA; and

WHEREAS, the City and CDOT have agreed to the terms and conditions of the IGA attached

hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO:

Section 1. The City Council hereby authorizes the City to enter into this IGA.

<u>Section 2</u>. City staff is hereby authorized to make changes and modifications to the Agreement, so long as the substance of the IGA remains unchanged.

<u>Section 3</u>. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage, as provided by the Greeley City Charter.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS _____ day of _____, 2022.

ATTEST:

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO

Interim City Clerk

Mayor



Council Agenda Summary

January 18, 2022

Key Staff Contact: Sean Chambers, Water & Sewer Director, 970-350-9815

<u>Title:</u>

Public hearing and final reading of an ordinance amending Title 20 of the Greeley Municipal Code concerning the use of non-potable water supplies for irrigation and the assessment of plant investment fees when non-potable water is utilized.

Summary:

Greeley has been utilizing non-potable (untreated raw water) irrigation since the Number 3 Ditch was built to water the City's parks and gardens. As Greeley has grown, the City expanded its non-potable system by utilizing the existing ditch systems used by the agricultural community. Currently, Greeley's non-potable system provides approximately 2,500 acre feet of water annually and primarily serves City owned parks and facilities with limited usage from private water customers.

The City's long-term water resource planning has identified that increasing nonpotable water usage to over 7,000 acre feet annually is essential to meeting the buildout water demand for Greeley. Using non-potable water supplies for irrigation needs is advantageous for both the City and its customers. Non-potable water supplies are more attainable and affordable than potable water supplies that can be delivered and treated at Greeley's water treatment plants. Usually, less infrastructure investment is needed for non-potable water delivery and operational costs are less. The customer benefits by paying a 30% lower rate for non-potable water versus potable water.

To meet the long-term goal of delivering additional non-potable water, and ultimately meeting the City's long-term water resource demand, expanding the non-potable system must happen as new development occurs. Installing non-potable infrastructure during the land development process is less expensive and more effective than trying to retrofit a built-out neighborhood or commercial center. Expanding the non-potable system as development happens will also extend Greeley's potable supplies and infrastructure further into the future, meaning less investment by current water customers to meet new potable water demands.

This ordinance will amend Title 20 of the Greeley Municipal Code to make non-potable mandatory for new growth if certain criteria are met (irrigated common areas of two acres or greater or house to house non-potable if lot size is 13,000 square feet or greater). In return for non-potable installation, the builder will benefit for paying lower plant investment fees for their potable water service.

Fiscal Impact:

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley?	Yes
If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?	None
What is the annual impact?	Unknown, dependent on the rate and type of new development
What fund of the City will provide Funding?	Water Construction Fund
What is the source of revenue within the fund?	Plant Investment Fees, Bonds
Is there grant funding for this item?	N/A
If yes, does this grant require a match?	
Is this grant onetime or ongoing?	
Additional Comments:	

Legal Issues:

Consideration of this matter is a legislative process. A second reading and public hearing on this ordinance may take place no sooner than 28 days after the introduction and first reading. GMC § 20-273. The ordinance was introduced on December 7, 2021, which constitutes 42 days between readings. The City Attorney's Office has reviewed and approved the ordinance as to form.

Other Issues and Considerations:

The recommended action is consistent with the 2021 Non-Potable Water Master Plan and City Council strategic priority #5 to implement non-potable irrigation water systems.

Strategic Work Program Item or Applicable Council Priority and Goal:

Infrastructure & Growth: Establish the capital and human infrastructure to support and maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and successful community.

Decision Options:

- 1) Adopt the ordinance as presented; or
- 2) Amend the ordinance and adopt as amended; or
- 3) Deny the ordinance; or
- 4) Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain.

Council's Recommended Action:

A motion to adopt the ordinance and publish with reference to title only.

Attachments:

Ordinance PowerPoint Non-potable policy

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO

ORDINANCE ____, 2021

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 20 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF GREELEY (CONCERNING THE USE OF NON-POTABLE WATER SUPPLIES FOR IRRIGATION)

WHEREAS, the City of Greeley, Colorado ("City") is a home rule municipality empowered pursuant to Sections 1 and 6 of Article XX of the Colorado Constitution to, inter alia, construct, purchase, acquire, lease, add to, maintain, conduct, and operate water works and everything required therefor, within or without its territorial limits, for the use of the City; and

WHEREAS, Section 17-1 of the Greeley City Charter authorizes the Greeley Water and Sewer Board ("Board") to qualify the Water and Sewer functions and operations as an "enterprise" as that term is contained in Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution, and to provide for every function and operation of an enterprise, including but not limited to, bond issuance and all other necessary and ordinary functions of the Water and Sewer operations; and

WHEREAS, Section 17-4(c) of the Greeley City Charter and Section 20-30 of the Greeley Municipal Code authorize the Board to acquire, develop, convey, lease and protect the water and sewer assets, supplies and facilities needed to fully use the water supplies decreed, adjudicated or contracted for the City; and

WHEREAS, various Sections within Title 20 of the Greeley Municipal Code set forth the requirements and regulations related to the initiation and use of water and sewer services from the City; and

WHEREAS, City Water and Sewer staff, with feedback and input from the Board, have developed a policy concerning the expanded use of non-potable water supplies for irrigation throughout the City, in the interest of more strategically and efficiently managing the City's water resources portfolio; and

WHEREAS, City Water and Sewer staff and legal counsel subsequently developed revisions to Title 20 of the Greeley Municipal Code to implement the various provisions of this policy; and

WHEREAS, the Water and Sewer Board reviewed the proposed final policy and revisions to Title 20 of the Greeley Municipal Code on November 17, 2021 and recommended that City Council adopt an ordinance to codify the revisions, in the form of the revisions attached hereto and incorporated herein as Appendix A;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, COLORADO:

<u>Section 1.</u> That Subsections (2) through (7) of Section 20-27 of the Greeley Municipal Code be renumbered and amended to read as shown on Appendix A, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

<u>Section 2.</u> That Subsections (1) through (9) of Section 20-28 be renumbered and amended to read as shown on Appendix A.

<u>Section 3.</u> That Section 20-126 be stricken in its entirety as shown on Appendix A.

<u>Section 4.</u> That the reserved Sections of Title 20 (Public Works and Utilities), Chapter 3 (Water and Sanitary Sewer Service), Article III (Water), Division 4 (Water Conservation) be renumbered as shown on Appendix A.

<u>Section 5.</u> That Section 20-252 be renumbered as Section 20-251 and amended to read as shown on Appendix A.

<u>Section 6.</u> That a portion of Section 20-253 be renumbered as Section 20-252 and amended to read as shown on Appendix A.

<u>Section 7.</u> That the remaining portion of Section 20-253 be renumbered and amended to read as shown on Appendix A.

<u>Section 8.</u> That Section 20-254 be amended to read as shown on Appendix A.

<u>Section 9.</u> That Section 20-255 be amended to read as shown on Appendix A.

Section 10. That Section 20-256 be amended to read as shown on Appendix A.

<u>Section 11.</u> That Section 20-257 be amended to read as shown on Appendix A.

<u>Section 12.</u> That Section 20-260 be amended to read as shown on Appendix A.

Section 13. That Section 20-262 be amended to read as shown on Appendix A.

Section 14. That Section 20-263 be amended to read as shown on Appendix A.

Section 15. That Section 20-264 be amended to read as shown on Appendix A.

<u>Section 16.</u> That Chapter 6 (Irrigation) of Title 20 (Public Works and Utilities) be stricken in its entirety, and the reserved Sections thereof renumbered and amended to read as shown on Appendix A.

<u>Section 17.</u> Except as explicitly modified on Exhibit A, all other provisions of Title 20 of the Greeley Municipal Code shall remain in full force and effect.

<u>Section 17</u>. This Ordinance shall take effect on the fifth day following its final publication, as provided by Section 3-16 of the Greeley City Charter.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED ON THIS _____ DAY OF _____ 2021.

ATTEST

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO

Interim City Clerk

Mayor

APPENDIX A ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 20 GREELEY MUNICIPAL CODE

<u>Section 1.</u> Subsections (2) through (7) of Section 20-27 of the Greeley Municipal Code shall be renumbered and amended to read as follows:

Sec. 20-27. Duties, fees and charges.

The water and sewer board shall adopt, by resolution, the following rates, fees and charges:

- (1) Minimum and sufficient potable water rates;
- (2) Minimum and sufficient non-potable water rates;
- (32) Minimum and sufficient sanitary sewer rates;
- (<u>4</u>3) Cash-in-lieu fees;
- (54) Raw water surcharges;
- (65) Water plant investment fees;
- (76) Sewer plant investment fees; and
- $(\underline{87})$ Water turn-on charges.

<u>Section 2.</u> Subsections (1) through (9) of Section 20-28 shall be renumbered and amended to read as follows:

Sec. 20-28. Permissible duties; fees and charges.

The water and sewer board may adopt minimum rates, fees and charges which may include, but need not be limited to, the following:

(1) Irrigation water rates;

- (12) Water rental rates;
- (23) Fees for inspection;
- (<u>3</u>4) Fees for testing;
- (45) Fees for meter installation;
- (56) Fees for engineering design review;
- (67) Fees for accepting wastewater hauled to the sewage treatment plant;
- (<u>7</u>8) Lift station surcharges; and
- (89) Other fees and charges as the board deems necessary to cover the costs of inspections, tap installations, operations, maintenance and extensions of the water

and sanitary sewer systems.

<u>Section 3.</u> Section 20-126 shall be stricken in its entirety.

Sec. 20-126. Buildings with multiple users.

Owners of any business block or other building occupied by more than one tenant using or taking water from the same service pipe shall be required to pay the water and sewer rent for

the whole of such block, building or premises before a license shall be granted for the use of water therein.

<u>Section 4.</u> The reserved Sections of Title 20 (Public Works and Utilities), Chapter 3 (Water and Sanitary Sewer Service), Article III (Water), Division 4 (Water Conservation) shall be renumbered as follows:

Secs. 20-230-20-2501. Reserved.

<u>Section 5.</u> Section 20-252 shall be renumbered as Section 20-251 and amended to read as follows:

Sec. 20-2512. Initiation of water service; service commitment agreements.

- (a) Any person or entity seeking water service from the city shall make a request for such service within the associated land use or development application process required by title 24 of this Code. If the person or entity seeking water service is not pursuing a land use or development application, the request shall be made in writing to the director of water and sewer. ilt is unlawful for a person or entity to take and use water service from the city without first obtaining authorization from the director of water and sewer.
- (b) Requests for water service made through the land use or development application process required by title 24 of this Code shall be forwarded to the director of water and sewer. All requests for water service shall include the information necessary to determine all applicable fees and rates for such service. The director of water and sewer shall not authorize any such water service until all required information is received and all required fees are paid.
- (c) All applicants granted authorization for water service to nonresidential <u>lots</u> and <u>multifamily</u> residential <u>developments</u><u>lots</u> with more than four units within the city limits shall execute a service commitment agreement to be recorded with the county clerk and recorder setting forth the details and parameters of <u>the potable and non-potable</u> <u>components of</u> such service, including the person or entity to whom service is granted, the date upon which service shall commence, the specific location at which the tap<u>(s)</u> or service connection<u>(s)</u> shall be made, the permitted size of the tap<u>(s)</u> or service connection<u>(s)</u>, a description of the property to which service will be provided, and the permissible uses of water on the property, <u>and the annual allotment associated with the water service</u>.
- (d) All applicants granted authorization for water service to large parcel single-family residential lots, as described in Section 20-257, that are required to install a separate and additional landscape irrigation tap and service line for the service of non-potable water shall execute a service commitment agreement to be recorded with the county clerk and recorder setting forth the details and parameters of the non-potable component of such service, including the person or entity to whom service is granted, the date upon which service shall commence, the specific location at which the tap(s) or service connection(s) shall be made, the permitted size of the tap(s) or service connection(s), a description of the property to which service will be provided, the

permissible uses of water on the property, and the annual allotment associated with the non-potable component of the water service.

<u>Section 6.</u> A portion of Section 20-253 shall be renumbered as Section 20-252 and amended to read as follows:

Sec. 20-25<u>2</u>3. Taps <u>and service lines</u> required; <u>potable and non-potable</u> service <u>line extensions</u> prohibited.

- (a) Each detached single-family-residential building, multi-unitfamily residential building, and nonresidential building shall be served by a minimum of one separate water tap and service line for the service of potable water. Buildings with mixed residential and non-residential uses shall be served by separate potable water taps for the residential and non-residential components of the development.
- (b) <u>A separate and additional landscape irrigation tap and service line shall be required for</u> <u>the service of non-potable water to all residential detached estate lots with an area of</u> <u>13,000 square feet or more.</u>
- (c) A separate and additional landscape irrigation tap and service line shall be required for the service of non-potable water to the irrigated common space associated with all non-residential buildingsnonresidential lots and multi-family residential buildingslots with more than four units within the city limits, including, without limitation, commercial, industrial, and group housing (apartment buildings, condominiums, nursing homes, hotels, and motels), if such irrigated common space totals two acres in area or more.
- (d) The director of water and sewer, or his designee, has the authority to grant a <u>temporary</u> or permanent variance to the landscape irrigation tap requirements in this section upon a finding in their sole discretion that <u>immediate connection of</u> the subject property to the non-potable water system is not feasible, or that the subject property can be served by a single tap due to minimal landscaping irrigation demand. The grant of such a variance may include any terms and conditions deemed appropriate by the director or his designee in their sole discretion.
- (e) It is unlawful to install a privately-owned non-potable irrigation system on any property to which the city provides water service.

<u>Section 7.</u> The remaining portion of Section 20-253 shall be renumbered and amended to read as follows:

Sec. 20-253. Service line extensions prohibited.

(ac) It is unlawful for a person or entity to extend a service line to serve any other buildings, lots or premises contrary to the requirements of this section. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the director of water and sewer has the discretionary authority to grant variances when appropriate for accessory uses on the same property or an adjoining lot.

- (bd) A prohibited service line extension that was installed prior to September 1, 2019, may remain in effect so long as it does not create a sanitation, public health or public nuisance problem. If, in the discretion of the director of water and sewer, a prohibited service line extension creates a sanitation, public health or public nuisance problem, the subject property owner shall separate the compound tap at their own expense.
- (<u>c</u>e) The owner of a property to which a new water service line is installed after the associated separation of a compound tap shall be required to pay all fees applicable to the initiation of water service to the subject property, including, without limitation, the costs required to install another water tap and service line. Plant investment fees that would otherwise be due and payable for a new water service line installed pursuant to this section shall be waived upon a written finding of the director of water and sewer that there will be no increase in water service to the subject property.
- (<u>d</u>f) The use of a common service line by abutting property owners shall not alter the maintenance responsibility of the users of the common service line. The common service shall not constitute a public responsibility and the director of water and sewer shall not perform maintenance or repair on the separate or combined service lines that may serve abutting properties.
- <u>Section 8.</u> Section 20-254 shall be amended to read as follows:

Sec. 20-254. Water rights dedication; amounts and criteria.

- (a) All applicants for water service within the city limits shall (i) dedicate to the city water rights, if any, that the city, in its sole discretion, can use in its potable water supply system or non-potable irrigation system and (ii) if the applicant cannot satisfy the raw water dedication requirements through the dedication of water rights, shall furnish to the city a cash-in-lieu fee (or satisfy the same pursuant to subsection (e)) to fulfill all or the remainder of the dedication requirement associated with a request for water service as a prerequisite to and as part of the consideration for city water service to the subject propertylot. All water rights approved for dedication shall be conveyed to the city on or before the date the final plat for the development is approved. All cash-in-lieu fees shall be due and payable to the city no later than the date on which the building permit is issued.
- (b) The city has determined (i) that the water rights represented by shares of stock in the Greeley and Loveland Irrigation Company and the Seven Lakes Reservoir Company, and rights in the Loveland and Greeley Reservoir Company (Lake Loveland) can be used within its potable water supply system and non-potable irrigation system and (ii) that the water rights represented by units of Colorado-Big Thompson Project Water can be used within its potable water supply system. The water rights represented by shares of stock in the Greeley Irrigation Company can only be used within non-potable irrigation systems. Therefore, the city will accept such water rights only in satisfaction of the raw water dedication requirements associated with non-potable water service on property historically irrigated by the subject water rights. The city shall use the following yield values to determine the amount of raw water transferred by an applicant toward the satisfaction of any raw water dedication requirement:

Company	Yield/Share
The Greeley & Loveland Irrigation Company	8 acre <u>-</u> feet/share
The Seven Lakes Reservoir Company	8 acre <u>-</u> feet/share
The Loveland and Greeley Reservoir Company (Lake Loveland)	20 acre <u>-</u> feet/right
Colorado-Big Thompson Project Water (C-BT)	0.75 acre <u>-</u> feet/unit
Greeley Irrigation Company (Greeley No. 3 Canal)	10.3 acre-feet/share

- (C) Except for water rights represented by units of Colorado-Big Thompson Project Water, the city will not accept the dedication of any water rights under subsection (b) for use within its potable water supply system or non-potable irrigation system unless the director of water and sewer determines that the subject water rights meet the requisite criteria under Colorado law for conversion of the water to municipal use by the city, including, without limitation, that: (i) the water rights have a history of use on the property being developed; (ii) the property being developed was historically and consistently irrigated under the ditch system from which such water rights are being dedicated; (iii) the owner and all lienholders of the property being developed execute a restrictive covenant in a form acceptable to the city requiring the cessation of irrigation on the historically irrigated property with the subject water rights except under conditions authorized by the city; and (iv) the applicant provides any documents and materials reasonably required by the city to ensure consistency with any prior decrees, including but not limited to, decrees adjudicating changes of the Greeley and Loveland Irrigation Company, the Seven Lakes Reservoir Company, the Loveland and Greeley Reservoir Company (Lake Loveland), and the Greeley Irrigation Company water rights.
- (d) An applicant for water service may dedicate any water rights identified in subsection (b) as usable within the city non-potable irrigation system, including water rights that satisfy the requirements of subsection (c), in satisfaction of the applicant's raw water dedication requirement associated with non-potable service. An applicant for water service may request that the city accept or permit the use of (i) water rights other than the water rights identified in subsection (b) or (ii) water rights that do not satisfy the requirements of subsection (c) in partial-satisfaction or reduction of the applicant's raw water dedication requirement associated with non-potable service. The city, in its sole discretion, may accept or permit the use of such water rights based on certain terms and conditions set by the director of water and sewer but only in partial-satisfaction or reduction of the raw water dedication requirement associated with non-potable water service on property that has been historically irrigated by the subject water rights.
- (e) On or before December 31, 2099, an applicant for water service, who is also the registered owner of a certificate issued by the department to evidence one or more raw water dedication credits, may redeem such credit(s) in whole or in part (but only in whole numbers) toward the satisfaction of any cash-in-lieu fee obligation associated with the applicant's request for water service in accordance with sections 20-255, 20-256, 20-257, and 20-260. One raw water dedication credit represents the equivalent of,

but not an interest in, one acre-foot of raw water that an applicant would otherwise have to satisfy by furnishing to the city a cash-in-lieu fee.

- (f) Applicants for water service to single-family-residential and multi-family residential developmentslots with four units or less within the city limits shall dedicate raw water and, if the applicant cannot dedicate raw water, furnish to the city any applicable cash-in-lieu fee in accordance with section 20-255 in the amount of three acre-feet per acre, or fraction thereof, of property to which water service will be provided. Streets, rights-of-way, driveways, sidewalks, outbuildings, and any other part of the propertylot that has been or will be developed shall be included in the calculation of the total gross acreage of the property, regardless of whether such areas have been dedicated to public use. The city may, in its sole discretion, exclude area(s) from the total gross acreage, provided that irrigating such area is legally prohibited by plat or deed.
- Applicants for water service to non-residential nonresidential lots and multi-family (g) residential developments lots with more than four units within the city limits, including, without limitation, commercial, industrial, and group housing (apartment buildings, condominiums, nursing homes, hotels, and motels), shall dedicate raw water and, if the applicant cannot dedicate raw water, furnish to the city the applicable cash-in-lieu fee in accordance with section 20-256 in the amount of the water service demand for the subject developmentlot. The potable water service demand for nonresidential nonresidential lots and large multi-family residential developments lots with more than four units shall be determined by multiplying the total units proposed by the applicant by the average unit use, as set forth in the business category and water use table below. The potable water service demand for industrial developments lots and commercial developments lots of a type not specifically identified in the business category and water use table below shall be determined by the director of water and sewer on a case-by-case basis, utilizing the projected volume of total water use by the subject developmentlot.

Business Category and Water Use			
Category	Units	Average Unit Use (Gallons Per Unit Per Year)	
Auto service and repair	SF	12	
Car wash	Bay	1,350,000	
Childcare	SF	47	
Church	SF	4.5	
Grocery store	SF	20	
Gas station without car wash	SF	93	
Hospital	SF	21	
Hotel/motel	Room	30,300	
Medical office	SF	25	
Multi-family rResidential (greater than 4 units)	Unit	35,500	

Office	SF	14	
Recreation with pool	SF	122	
Recreation without pool	SF	25	
Restaurant (outdoor seating areas 50%)	SF	188	
Retail	SF	16	
School	SF	11	
Warehouse	SF	5	
Industrial and other commercial	Demand de	Demand determined on case-by-case basis	
"SF" = Square feet of gross floor space within the building area			

(h) Applicants for water service to non-residential nonresidential lots and multi-family residential developmentslots with more than four units within the city limits, including, without limitation, commercial, industrial, and group housing (apartment buildings, condominiums, nursing homes, hotels, and motels), for which a separate and additional landscape irrigation tap and service line is required in accordance with section 20-2523, shall also dedicate raw water and, if the applicant cannot dedicate raw water, furnish to the city the applicable cash-in-lieu fee in accordance with section 20-256 in the amount of the landscape irrigation demand for the subject development lot. Landscape irrigation demand shall be determined based on (i) the total gross acreage of property to which water service will be provided and (ii) the type of landscape as set forth in the landscape water use table below. Landscape plans with more than 75 percent high water use vegetation are assumed to be entirely high water use and shall be calculated as such. Streets, rights-of-way, driveways, sidewalks, outbuildings and any other impervious part of the property lot that has been or will be developed shall be included in the calculation of the total gross acreage of property, regardless of whether such areas have been dedicated to public use. The city may, in its sole discretion, exclude area(s) from the total gross acreage, provided that irrigating such area(s) is legally prohibited by plat or deed.

Landscape Water Use	
Water Use	Dedication Requirement
High water use (>14 gals/sf annual use)	3 acre-feet/acre
Medium water use (10-14 gal/sf annual use)	2.33 acre-feet/acre
Low water use (<10 gals/sf annual use)	1.67 acre-feet/acre
No irrigation	No raw water requirement for landscape

<u>Section 9.</u> Section 20-255 shall be amended to read as follows:

Sec. 20-255. Cash in lieu of raw water required; single-familydetached and small multiunitfamily residential.
- (a) Any applicant for water service to single-family residential and multi-family residential developmentslots with four units or less within the city limits that cannot satisfy the requirements of section 20-254 through the dedication of water rights shall furnish to the city a cash-in-lieu fee to fulfill all or the remainder of the dedication requirement associated with the potable and non-potable components of its request for water service.
- (b) The cash-in-lieu fee for single-family residential and multi-family residential developmentslots with four units or less shall be set by resolution of the water and sewer board and calculated as the cash equivalent of three acre-feet of water per acre, or fraction thereof, of property to which water service will be provided, using the fair market value of water per acre-foot.

Section 10. Section 20-256 shall be amended to read as follows:

Sec. 20-256. Cash in lieu of raw water required; nonresidential and large multi<u>-unitfamily</u> residential.

- (a) Any applicant for water service to non-residential<u>nonresidential lots</u> and <u>multi-family</u> residential <u>developmentslots</u> with more than four units within the city limits, including, without limitation, commercial, industrial, and group housing (apartment buildings, condominiums, nursing homes, hotels, and motels), that cannot satisfy the requirements of section 20-254 through the dedication of water rights shall furnish to the city a cashin-lieu fee to fulfill all or the remainder of the dedication requirement associated with <u>the potable and non-potable components</u> of its request for water service.
- (b) The cash-in-lieu fee for non-residential nonresidential lots and large multi-family residential developments lots with more than four units shall be set by resolution of the water and sewer board and calculated by multiplying the water service demand for the subject property lot, as determined in accordance with section 20-254(eg), and the landscape irrigation demand, as determined in accordance with section 20-254(h), by the fair market value of water per acre-foot.

<u>Section 11.</u> Section 20-257 shall be amended to read as follows:

Sec. 20-257. Exception for large parcel single-family residential.

- (a) The water rights dedication and cash-in-lieu fee requirements set forth in sections 20-254 through 20-256 shall not apply to applications for water service to a large parcel single-family residential <u>developmentlot</u>, defined as a parcel, of property exceeding one acre that contains only one <u>detached</u> single-family residence.
- (b) All applicants for water service to a large parcel single-family residential <u>developmentlot</u> shall dedicate raw water and, if the applicant cannot dedicate raw water, furnish to the city the applicable cash-in-lieu fee in accordance with subsection (c) in the amount of the water service demand for the subject <u>developmentlot</u>. The water service demand for large parcel single-family residential <u>developmentslots</u> shall be determined by (i) the total gross acreage, or fraction thereof, of property to which

water service will be provided and (ii) the type of landscape as set forth in the landscape water use table in section 20-254(h) above. Landscape plans with more than 75 percent high water use vegetation are assumed to be entirely high water use and shall be calculated as such. Streets, rights-of-way, driveways, sidewalks, outbuildings and any other part of the <u>propertylot</u> that has been or will be developed shall be included in the calculation of the total gross acreage of property, regardless of whether such areas have been dedicated to public use. The city may, in its sole discretion, exclude area(s) from the total gross acreage, provided that irrigating such area(s) is legally prohibited by plat or deed.

- (c) Any applicant for large parcel single-family residential water service pursuant to this section that cannot satisfy the requirement of subsection (b) through the dedication of water rights shall furnish to the city a cash-in-lieu fee to fulfill all or the remainder of the dedication requirement associated with its request for water service.
- (d) The cash-in-lieu fee for large parcel single-family residential water service pursuant to this section shall be set by resolution of the water and sewer board and calculated as the cash equivalent of the calculated water service demand using the fair market value of water per acre-foot.

Section 12. Section 20-260 shall be amended to read as follows:

Sec. 20-260. Raw water surcharge and supplemental cash in lieu of raw water; exception.

- (a) A nonresidential or large multifamily residential customer whose metered water use in a calendar year exceeds its annual allotment shall be required to pay a raw water surcharge on the volume of <u>potable or not-potable</u> water used in excess of such allotment, as set forth in its service commitment agreement.
- (b) Nonresidential and large multi-<u>unitfamily</u> residential customers who initiated water service prior to the enactment of the ordinance codified in this section and have not executed a service commitment agreement shall be entitled to an annual allotment in accordance with the raw water dedicated or cash in lieu of raw water it paid upon initiation of service. Any such customer whose metered water use in a calendar year exceeds its annual allotment shall be required to pay a raw water surcharge on the volume of water used in excess of such allotment.
- (c) Large parcel single-family residential customers shall be entitled to an annual allotment equal to the water service demand calculated in accordance with section 20-257. Any such customer whose metered water use in a calendar year exceeds its annual allotment shall be required to pay a raw water surcharge on the volume of water used in excess of such allotment.
- (d) The raw water surcharge applicable to customers pursuant to this section shall be set by resolution of the water and sewer board. Any customer whose metered water use in a calendar year exceeds its annual allotment may also furnish to the city a separate supplemental cash-in-lieu fee to increase its annual allotment. <u>A</u>ny such supplemental cash-in-lieu fee to increase its annual allotment. <u>A</u>ny such supplemental cash-in-lieu fee to increase its annual allotment.

as set by the water and sewer board and in place when the raw water surcharge payment is due and payable, and shall result in a corresponding increase to the annual allotment for that customer, whether as determined in accordance with this section or as set forth in its service commitment agreement.

- (e) Any nonresidential, large multifamily residential, or large parcel single-family residential customer who initiates or modifies its water service after the enactment of the ordinance codified in this section and whose metered water use in a calendar year exceeds the annual allotment set forth in its service commitment agreement in any two consecutive calendar years shall be required to pay a supplemental cash-in-lieu fee to increase its annual allotment <u>in the amount of the average volume of water used</u> above the annual allotment over the two consecutive calendar years, as described in subsection (d) of this section.
- (f) Any customer whose metered water use during its first full calendar year of water service exceeds its annual allotment shall be exempt from the raw water surcharge and supplemental cash-in-lieu fee requirements of this section for that first year only.

Section 13. Section 20-262 shall be amended to read as follows:

Sec. 20-262. Plant investment fees for water service; inside and outside the city.

- (a) All applicants for water service, whether inside or outside the city limits, shall furnish to the city a water plant investment fee based on the diameter of the <u>potable water</u> tap as a prerequisite to, and as a part of the consideration for, city water service to the subject property. The water plant investment fee shall be the minimum amount set by resolution of the water and sewer board, unless subsequently increased by resolution of the city council. The diameter of a service line water tap installed for fire suppression purposes shall not be considered when calculating plant investment fees due pursuant to this section.
- (b) Upon approval of the director of water and sewer, plant investment fees may be based on the volume of a customer's annual allotment rather than the diameter of the <u>potable water</u> tap. When the director of water and sewer authorizes a plant investment fee based on the volume of a customer's annual allotment, then the schedule of tap fees set by resolution of the water and sewer board shall be applied in accordance with the size of service line.
- (c) The plant investment fee associated with a request for water service shall be reduced by up to fifty (50) percent for the following residential lot types to which separate and additional landscape irrigation taps and service lines are installed and non-potable water service is provided. Reductions are not aggregated for the installation of both common space and house-to-house non-potable water service.

Plant Investment Fee Reduction Percentages

Residential Building Type	Lot Size	<u>Common</u> <u>Space</u> <u>Non-Potable</u>	<u>House to</u> <u>House</u> <u>Non-Potable</u>
Row House	<u>>1,000 s.f.</u>	<u>50%</u>	<u>N/A</u>
Detached House (Small Format)	<u>1,500-3,000 s.f.</u>	<u>50%</u>	<u>50%</u>
Detached or Multi-Unit House (Small Lot)	<u>3,000-4,500 s.f.</u>	<u>40%</u>	<u>50%</u>
Detached or Multi-Unit House (Medium Lot)	<u>4,500-6,000 s.f.</u>	<u>30%</u>	<u>50%</u>
Detached or Multi-Unit House (Standard Lot)	<u>6,000-13,000 s.f.</u>	<u>25%</u>	<u>50%</u>
Detached House (Estate Lot)	<u>>13,000 s.f.</u>	<u>N/A</u>	<u>50%</u>

Section 14. Section 20-263 shall be amended to read as follows:

Sec. 20-263. Installation costs for water service.

- (a) In addition to the water plant investment fee requirement set forth in section 20-262, an applicant for water service shall pay for all meters, labor and other materials required to tap the <u>potable and non-potable</u> water <u>systemsmain</u>, to install service pipes, and to trench and repair the street, as such costs are determined by the director of water and sewer.
- (b) All costs shall be paid by the applicant in advance of such work and no later than the time at which a building permit is issued by the city for the subject property.

Section 15. Section 20-264 shall be amended to read as follows:

Sec. 20-264. Water plant investment fee credits and exchange; renovations.

- (a) Any customer that seeks to abandon an existing <u>potable</u> water tap in favor of a smaller or larger tap to serve the same property shall be entitled to a credit against the water plant investment fee requirement set forth in section 20-262. <u>sS</u>uch credit shall be equal to the then current plant investment fee value associated with the abandoned tap but shall not include credit for any fire flow diameter associated with the abandoned tap. Any credit issued for an abandoned tap pursuant to this section shall not exceed the water plant investment fee due and payable for the replacement tap; the city shall not be required to provide cash refunds for any such credit.
- (b) Any tap abandoned pursuant to this section shall be turned off at the main, and the costs associated with turning off the abandoned tap shall be borne by the person or entity requesting the change of service.
- (c) Any customer that renovates one or more residential units that were constructed prior to January 20, 1959, and is accordingly required to replace an existing tap that serves such residential units to comply with the current minimum tap size requirements established by the water and sewer board shall not be required to furnish an additional

water plant investment fee if the renovation does not increase the number or size of the residential units, and the use of the subject property is not changed.

<u>Section 16.</u> Chapter 6 (Irrigation) of Title 20 (Public Works and Utilities) shall be stricken in its entirety, and the reserved Sections thereof renumbered and amended to read as follows:

CHAPTER 6. IRRIGATION

Sec. 20-701. Regulation of irrigation water.

In order to secure an equitable distribution of irrigation water among the irrigation water consumers, the director of water and sewer and his deputy or deputies shall, under the direction of the city manager, regulate the distribution of irrigation water to all the lots and parcels of land within the limits of the city.

Sec. 20-702. Control of headgates.

The headgates of city laterals from Canal No. 3, together with the headgates of sublaterals whereby water is drawn from such canals or laterals, shall be controlled only by the director of water and sewer or his deputies on his order.

Sec. 20-703. Water levels and checks.

The director of water and sewer shall, at all points where it may be found necessary, establish and maintain such water levels and checks as shall ensure to all private parties and to all sublaterals an equitable supply of irrigation water, at a minimum head, with the present established grade of the ditches of the city.

Sec. 20-704. Interference unlawful.

It is unlawful for any person to open any gate or gates or otherwise break and destroy any gate or check or cutting of any of the banks of the ditches, to obstruct the free flow of water by check or otherwise, to willfully allow gates in such ditches to be open and to run water thereby upon their own land or upon any street, alley or public grounds of this city, or in any other way to interfere with the regulations of the director of water and sewer or the provisions of this chapter.

Sec. 20-705. Irrigation rates fixed by water and sewer board.

Irrigation water rates shall be the minimum rate as approved by the water and sewer board, unless increased by resolution of the city council.

Sec. 20-706. Payment due date; nonpayment.

It shall be the duty of the director of finance to collect such tax from all irrigation water consumers before April 20 in each and every year, and all irrigation water consumers neglecting or refusing to pay such tax on or before such date shall, until such tax is paid, be deprived of irrigation water by the director of water and sewer, whose duty it shall be to stop the supply of irrigation water to all lots or parcels of land on which the tax is unpaid on such day.

Secs. 20-70<u>1</u>7 - 20-725. Reserved.

Non-Potable Water Supply Program Policies November, 2021

Non-Potable Supply Required

For residential developments only, the development shall use non-potable water for irrigation of:

- Common spaces unless the residential development has less than 2 acres of irrigated common space
- Individual lots unless the lot size is less than 13,000 square feet

For commercial or industrial developments only, the development shall use non-potable water for irrigation unless the commercial or industrial development has less than 2 acres of common space irrigation

For developments that are not feasible to immediately connect to the City's non-potable system, but that the City has identified as being feasible for non-potable service, all non-potable piping shall be installed to allow for non-potable use when non-potable service is available. Land will be identified and set aside for the installation of any additional non-potable infrastructure, such as pump stations, if required by the Water & Sewer Director or designee for building out the City's non-potable system.

In unique circumstances, new development projects may be able to demonstrate that engineering limitations make including infrastructure for non-potable irrigation water infeasible. The feasibility evaluation and all calculations must be provided to the Water & Sewer Director or designee and the Department's Chief Engineer for review and consideration of approval in order to waive the requirement. Any such waiver of the requirement shall be based upon engineering feasibility limitations.

Cash-In-Lieu (CIL)

Non-potable CIL is equal to potable CIL. Raw water credits associated with Terry Ranch can be used to pay for non-potable raw water requirements

• New single-family residential non-potable raw water requirements are calculated on the pervious area of the lot and the lot size minus the footprint of the house and other impervious areas. The development's association or Metro District will be served by master meters as determined by Greeley Water and Sewer.

Cost of Connection & Cost Sharing

The cost of developing non-potable infrastructure shall be borne by the developer.

- Furthermore, the City, at the discretion of the Water and Sewer Director or designee, shall pay to upsize non-potable facilities in cases when the non-potable system can be used to serve more areas than a single development.
- No non-potable Plant Investment Fees (PIF) will be charged

Potable PIFs will be reduced by the following percentages for Single Family or Multi-Unit lots where non-potable is installed (PIF reductions are not cumulative. Only the PIF reduction in the "Non-Potable House to House" column applies if house to house non-potable is installed)

Residential Building Type	Lot Size	Non-Potable in	Non-Potable House
		Common Area	to House
Row House	>1,000 s.f.	50%	N/A
Detached House-Small Format	1,500-3,000 s.f.	50%	50%
Detached or Multi-Unit House-	3,000-4,500 s.f.	40%	50%
Small Lot			
Detached or Multi-Unit House-	4,500-6,000 s.f.	30%	50%
Medium Lot			
Detached or Multi-Unit House-	6,000-13,000 s.f.	25%	50%
Standard Lot			
Detached House-Estate Lot	>13,000 s.f.	N/A	50%

Water Budget

All newly installed non-potable accounts shall be assigned a Water Budget.

Drought Restrictions

During times of drought declaration, non-potable developments will be subject to the same watering restrictions and surcharges as potable, Water Budget accounts.

Public Ownership of Non-Potable Systems

No private ownership of non-potable systems in new development is allowed. The public ownership of the non-potable system applies to the curb stop for non-potable service, similar to the treated water system.

Shoulder Season Taps

The City shall furnish, without raw water fees or PIFs, potable water taps to supply the non-potable irrigation system during times when the non-potable supply is unavailable (i.e., early spring and late fall shoulder seasons). Shoulder taps will be removed or retired from service if the non-potable system is expanded to serve shoulder seasons. Shoulder season taps are generally provided for parks, housing associations and Metro Districts, and large commercial customers. It is not intended for residential use.

• If potable water is used during periods when non-potable supplies are available, the potable supplies will be subject to the potable raw water surcharge.

Water Rates

Each non-potable system is provided a tiered annual water budget. (Implemented when new utility billing software is live.)

- Water tier volumes for non-potable systems will be the same as the potable water budget program.
 - Water Budget tier = up to 100% of water budget
 - Inefficient Use tier = 101%-130% of water budget
 - Excessive Use tier = 131%-150% of water budget
 - Unsustainable Use tier = >150% of water budget
- Tiered rates for use of non-potable water supplies will be 70% of the residential water budget rates, which are determined annually by the Water & Sewer Board.

Raw Water Dedication

Type of Water Use*	Vegetation Type
High Water Use	Bluegrass, Turf, Annuals, Willow Trees, etc.
Medium Water Use	Drip Irrigation, Fruit Trees, Common
	Ornamentals, etc.
Low Water Use	Native Plants, Succulents, Drought Tolerant
	Plants, etc.
*Refer to water use information for plant w	vatering needs from "Greeley WaterWise
Landscaping Criteria"	

Type of Water Use	Dedication Requirement
High Water Use	3.0 acre feet/acre
Medium Water Use	2.3 acre feet/acre
Low Water Use	1.6 acre feet/acre

- A service commitment will be recorded with the Weld County Clerk and Recorder that specifies the volume of raw water dedicated (or paid through cash-in-lieu) for the non-potable water use.
 - Because the establishment of landscaping may require extra watering, exceeding the service commitment during the first full calendar year of water service for the new nonpotable customer will not be considered as an overage and no raw water surcharge payment will be due.
- If water use for a new non-potable customer exceeds its service commitment in any calendar year, the owner will be required to pay a raw water surcharge for the volume of water exceeding the service commitment.
- If water use in a new non-potable customer exceeds its service commitment in any two consecutive years, the owner will be required to purchase additional water through a Cash-in-Lieu payment.
 - The Cash-in-Lieu payment will be for the two-year average volume of water used above the service commitment.
 - Service commitment pricing is based on the current Cash-in-Lieu of water prices for Greeley.

Amend Title 20 Non-Potable Development Policy

City Council| Second Reading January 18, 2022



Or Government to Right Size Water Development Policy and Limit Costs 2016:

Changed raw water dedication requirements to exclude non-irrigated outlots
 2018:

- · Changed the calculation for cash-in-lieu to water portfolio value & storage
- · Changed when raw water is due, from platting to time of building permit
- Changed the multi-family plant investment fee to be based on meter size rather than units

2019

• Refine precision of raw water requirements for multi-family and nonresidential user classes, in most cases limiting raw water requirements

Need For Non-Potable Policy Update

- Potable water prices are rapidly escalating. Non-potable water sources are \$25,000 to \$40,000 cheaper per acre-foot
- Need non-potable supply to meet Greeley's long term water demand
 - $_{\circ}~$ Current NP demand: 2,500 AF
 - Master Plan volume: ~7,000 AF, which allows for maximized use of the city's potable water supplies for indoor uses
- A more compulsory policy needed to expand non-potable adoption



Existing Non-Potable Systems



New No. 15. Non-Potable Potential



Source: Greeley 2021 Nonpotable Water Master Plan hr CDM Smith

Non-Potable Development Policy Goal

- Cost-effectively facilitate the expansion of the nonpotable system as development occurs
 - Installing non-potable infrastructure during development cheaper and more effective than retrofitting

Policy Details

- Non-Potable is mandatory in some cases:
 - $_{\circ}$ For all developments with > 2 acres of irrigated common area
 - House to house if lot size > 13,000 square feet
- No non-potable plant investment fees
- Acceptance of raw water sources historically used to irrigate developed area



Policy Details

- Developer installs non-potable infrastructure
- Reduce potable plant investment fees by varying percentages
 - $_{\circ}~$ Most common solution in the region
 - Windsor, ELCO, North Weld, Evans, and Brighton require non-potable and reduce potable PIFs (varying percentages)



Policy Details – PIF Reduction

Residential Building Type	Lot Size	Non-Potable in Common Area	Non-Potable House to House
Row House	>1,000 s.f.	50%	N/A
Detached House - Small Format	1,500-3,000 s.f.	50%	50%
Detached or Multi-Unit House - Small Lot	3,000-4,500 s.f.	40%	50%
Detached or Multi-Unit House - Medium Lot	4,500-6,000 s.f.	30%	50%
Detached or Multi-Unit House - Standard Lot	6,000-13,000 s.f.	25%	50%
Detached House-Estate Lot	>13,000 s.f.	N/A	50%

***Reductions are not cumulative**

Process Timeline

November 2020-June

- Policy Discussion W&S Board
- Community Development Engagement
- Informal Stakeholder Engagement
- Benchmarks with other communities

July-September

- Builder/Developer Workshop (7/19)
- Presentation of Master Plan and related policy recommendations
- Planning Commission (8/24 & 9/14)

November-January 2022

- WS Board Recommended to City Council (11/17)
- City Council Consideration of Ordinance (12/7 & 1/18)

Recommendation

Adopt the ordinance to amend Title 20 of the Greeley Municipal Code concerning the use of non-potable water supplies and the assessment of plant investment fees when non-potable water is utilized for irrigation.



Questions?



Council Agenda Summary

January 18, 2022

Key Staff Contact: Sean Chambers, Water & Sewer Director, 970-350-9815

<u>Title:</u>

Public hearing and final reading of an ordinance authorizing the acquisition of interests in real property located in Weld County related to the development of the Terry Ranch Potable Water Treatment Plant and Additional Water Transmission Lines and Associated Facilities by purchase or exercise of power of eminent domain pursuant to Section 7 of Article XVI, Section 15 of article II, and Sections 1 and 6 of Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and Colorado Revised Statute § 38-1-101, et seq. (Terry Ranch Water Supply Project)

<u>Summary:</u>

This ordinance authorizes the acquisition of property interests by purchase or by exercise of power of eminent domain, if deemed necessary, required to construct the Terry Ranch Water Supply Project.

The Terry Ranch Water Supply Project is a water supply and storage project that will help fulfill the water needs of the City's growing population. The project will develop approximately 1.2 million acre-feet of non-tributary groundwater from an underground aquifer located in northwest Weld County. A critical component of this project is the construction of a by-directional transmission pipeline from the Terry Ranch aquifer location to the City's existing water transmission line located near Windsor.

The City anticipates construction of the first phase of this project, which includes the southern six miles of the pipeline, starting in 2022. The future phases of the project, encompassing the remaining 24 miles, are anticipated to reach final design and construction during 2025 to 2040.

The Project will require the acquisition of tracts of fee simple land, permanent easements, and temporary construction easements from properties along the pipeline alignment. City staff have begun discussions with owners within the project area. As the Project progresses, staff will continue to work with owners to meet the goals of the project, address site considerations, and acquire the property interests necessary for the project. Staff fully intend to negotiate in good faith and follow a uniform acquisition process for all affected owners. Authorization for the acquisition of property interests by purchase or by exercise of power of eminent domain, if deemed necessary, is needed to meet the schedule and budget requirements of the project. The Greeley Water Board considered and approved a Board Resolution at their December 15th meeting and recommended Council approval.

Fiscal Impact:

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley?	Yes		
If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?	to be negotiated, based upon fair market valuation		
What is the annual impact?	No ongoing annual impact		
What fund of the City will provide Funding?422-Water Cons			
What is the source of revenue within the fund?	Plant Investment Fees & Water Rates		
Is there grant funding for this item?	No		
If yes, does this grant require a match?	NA		
Is this grant onetime or ongoing?	NA		
Additional Comments:			

Legal Issues:

Consideration of this matter is a legislative process which includes the following public hearing steps:

- 1) City staff presentation (if requested)
- 2) Council questions of staff
- 3) Public input (hearing opened, testimony up to three minutes per person, hearing closed)
- 4) Council discussion
- 5) Council decision

Other Issues and Considerations:

At their December 15, 2021 meeting of the Board, the Greeley Water & Sewer Board approved a Resolution recommending City Council approval authorizing the acquisition of interests in real property necessary for the construction of facilities necessary for the development of the Terry Ranch Project.

Strategic Work Program Item or Applicable Council Priority and Goal:

Infrastructure & Growth: Establish the capital and human infrastructure to support and maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and successful community.

Decision Options:

- 1) Adopt the ordinance as presented; or
- 2) Amend the ordinance and adopt as amended; or
- 3) Deny the ordinance; or
- 4) Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain.

Council's Recommended Action:

A motion to adopt the ordinance and publish with reference to title only.

Attachments:

- 1. Ordinance
- 2. Exhibit A to Ordinance Property Ownership List
- 3. PowerPoint slides on the matter including project map

Item No. 16.

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO ORDINANCE NO. ____, 2022

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF GREELEY TO ACQUIRE INTERESTS IN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED IN WELD COUNTY, COLORADO RELATED TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE TERRY RANCH POTABLE WATER TREATMENT PLANT AND ADDITIONAL WATER TRANSMISSION LINES AND ASSOCIATED FACILITIES BY PURCHASE OR EXERCISE OF THE POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN, PURSUANT TO SECTION 7 OF ARTICLE XVI, SECTION 15 OF ARTICLE II, AND SECTIONS 1 AND 6 OF ARTICLE XX OF THE COLORADO CONSTITUTION AND CRS §§ 31-15-101, et seq.; 38-1-101, et seq. (TERRY RANCH WATER SUPPLY PROJECT)

WHEREAS, the City of Greeley ("City") is a Colorado home-rule municipality empowered, pursuant to Article II, Section 15, and Article XX, Sections 1 and 6 of the Colorado Constitution, as affirmed by the City's Charter, Sections 1-3, to exercise the power of eminent domain to acquire real property to construct, operate, and maintain transportation systems and other public works and everything required to do so, with the payment of just compensation; and,

WHEREAS, C.R.S. §§ 31-15-101, *et seq.*, and 38-1-101, *et seq.*, provide statutory authority and procedures for the exercise of the power of eminent domain by the City; and

WHEREAS, the City has determined that the development of a potable water treatment plant located on the former Terry Ranch and related additional water transmission lines and associated facilities are needed for the public purpose of delivery of improved potable water services for the City's citizens, and thereby, promote growth; and

WHEREAS, accordingly, the acquisition of interests in real property in Weld County identified and depicted on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein, either through purchase or exercise of the City's power of eminent domain, is necessary.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO:

Section 1. The City Council hereby finds and determines that it is in the interest of the health, safety, and welfare of the public, serves a public purpose, and is necessary to acquire the real property identified and depicted on Exhibit A.

Section 2. Should City staff be unsuccessful in negotiating a mutual agreement for the purchase of the property, the City Council hereby directs City staff to begin acquisition by eminent domain, including, but not limited to, obtaining immediate possession of the Property, pursuant to the above-named statutes.

Section 3. The City Council hereby ratifies any previous actions by City staff in providing notice of the City's intent to acquire the property and extending an offer to purchase the

property. Nothing contained in this ordinance shall be construed as precluding or preventing continued good faith negotiations by City staff in an effort to purchase the property.

Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after its final publication as provided by the City's Charter, Section 3-16.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this _____ day of ____, 2022.

ATTEST:

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO

City Clerk

Mayor

Attachment: Exhibit A – Property Ownership Map

PROJECT PARCEL NUMBER	ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBER	Owner Name	Attn	OWNER ADDRESS	PROPERTY ADDRESS	Legal
3	080706100004	Alden V. Hill/ Deseran Family Revocable Trust		318 S. Grant Ave Fort Collins, CO 80521	35106 County Rd 13 Windsor, CO 80550	5-6N-67W
6	080706100032, 080706400030	Serfer Ventures LLC		4315 E. Harmony Rd Fort Collins, CO 80528	6776 County Rd 74 Windsor, CO 80550	6-6N-67W
7	080705300016, 080705300015, 080705200017	Daniel H. Varra Trustee		35412 County Rd 15 Windsor, CO 80550	Same	5-6N-67W
9, 10	080705200062, 080705200061	James A. Ochsner TRUST		35936 County Rd 15 Windsor, CO 80550	Same	5-6N-67W
13, 15	070532000044, 070532000050	3 Lazy J Ranch LLP	Doug Ochsner	7422 County Rd 74 Windsor, CO 80550	Vacant Land	32-7N-67W
19	070532000049	Kennth L. Hauff		36648 County Rd 15 Windsor, CO 80550	Same	32-7N-67W
20	070532000048	Shawn C. Elworthy		1072 Hawk Ct Windsor, CO 80550	36758 Weld County Rd 15 Windsor, CO 80550	32-7N-67W
22, 23	070532000033, 070529000014	North Windsor Holdings LLC		6355 Fairgrounds Ave STE 300 Windsor, CO 80550	Vacant Land	32-7N-67W
28	070529200040	Larimer & Weld Irrigation Company	Kim Nelson/Aut umn Pinfold	106 Elm Ave Eaton,	Vacant Land	29-7N-67W
29	070529200011	Gregory S. Walker	Pinioia	7288 County Rd 78 Windsor, CO 80550	Vacant Land	29-7N-67W
30	070529000001	Winter North Family Partnership		5207 W. 13th Street Rd Greeley, CO 80634	37727 HIGHWAY 257	29-7N-67W
32	070520000019	Marvin L. Heckman Sr.	John Heckman	38105 State Hwy 257 Fort Collins, CO 80524	7525 County Rd 78 Windsor, CO 80550	20-7N-67W
33	070521000020	Alan R. Martens		8019 County Rd 78 Fort Collins, CO 80524	Same	21-7N-67W
34, 36, 38, 40, 42	070521300002, 070521200001, 070516300002, 070516000054, 070521000004	Cactus Hill Ranch Company	Nels Nelson	P.O. Box 691 Windsor, CO 80550	Vacant Land	21-7N-67W
	070516300002	Cactus Hill Ranch Company	Nels Nelson	P.O. Box 691 Windsor, CO 80550		
35	070528000019	George A. Nelson Farm Inc.		8088 County Rd 78 Fort Collins, CO 80524	Same	28-7N-67W

47	070516000016	K & M	Tom Moore	P.O. Box 449 Fort	39988 County Road 19	21-7N-67W
		Company		Collins, CO 80522	Fort Collins, CO 80524	
43	070516100063	Silicon Ranch		222 2nd Ave S. STE	Vacant Land	16-7N-67W
		Corporation		1900 Nashville, TN		
				37201		
46	070516100062	James K.		39943 County Rd 19	8850 HWY 14 Fort	16-7N-67W
		Miller/Gina L.		Fort Collins, CO 80524	Collins, CO 80524	
		Hergenreder/M				
		arilyn G.				
		Schroeder				
39	070521200003	City of		9500 Civic Center Dr.	Vacant Land	21-7N-67W
		Thornton		Thornton, CO 80229		
49	070510300033	Hitz Financial		1001 A East Harmony	9151 HWY 14 Fort	10-7N-67W
		Group LLC		Rd Unit 410 Fort	Collins, CO 80524	
				Collins, CO 80525		
52	070510200022	Thomas E.		40525 County Rd 21	Vacant Land	10-7N-67W
		Honn		, Ault, CO 80610		
53	070510200023	Michelle King		9152 County Rd 84	Same	10-7N-67W
		_		Fort Collins, CO 80524		
54	070503300032	Leslie R. Gelvin		40719 Remington RD	41378 County Rd 19 Fort	3-7N-67W
				Fort Collins, CO 80524	Collins, CO 80524	
50	070502200021	Lind Louinson	Kina Davaau	25201 County Dd 41	41270 County Dd 10 Cout	2 711 (7)4/
58	070503200031	Lind Larimer	Kim Dorsey		41378 County Rd 19 Fort	3-7N-67W
		Development		Eaton, CO 80615	Collins, CO 80524	
61 64	055522401004 055522401006	Inc.		8675 County Rd 86	9775 County Dd 96 Fort	33-8N-67W
61, 64	055533401004, 055533401006	Francisco			8775 County Rd 86 Fort	33-8IN-07VV
		Valencia		Fort Collins, CO 80524	Collins, CO 80524	
64, 65	055534000009, 055534000013	Diana Frances		9080 County Rd 102	Vacant Land	33-8N-67W
		Varra and		Nunn, CO 80648		
		Thomas Edward				
		Varra				
63	055533401005	Judith A.		42251 County Rd 19	Same	33-8N-67W
		Okeefe		Fort Collins, Co 80524		
99	045327000010	David D.		49636 County Rd 19	Same	27-9N-67W
		Vankemper		Nunn, CO 80648		
100	045327000009	Thomas E.		9080 County Rd 102	Same	27-9N-67W
		Varra		Nunn, CO 80648		
103	045322300015	Brown		9081 County Rd 102	Same	22-9N-67W
		Compound LLC		Nunn, CO 80648		
104	45322300017,	Suzanne		9219 County Rd 102	Same	22-9N-67W
		Ramsay		Nunn, CO 80648		
		í í				

109	045315300010	William L. & Connie K. Kral		P.O. Box 251 Nunn, CO 80648	50585 County Rd 21	22-9N-67W
		Faryna		CU 80048	Nunn, CO 80648	
		Notified				
		10/1/21 that				
		Connie Passed				
		away in a car				
		accident				
110	045322000006	Connie K. &		50585 County Rd 21	Vacant Land	22-9N-67W
		Matthew J.		Nunn, CO 80648		
		Faryna Notified				
		10/1/21 that				
		Connie Passed				
		away in a car				
		accident				
112	045315300008	Daryl F. &		P.O. Box 976	9309 County Rd 104	15-9N-67W
		Cynthia M.		Wellington, CO 80549	Nunn, CO 80648	
447	045245202040	Burkhart		54630 C + D 40		45.001.0704
117	045315200018	Willard & Emily		51620 County Rd 19	Same	15-9N-67W
119	045315200017	Bink Eric M. &		Nunn, CO 80648 6801 Loudon St.	51726 County Rd 19	15-9N-67W
113	043513200017	Shannon N.		Wellington, CO 80549	Nunn, CO 80648	15 511 07 10
		Pflueger				
120	045315200030	Chad R.		51984 County Rd 19	51980 County Rd 19	15-9N-67W
		Wangeline		Nunn, CO 80648	Nunn, CO 80648	
123	045310300025	Rebecca & Don		P.O. Box 172	9015 County Rd 106	10-9N-67W
		T. Smith		Wellington, CO 80549	Nunn, CO 80648	
125	045310300019	Kevin D. Smith		52350 County Rd 19	Same	10-9N-67W
				Carr, CO 80612		
126	45310400013	Jeffrey Scott &		52255 County Rd 21	Same	10-9N-67W
		Constance L. Barber		Nunn, CO 80648		
127	045310400012	Clyde M. &		52485 County Rd 21	Same	10-9N-67W
		Mary K. Brown		Nunn, CO 80648		
129	045310100011	Rouse Farms	Jerry K.	15627 County Rd 108	Vacant Land	10-9N-67W
		CO LP	Rouse	Nunn, CO 80648		
130	045303000005, 030334000006,	Laura D. Reck		7150 State Highway	Vacant Land	3-9N-67W
	030334200007			392 Windsor, CO		
132	030334300001	Cindy Sharpe		80550 6605 Kremers Lane	Vacant Land	34-10N-67W
				Laporte, CO 80535		
133	030334000006	Sonja Kay		475 Buckeye Ave	Vacant Land	34-10N-67W
		Hutchinson		Eaton, CO 80615		
137	030333000002	M. J. Diehl &	Rodney A.	14768 NE Frontage Rd	Vacant Land	33-10N-67W
	-	Sons, Inc	Diehl	Carr, CO 80612		

138	030328000001	State of		1127 N. Sherman St.	Vacant Land	28-10N-67W
		Colorado		STE 300 Denver, CO		
139	020204000002 020202200012	Dieley Collogoo		80203 8829 N. County Rd 9	Vacant Land	27-10N-67W
139	030304000002, 030303200013	Ricky Gallegos		Wellington, CO 80549		27-1010-07 00
				Weinington, CO 80549		
141	030321000003	Thomas		7900 County Rd 120	Vacant Land	21-10N-67W
		Marjorie J.		Carr, CO 80612		
		Family Trust &				
		Thomas Lloyd				
		E. Family Trust				
142	030316000001, 030309000005,	Thomas Ranch		7900 County Rd 120	Vacant Land	16-10N-67W
	020128100008	LLC		Carr, CO 80612		
146	030309100004	Larry E. Thomas		7900 County Rd 120	Vacant Land	9-10N-67W
140	030303100004	Earry E. monias		Carr, CO 80612	Vacant Lana	5 1010 0710
				can, co 00012		
149		Kevin Sullivan		P.O. Box 1288	Vacant Land	33-11N-67W
				Longmont, CO 80502		
152	020133100003	Adiba & Ali		2732 Denver Dr. Fort	Vacant Land	33-11N-67W
		Akbary		Collins, CO 80525		
153	020128000002	RCR Homestead		19706 E. Girard Dr.	Vacant Land	28-11N-67W
		LLC	Staples	Aurora, CO 80013		
90	045334300002	Barnes James	Paul Kenny	19 Old Town Sq STE	Vacant Land	34-9N-67W
		Loren Dynasty		238 Fort Collins, CO		
		Trust		80524		
88	045334200019	James L. Barnes		2862 Deming Blvd	Vacant Land	4-8N-67W
				Cheyenne, WY 82001		
87	055503000006	Rocky	Joe Evers	P.O. Box 173779	Vacant Land	3-8N-67W
		Mountain		Denver, CO 80217		
73	055527000017, 055522000006, 055515000006	Spabs LLC		4100 E Mississippi Ave		28-8N-67W
				STE 500 Glendale, CO		
			Alan Klein	80246	Vacant Land	
84	055510300006	Troy & Shana		6331 W. 13th St. Rd	46250 County Rd 19 Ca	10-8N-67W
86	055510200007	Hess Shawn Thomas		Greeley, CO 80634 9250 County Rd 96	Vacant Land	10-8N-67W
80	033310200007	Howes		Nunn, CO 80648		10-010-07 00
		nowes		Numi, co 80040		
		Laramie-Poudre				27-8N-67W
		Irrigation				
		Company				
	045322300016	Shaylee &		9261 County Road	Same	22-9N-67W
		Tannar Long		102 Nunn, CO 80648		
	045322300011	Gregory Phillips		9353 County Road	Same	22-9N-67W
		& S Michelle		102 Nunn, CO 80648	Same	
		Pearson				

020121000002	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	8821 County Road 126
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	Carr Co
080331101004	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	
005120400004	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	
051204000010	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	
005121100005	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	
005122300002	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	
005123100001	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	
005125100004	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	
005127100005	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	
005129100005	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	
005134400003	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	
005135100002	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	
020101000005	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	
020102400002	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	
020103000004	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	
002104400005	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	
002105000008	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	
002107000005	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	
002108000006	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170	
	Assn	CHEYENNE, WY 820033170	

02019900002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 02011100003 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 020113000094 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 020115000005 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 020117000003 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 020120100009 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 020122000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 020123000002						
Image: Constraint of the second sec		020109000002	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170		
Image: Constraint of the second state of th						
Assn CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020113000004 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020115000005 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 020117000003 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 020117000003 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 0201120000001 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 020120100009 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 0201201000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 020122000003 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 020122000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 82003170 0				820033170		
Assn CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020113000004 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020115000005 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020117000003 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020119000001 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020120100002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020120100002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020122000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020122000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020122000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 82003		020111000003	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170		
020113000004 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WV 22003170 020115000005 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WV 22003170 020117000003 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WV 22003170 020117000003 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WV 22003170 0201170000001 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WV 22003170 020120100009 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WV 22003170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WV 22003170 020122000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WV 22003170 020122000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WV 22003170 0201220000002 <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>CHEYENNE, WY</td><td></td><td></td></td<>				CHEYENNE, WY		
CHEVENNE, WY CHEVENNE, WY 020115000005 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 020117000003 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 020117000003 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 02011000001 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 020120100009 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 020120100009 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 020122000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY <td></td> <td></td> <td>, (3511</td> <td>820033170</td> <td></td> <td></td>			, (3511	820033170		
Assn CHEVENNE, WY 82003370 020115000005 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003370 020117000003 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003370 020119000001 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003370 020120100009 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 82003370 020120100002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003370 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003370 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003370 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003370 020122000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003370 020122000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003370 020122000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 02013000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020132000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020132000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 0201320000015 Miller Bettle & Road		020113000004	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170		
Image: Constraint of the second sec		020110000001		CHEYENNE, WY		
020115000005 Terry Grazing Assn PO B 0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020117000003 Terry Grazing Assn PO B 0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020112000001 Terry Grazing Assn PO B 0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 02012010009 Terry Grazing Assn PO B 0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B 0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B 0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B 0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020122000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B 0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020122000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B 0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B 0X 3170 CHEVENNE, WY			ASSI			
International Construction International System International System 0201170000003 Terry Grazing Assn CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 PO B0X 3170 020112000001 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 International System 020120100009 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 International System 020120100002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 International System 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 International System 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 International System 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 International System 020122000003 Terry Grazing Assn CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 International System 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 International System		020115000005	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170		
August 1 August 2		020115000005				
020117000003 Terry Grazing Assn PD 80X 3170 (EHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020120100009 Terry Grazing Assn PO 80X 3170 (EHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020120100009 Terry Grazing Assn PO 80X 3170 (EHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO 80X 3170 (EHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO 80X 3170 (EHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO 80X 3170 (EHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020122000003 Terry Grazing Assn PO 80X 3170 (EHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO 80X 3170 (EHEYENNE, WY 82003170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO 80X 3170 (EHEYENNE, WY 82003170 02015200021 City of Thornion Severance 070516000015 Berison Michele 800 1/2 Severance 07050			Assn			
Assn BCHENOLOGI Assn CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020120100009 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020122000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003		020117000002	Tama Casala a			
Assn B20033170 E 20119000001 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 02012010009 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 02012200003 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020122000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020122000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn CHEYENNE, WY 82003170 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 82003170 070515000015 Miller Bettle & Benson Michele 39820 Weld County Road 19 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 8000Weld County 070516000015 Ruiz Carmelo Road 19 2885 Saddl		020117000003				
20130000001 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020120100009 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020122000003 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020122000003 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020123000001 City of Thornton Thornton 070516000015 Miller Bettle & Bason Michele 39820 Weld County Road 19 070516000016 Ruiz Carmelo 39930 Weld County Road 19 070516000018 ToK Land & Cattle LLC Severance 070509401092 Sa			Assn			
Assn 820033170CHEVENNE, WY 820033170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170020121000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170020121000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170020121000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170020122000003Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170020122000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170020122000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170020123000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170020123000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170020123000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170020123000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170020123000002Terry Grazing AssnRead 19 Read 80 1/207051600015Miller Bettie & Road 80 1/2	<u>├</u> ──── │ ─	20//20202222				
Number Recent Provided Prov		201190000001				
020120100009 Terry Grazing Assn PO EX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 02012200003 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 070515200021 City of Thorinton PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 8004 19 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 8004 19 070516000015 Miller Bettle & Sam 3988 Weld County Road 80-1/2 PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 8000 Weld County Road 80-1/2 070516000058 K&M Company K&M Company 8000 Weld County Road 80-1/2 Severance 070509401081 <td></td> <td></td> <td>Assn</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>			Assn			
AssnCHEVENNE, WY 820033170020121000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170020121000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170020122000003Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170020122000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170020123000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 800331700201230000015Miller Bettie & 39820 Weld County Road 19070516000016Ruiz Carmelo Ruiz Carmelo Cattle LLCSeverance070509401081TDK Land & MetropolitanSeverance07052000019HecK	├					
Asin820033170020121000002Terry Grazing AsinPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170020121000002Terry Grazing AsinPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170020122000003Terry Grazing AsinPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170020122000003Terry Grazing AsinPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170020123000002Terry Grazing AsinPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 8200331700201230000015Miller Bettie & Baad 19PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 800 Weld County Road 80-1/2070516000016Ruiz Carmelo Road 80-1/22885 Saddler Blvd Severance070509401081TDK Land & Cattle LCSeverance07050900019Heckman Marvin L Sr, Heckman38105 HIGHWAY 257 WELD		020120100009	Terry Grazing			
020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 20033170 020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 20033170 020122000003 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 20033170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO B0X 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 82003170 070516000015 Miller Bettle & James 39820 Weld County Road 19 070516100061 Benson Michele 39820 Weld County Road 19 070516000016 Ruiz Carmelo 39888 Weld County Road 19 070516000058 K&M Company 8500 Weld County Road 19 070516000058 K&M Company 8500 Weld County Road 80-1/2 070509401081 TDK Land & Cattle LLC 2885 Saddler Blvd Severance 07052000019 Heckman 38105 HiGHWAY 257 WELD			Assn			
AssnCHEVENNE, WY 82003317002012100002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003317002012200003Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003317002012300002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003317002012300002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003317002012300002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003317002012300002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003317007051520021City of ThornonCHEVENNE, WY 82003317007051600015Miller Bettle & James39820 Weld County Road 19070516100061Benson Michele8765 Weld County Road 19070516000016Ruiz Carmelo Road 192885 Saddler Blvd Saddler Blvd Cattle LLC070509401081TDK Land & Cattle LLC2885 Saddler Blvd Severance07052000019Heckman Marvin LSr, Heckman38105 HiGHWAY 257 WELD						
Assn82003170020121000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170020122000003Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170020123000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170020123000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170020123000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 8200317002012300002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 82003170020123000021City of ThoritoinPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 8200317007051600015Miller Bettie & James39820 Weld County Road 80-1/2070516000016Ruiz Carmelo39988 Weld County Road 80-1/2070516000058K&M Company8500 Weld County Road 80-1/2070509401091TDK Land & Cattle LICSeverance070509401092Saddler Ridge Metropolitan38105 HiGHWAY 257 WELD07052000019Heckman Marvin LSr, Heckman38105 HiGHWAY 257 WELD		020121000002	Terry Grazing			
020121000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020122000003 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 020123000002 Terry Grazing Assn PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 070515200021 City of Thornton CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 07051600015 Miller Bettle & James 39820 Weld County Road 19 070516000016 Ruiz Carmelo 39988 Weld County Road 80-1/2 070516000016 Ruiz Carmelo 39988 Weld County Road 80-1/2 070516000058 K&M Company KeM Company 8500 Weld County Road 80-1/2 070509401081 TDK Land & Cattle LLC Severance 070509401092 Saddler Ridge Metropolitan 38105 HiGHWAY 257 WELD 070520000019 Heckman Marvin L Sr, Heckman 38105 HiGHWAY 257 WELD			Assn			
Assn Assn AssnCHEYENNE, WY 82003170020122000003Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 82003170020123000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 82003170070515200021City of ThorntonImage Road 19070516000015Miller Bettle & James39820 Weld County Road 19070516000016Ruiz Carmelo39988 Weld County Road 80-1/2070516000016Ruiz Carmelo39988 Weld County Road 19070516000018TDK Land & Cattle LLC2885 Saddler Blvd Severance070509401081TDK Land & Metropolitan District2885 Saddler Blvd Severance070509000019Heckman Marvin L Sr, Heckman38105 HIGHWAY 257 WELD						
AssnCHEYENNE, WY 82003317002012200003Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 82003317002012300002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 82003317002012300002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 82003317002012300002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 82003317002012300002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 82003317007051520021City of ThorntonPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 82003317007051600015Miller Bettle & James39820 Weld County Road 1907051600016Benson Michele8765 Weld County Road 20-1/2070516000016Ruiz Carmelo39988 Weld County Road 19070516000058K&M Company8500 Weld County Road 19070509401081TDK Land & Cattle LLC2885 Saddler Blvd Severance070509401092Saddler Ridge Metropolitan Herkman38105 HIGHWAY 257 WELD070520000019Heckman Marvin LSr, Heckman38105 HIGHWAY 257 WELD		020121000002	Terry Grazing			
Image: constraint of the second sec						
AssnCHEYENNE, WY 820033170020123000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170020123000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170020123000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170070515200021City of ThorntonCHEYENNE, WY 82003317007051600015Miller Bettie & James39820 Weld County Road a 80-1/207051600016Benson Michele8765 Weld County Road 80-1/207051600016Ruiz Carmelo Road 1939988 Weld County Road 80-1/207051600016Ruiz Carmelo Road 80-1/22885 Saddler Blvd Severance07051600018TDK Land & Metropolitan2885 Saddler Blvd Severance070509401092Saddler Ridge Metropolitan38105 HIGHWAY 257 WELD07052000019HeckmanWetD						
AssnCHEVENNE, WY 82003317002012300002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 82003317002012300002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 82003317002012300002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 82003317007051520021City of ThorntonCHEYENNE, WY 82003317007051600015Miller Bettie & James39820 Weld County Road 19070516100061Benson Michele8765 Weld County Road 80-1/207051600016Ruiz Carmelo39988 Weld County Road 80-1/2070516000058K&M Company Road 80-1/28500 Weld County Road 80-1/2070516000058K&M Company Road 80-1/22885 Saddler Blvd Severance070509401091TDK Land & Metropolitan2885 Saddler Blvd Severance07052000019Heckman Marvin L Sr, Heckman38105 HIGHWAY 257 WELD		020122000003	Terry Grazing			
Action820033170020123000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170020123000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEVENNE, WY 820033170070515200021City of Thornton070515200021City of Thornton070516000015Miller Betie & James39820 Weld County Road 19070516000016Ruiz Carmelo39828 Weld County Road 19070516000016Ruiz Carmelo39988 Weld County Road 19070516000058K&M Company Road 198500 Weld County Road 19070516000058K&M Company Road 192885 Saddler Blvd Severance070509401081TDK Land & District2885 Saddler Blvd Severance070509401092Saddler Ridge Metropolitan District38105 HIGHWAY 257 WELD07052000019HeckmanMarvin L Sr, HeckmanWELD						
Assn 82003170CHEYENNE, WY 82003170020123000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170070515200021City of Thornton070516000015Miller Bettie & James39820 Weld County Road 19070516000016Ruiz Carmelo39820 Weld County Road 19070516000016Ruiz Carmelo39988 Weld County Road 19070516000016Ruiz Carmelo39988 Weld County Road 19070516000016Ruiz Carmelo39988 Weld County Road 19070516000016Ruiz Carmelo39988 Weld County Road 39070516000016Ruiz Carmelo3988 Weld County Road 39070509401081TDK Land & Cattle LLCSeverance070509401092Saddler Ridge Metropolitan District38105 HIGHWAY 257 WELD070520000019HeckmanWelchwan Marvin L Sr, HeckmanWELD						
Assn 82003170CHEYENNE, WY 82003170020123000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170070515200021City of Thornton070516000015Miller Bettie & James39820 Weld County Road 19070516000016Ruiz Carmelo39820 Weld County Road 19070516000016Ruiz Carmelo39988 Weld County Road 19070516000016Ruiz Carmelo39988 Weld County Road 19070516000016Ruiz Carmelo39988 Weld County Road 19070516000016Ruiz Carmelo39988 Weld County Road 39070516000016Ruiz Carmelo3988 Weld County Road 39070509401081TDK Land & Cattle LLCSeverance070509401092Saddler Ridge Metropolitan District38105 HIGHWAY 257 WELD070520000019HeckmanWelchwan Marvin L Sr, HeckmanWELD		020123000002	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170		
AccessBencomeBencomeBencome020123000002Terry Grazing AssnPO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170PO BOX 3170 CHEYENNE, WY 820033170070515200021City of ThorntonCity of ThorntonImage: Cherry Grazing CHEYENNE, WY 82003317007051600015Miller Bettie & James39820 Weld County Road 19Image: Cherry Grazing Road 19070516100061Benson Michele Road 80-1/28765 Weld County Road 9Image: Cherry Grazing Road 19070516000016Ruiz Carmelo Road 1939988 Weld County Road 19Image: Cherry Grazing Road 19070516000058K&M Company Cattle LLC8500 Weld County Road 80-1/2Image: Cherry Grazing Road 19070509401081TDK Land & DistrictSeveranceImage: Cherry Grazing Road 19Image: Cherry Grazing Road 19070520000019Heckman HeckmanMarvin L Sr, HeckmanMarvin L Sr, WELDWELD				CHEYENNE, WY		
Assn CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 070515200021 City of Thornton 070516000015 Miller Bettie & James 39820 Weld County Road 19 070516100061 Benson Michele 8765 Weld County Road 80-1/2 070516000016 Ruiz Carmelo 39988 Weld County Road 19 070516000058 K&M Company 8500 Weld County Road 19 070516000058 K&M Company 8500 Weld County Road 80-1/2 070509401081 TDK Land & Cattle LLC 2885 Saddler Blvd Severance 070509401092 Saddler Ridge Metropolitan 38105 HiGHWAY 257 WELD 070520000019 Heckman 38105 HiGHWAY 257 WELD			7,0011	820033170		
Assn CHEYENNE, WY 820033170 070515200021 City of Thornton 070516000015 Miller Bettie & James 39820 Weld County Road 19 070516100061 Benson Michele 8765 Weld County Road 80-1/2 070516000016 Ruiz Carmelo 39988 Weld County Road 19 070516000058 K&M Company 8500 Weld County Road 19 070516000058 K&M Company 8500 Weld County Road 80-1/2 070509401081 TDK Land & Cattle LLC 2885 Saddler Blvd Severance 070509401092 Saddler Ridge Metropolitan 38105 HiGHWAY 257 WELD 070520000019 Heckman 38105 HiGHWAY 257 WELD		020123000002	Terry Grazing	PO BOX 3170		
Image: Second				CHEYENNE, WY		
Image: Constraint of the section of the sec			A3311			
Image: Constraint of the section of the sec	<u> </u>	070515200021	City of			<u> </u>
Miller Bettie & James 39820 Weld County Road 19 Images Status 070516100061 Benson Michele 8765 Weld County Road 80-1/2 Images		070313200021				
JamesRoad 19070516100061Benson Michele8765 Weld County Road 80-1/2070516000016Ruiz Carmelo39988 Weld County Road 19070516000058K&M Company8500 Weld County Road 80-1/2070509401081TDK Land & Cattle LLC2885 Saddler Blvd Severance070509401092Saddler Ridge Metropolitan DistrictSattlo HIGHWAY 257 WELD07052000019Heckman Heckman38105 HIGHWAY 257 WELD	<u> </u>	070516000015		20020 Wold County		
070516100061 Benson Michele 8765 Weld County Road 80-1/2 070516000016 Ruiz Carmelo 39988 Weld County Road 19 070516000058 K&M Company 8500 Weld County Road 80-1/2 070509401081 TDK Land & Cattle LLC 2885 Saddler Blvd Severance 070509401092 Saddler Ridge Metropolitan District 38105 HIGHWAY 257 WELD 070520000019 Heckman WELD		01021000012				
Image: sector	<u>├</u> ───┤─	070546400064				
070516000016 Ruiz Carmelo 39988 Weld County Road 19 Image: Company Road 19 070516000058 K&M Company 8500 Weld County Road 80-1/2 Image: Company Road 80-1/2 070509401081 TDK Land & Cattle LLC 2885 Saddler Blvd Severance Severance 070509401092 Saddler Ridge Metropolitan Saddler Ridge Severance 070520000019 Heckman 38105 HIGHWAY 257 Warvin L Sr, Heckman Satlof Lightward 257 WELD		070516100061	Benson Michele	-		
Image: style styl						
070516000058 K&M Company 8500 Weld County Road 80-1/2 Image: Constraint of the second sec		070516000016	Ruiz Carmelo			
Image: state stat						
070509401081 TDK Land & 2885 Saddler Blvd Cattle LLC Severance 070509401092 Saddler Ridge Metropolitan Metropolitan District District 070520000019 Heckman Marvin L Sr, WELD Heckman Heckman		070516000058	K&M Company	8500 Weld County		
070509401081 TDK Land & 2885 Saddler Blvd Cattle LLC Severance 070509401092 Saddler Ridge Metropolitan Metropolitan District District 070520000019 Heckman Marvin L Sr, WELD Heckman Heckman				Road 80-1/2		
070509401092 Saddler Ridge Image: Composition of the composition o		070509401081	TDK Land &		2885 Saddler Blvd	
070509401092 Saddler Ridge Image: Composition of the composition o			Cattle LLC		<u>Severan</u> ce	
Metropolitan Metropolitan District District 070520000019 Heckman Marvin L Sr, WELD Heckman WELD		070509401092				
District District 070520000019 Heckman 38105 HIGHWAY 257 Marvin L Sr, WELD Heckman WELD			-			
070520000019 Heckman 38105 HIGHWAY 257 Marvin L Sr, WELD Heckman Heckman						
Marvin L Sr, WELD Heckman		070520000019			38105 HIGHWAY 257	
Heckman		0,002000010				
					WELD	
Dorothy A Dorothy A						
	I I		Dorothv A	1		l

Exhibit A

070520000019	Heckman		7525 COUNTY ROAD 78	
	Marvin L Sr,		WELD	
	Heckman			
	Dorothy A			
070521000020	Martens Alan R		Mar	

Terry Ranch Water Supply Project: Easement Acquisitions and Authorization of Eminent Domain



Presented to Greeley City Council

January 18th, 2021



2



Overview of Terry Ranch Water Infrastructure Project

- Water Infrastructure required
 - 31 miles of transmission lines
 - 10 miles of well field line
 - 45 wells
 - Water storage tanks
 - Water treatment plant
 - Related power infrastructure
- Construction of 1st 6 miles Begins Late 2022
 - Construction anticipated 2022-2025
- Remaining 25 miles
- Construction of 16 wells in 2022/2023



Item No. 16. **ry Ranch Water Supply Project Overview**


Tem No. 16. J Ranch Infrastructure Phase 1

4



Ter Ranch Water Sustainable Supply Project



Easement Acquisition Requirements

The City needs to acquire property interests along the 31-mile pipeline route from property owners in order to construct the project.

- Property interests may include fee simple tracts, permanent easements, and/or temporary easements as determined by final project plans.
- The City uses a uniform acquisition process, in accordance with law, to negotiate in good faith with all affected owners.
 - $_{\circ}~$ Council authorization is the first step in this process.



Easement Project Coordination

Land Owner Engagement

- City project staff have preliminarily engaged landowners
- REM will continue to meet with affected property owners to:
 - Provide an overview of the project, it's purpose, and schedule
 - Attend onsite meetings to understand concerns and any site constraints
 - Review the anticipated property interests needed for the project.
 - Review the subsurface pipeline easement acquisition process



Conclusions and Staff Recommendations:

 Water and Sewer Board Approve a Resolution to Acquire Property and Easements for the Terry Ranch Water Supply Project on December 15, 2021

8

 City Staff Recommends City Council adopt an Ordinance to Acquire Property and Easements for the Terry Ranch Water Supply Project



Questions ?





Council Agenda Summary

January 18, 2022

Key Staff Contact: Mayor Gates and Members of City Council

<u>Title:</u>

Public hearing and final reading of an Ordinance authorizing a salary and certain benefits for the City Manager, Raymond C. Lee III

<u>Summary:</u>

The City Council has selected Raymond C. Lee III to be appointed as the Greeley City Manager. The City Council has negotiated a contract with Mr. Lee which can be executed by the Mayor upon Council's approval of the Ordinance.

Fiscal Impact:

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley?	Yes
If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?	\$372,121
What is the annual impact?	\$372,121
What fund of the City will provide Funding?	General Fund
What is the source of revenue within the fund?	Appropriated 2022 Budget & Fund Balance
Is there grant funding for this item?	No
If yes, does this grant require a match?	
Is this grant onetime or ongoing?	
Additional Comments:	

Legal Issues:

Section 3-15 of the Greeley Municipal Charter requires the fixing of compensation to be by ordinance. Consideration of this matter is a legislative process.

Other Issues and Considerations:

None.

Strategic Work Program Item or Applicable Council Priority and Goal:

Infrastructure & Growth: Establish the capital and human infrastructure to support and maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and successful community.

Decision Options:

- 1) Introduce the ordinance as presented; or
- 2) Amend the ordinance and introduce as amended; or
- 3) Deny the ordinance; or
- 4) Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain.

Council's Recommended Action:

A motion to adopt the ordinance and publish with reference to title only.

Attachments:

City Manager Employment Contract

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO

ORDINANCE NO.____, 2022

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A SALARY AND CERTAIN BENEFITS FOR THE CITY MANAGER.

WHEREAS, Section 3-15 of the Greeley City Charter requires the fixing of compensation to be by ordinance; and

WHEREAS, on January 4, 2022 Raymond C. Lee III has been appointed City Manager by Resolution effective January 4, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the City Council feels that it is appropriate to set the City Manager's compensation.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, COLORADO:

- <u>Section 1.</u> The City Manager's salary is hereby set at \$260,740.00 annually.
- <u>Section 2.</u> Other terms: Additional terms of employment are provided in a City Manager Employment Agreement which is attached hereto as Attachment A.
- <u>Section 3.</u> The above referenced ordinance shall be effective upon passage and said salary shall be retroactive to January 4, 2022.
- <u>Section 4.</u> The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the attached City Manager Employment Agreement.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS ____ DAY OF JANUARY, 2022.

ATTEST: THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO

INTERIM CITY CLERK

MAYOR

EXHIBIT A

CITY MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This City Manager Employment Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into this 4th day of January, 2022 by and between the CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, a Colorado home rule municipality ("City") and Raymond C. Lee III, ("Employee"). City and Employee are sometimes hereinafter referred to individually as a "Party" and collectively as the "Parties".

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City desires to employ the services of Employee as City Manager of the City as provided by Article IV of the Charter of the City of Greeley, Colorado ("City Charter); and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Greeley City Council (the "Council") to provide certain compensation and benefits to Employee, establish the terms and conditions of Employee's employment with the City, and, to the extent permitted by law, define the working relationship between the Council and Employee; and

WHEREAS, Employee desires to accept employment with the City as City Manager in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, the City and Employee agree as follows:

I. DUTIES

The City hereby agrees to employ Employee as City Manager to perform the functions and duties specified in Article IV of the City Charter and to perform such other legally permissible and proper functions as provided in other provision of the City Charter, the City Code, and State law, and as the City Council may assign to Employee from time to time. Employee acknowledges and agrees that as City Manager he is an at-will City employee and is classified as an exempt employee under the Fair Labor Standards Act.

II. TERM

A. Employee shall commence employment with the City pursuant to this Agreement effective January 4, 2022 ("Effective Date"), and shall continue in that position pursuant to Section 4-1 of the City Charter for an indefinite term.

B. Nothing herein shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of the Council to terminate Employee's employment pursuant to this Agreement as provided for in the City Charter. Further, nothing herein shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of Employee to resign at any time from his employment as City Manager, provided, however, that Employee gives the City no less than thirty (30) days prior written notice of his intent to resign.

EXHIBIT A

III. COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

A. <u>Salary</u>. The City shall pay Employee an annual base salary of Two Hundred Sixty Thousand Seven Hundred Forty Dollars (\$260,740.00) commencing on the Effective Date, which shall be payable in periodic installments at the same time as other City employees are paid and subject to customary and mandatory deductions required by law and any deductions authorized by Employee. Any subsequent modifications of Employee's salary shall be accomplished by Council ordinance and shall be incorporated into this Agreement by this reference without the necessity of further modification or amendment of this Agreement.

B. <u>Paid Time Off</u>. Employee shall accrue paid time off at the rate of 12.31 hours per pay period (i.e. 8 weeks per calendar year) and shall accumulate, hold, and utilize paid time off as if Employee has tenure with the City of twenty-one years or more in accordance with City paid time off policies as described in the City's employee handbook.

C. <u>Executive Leave</u>. Employee shall receive forty hours of executive leave each calendar year. Executive leave shall be used in full day (8 hour) increments, and executive leave that is not used by the end of each calendar year shall not carry over to the following calendar year.

D. <u>Disability, Health, and Life Insurance</u>. The City will offer and provide Employee and his qualified dependents the same insurance benefit package and plans provided to all full-time employees of the City, which benefit packages and plans currently include, without limitation, group life, accidental death and dismemberment insurance, long-term and short-term disability insurance, health and dependent care flexible spending accounts, dental insurance, vision insurance, and major medical insurance.

E. <u>Medical and other Leave</u>. Employee shall be entitled to receive those medical leave benefits provided to all full-time employees of the City.

F. <u>Retirement</u>. The City shall contribute ten percent (10%) of Employee's annual base salary to the City's 401(k) retirement savings plan. The City's contributions shall be contributed in installments corresponding with Employee's usual pay schedule and shall be calculated based upon on the amount of Employee's salary paid each pay period. As of the Effective Date, the City's contributions shall be fully vested on behalf of Employee.

G. <u>Car Allowance</u>. The City shall pay Employee a car allowance in the amount of Six Hundred Dollars (\$600.00) per month to be used to purchase, lease, or own, operate and maintain a car.

H. <u>Relocation</u>. The City shall, according to City procurement procedures, contract with and pay a moving company the actual expenses of moving Employee and his family to their first permanent residence within the boundaries of the City up to an amount not more than Six Thousand Dollars (\$6,000.00). Such expenses shall include the actual cost of packing, moving, storage, unpacking, and insurance. Employee shall submit no more than one invoice for relocation expenses, and shall provide documentation as requested by the City's Finance Director.

I. <u>Temporary Housing</u>. City shall pay Employee for his actual expenses for temporary housing for himself and his family within the boundaries of the City; provided, however, that such temporary housing expenses shall not be paid for temporary housing more than sixty (60) days after the Effective Date and shall not exceed four thousand dollars (\$4,000.00). Employee shall submit no more than two requests for reimbursement of his temporary housing expenses, and shall provide proper documentation as requested by the City's Finance Director.

J. Consideration shall be given on an annual basis to increase Employee's salary and other benefits.

IV. GENERAL EXPENSES AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

A. <u>General Expenses</u>. To the extent that the City's Finance Director is authorized by applicable administrative procedures and policies of the City, the Finance Director is authorized to pay directly or reimburse Employee for non-personal and generally job-related expenses upon receipt of proper documentation submitted not more often than monthly.

B. <u>Professional Development</u>. The City agrees to budget for and to pay for professional dues and subscriptions for the benefit of Employee necessary for continuation and full participation in International City Managers Association (ICMA), National Forum Black Public Administrators (NFBPA), and Colorado Municipal League (CML), which are necessary and desirable for the Employee's continued professional participation, growth, and advancement, and for the good of the City. Further, the City agrees to budget for and to pay for travel and subsistence expenses of Employee for professional and official travel, meetings, and occasions necessary and desirable for Employee's professional development and to pursue necessary official functions for the City, including, but not limited to, the ICMA Annual Conference, Colorado Municipal League Annual Conference, and such other groups and committees in which Employee serves as a member.

C. <u>Community Activities</u>. The City recognizes the desirability of Employee participating in service and charitable organizations in the community and in the event Employee becomes a member of any such services or charitable organizations, the City will pay all reasonable expenses and fees related to such membership to the extent such expenses and fees are budgeted for and appropriated.

V. TERMINATION AND SEVERANCE

A. Pursuant to Article IV of the City Charter, Employee shall be considered an at-will employee under this Agreement and, therefore, the Council may remove Employee from his position as City Manager at any time with or without cause.

B. In the event that Employee is removed from his position as City Manager by the Council for "cause," Employee shall only be entitled to such accrued compensation and benefits as are required to be paid or provided to him under this Agreement. As used in this Section V, the word for "cause" shall mean: (1) conviction of a felony or a crime of moral turpitude; (2) dishonesty towards, fraud upon, or deliberate injury or attempted injury to the City; or (3) uncured breach by Employee of a term or condition of this Agreement.

EXHIBIT A

C. In the event that Employee voluntarily resigns from his employment with the City under this Agreement, Employee shall not be entitled to receive any further compensation, including, without limitation, severance pay, from the City accruing after the effective date of his resignation. Employee shall, however, be entitled to receive from the City all compensation and benefits that have accrued under this Agreement up to the effective date of his resignation. In the event Employee voluntarily resigns from his position as City Manager, Employee shall provide no less than thirty (30) days' notice to the City.

D. For the purposes of this Section V, termination shall occur if any of the following events occur:

1. The City, the electors of the City, the Colorado State Legislature or the Colorado Courts amend or abolish any provision of the City Charter, City Code, or state law pertaining to the duties, powers, role, authority, and responsibilities of the Employee's position as City Manager in such a manner that substantially changes the form of the City's government;

2. If the City materially reduces Employee's base salary, compensation, or any other benefit, unless such reduction is applied in a proportionally equal manner to all City employees;

3. If Employee resigns following an offer to accept resignation, whether formal or informal, by the City as representative of the majority of the governing body.

E. In the event that Employee is removed from his position as City Manager by the Council for any reason other than for "cause" as defined in Section V.B. above, or if a termination event occurs as defined in Section V.D. above, the City shall provide a severance payment equal to:

1. In the event Employee is removed from his position as provided in this Section V.E. in the first year of the Term of this Agreement, the City shall pay Employee one hundred percent (100%) of his annual base salary;

2. In the event Employee is removed from his position as provided in this Section V.E. in the second year of the Term of this Agreement, the City shall pay Employee eighty percent (80%) of his annual base salary;

3. In the event Employee is removed from his position as provided in this Section V.E. in the third year of the Term of this Agreement, the City shall pay Employee sixty percent (60%) of his annual base salary;

4. In the event Employee is removed from his position as provided in this Section V.E. in the fourth year of the Term of this Agreement, or any time thereafter, the City shall pay Employee fifty percent (50%) of his annual base salary.

The severance payment payable to Employee shall be paid in a lump sum unless otherwise agreed to by the City and Employee. The payment to be made is intended to compensate Employee for release of all legal and equitable claims of Employee, and shall be paid only in the event Employee executes a release of such claims in a form acceptable to the City.

F. In the event Employee voluntarily resigns from his position as City Manager under this Agreement or is removed from his position by the Council with or without cause, Employee shall retain all rights and benefits that may have accrued to him under any of the benefit, pension, or deferred compensation plans provided to him under this Agreement and that he is entitled to retain in accordance with the provisions of such plans and applicable law as any City employee who has resigned or been terminated from employment with the City would be entitled to retain.

VI. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

City Council shall, together with a third party agreeable to the Council and Employee, review the performance of the Employee no later than March 1 of each year in accordance with the performance review process for all City employees. The review shall focus on Employee's performance of the duties and responsibilities assigned to the City Manager position by the City Charter, City Code, and this Agreement, as well as the achievement of any goals or performance objectives established by the City Council in consultation with Employee. The review process shall, at a minimum, include the opportunity for the Parties to: (1) prepare a written evaluation, (2) meet and discuss the evaluation in a closed or open meeting of the City Council at the option of Employee; and (3) present a written summary of the evaluation results. The final written evaluation shall be completed and delivered to Employee within thirty (30) days of the evaluation meeting.

City Council agrees to increase said base salary and/or other benefits of Employee in such amounts and to such extent as City Council may determine that it is desirable to do so on the basis of (1) merit following an annual performance evaluation made at the same time as similar consideration is given other employees general; and (2) an annual analysis of salaries and compensation for similar positions within Colorado and nationally, conducted by the Human Resources Department or a third party consultant, to ensure the Employee's salary and benefits remain market competitive.

VII. HOURS OF WORK

It is recognized that Employee must devote a great deal of time outside normal office hours on business for the City. As City manager, Employee is subject to call at any time, is required to attend night meetings, and is required to participate in various activities that benefit the City, often working long hours and at times that are not considered normal working hours. The Council expects Employee to manage his schedule and working hours using good professional judgment in establishing an appropriate work schedule.

VIII. RESIDENCY REQUIREMENT

Pursuant to the City Charter, Employee agrees to reside within the boundaries of the City at all times during his employment pursuant to this Agreement. If Employee resides outside the boundaries of the City at the time this Agreement is executed, Employee shall relocate within the boundaries of the City by the first day of his/her employment as City Manager.

EXHIBIT A

IX.OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES

The employment provided by this Agreement shall be Employee's sole employment. Recognizing that certain outside consulting, teaching, or speaking opportunities provide indirect benefits to the City and the community, Employee may accept, with the Mayor's and Council's approval, limited consulting, teaching, and speaking opportunities where such opportunities shall not constitute interference with, nor a conflict of interest with, Employee's responsibilities under this Agreement. Employee shall submit all requests for outside consulting, teaching or speaking opportunities in writing to the Council.

X. INDEMNIFICATION

To the Extent the City is required and authorized to do so under the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act (C.R.S. § 24-10-101 *et seq.*) and other applicable law, the City shall indemnify and defend Employee for all civil claims brought against Employee which arise out of an alleged act or omission by Employee occurring during the performance of this Agreement, within the scope of his employment as City Manager, and provided that such act or omission is not willful or wanton.

XI. BONDING

City shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bond required of Employee under any law or ordnance and which is within the scope of his employment as City Manager.

XII. APPLICABILITY OF PERSONNEL POLICIES

A. Employee hereby acknowledged receipt of the City's current personnel rules and regulations, as now found in the City's Employee Handbook and available on the City of Greeley Intranet ("Personnel Policies"). Employee agrees to be bound by and adhere to the provision of the City's current Personnel Policies that apply to exempt management employees of the City, as they may be amended, modified, supplemented, or rescinded in the future.

B. In the event that any of the provisions of the Personnel Policies are inconsistent with or conflict with the terms of this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall be controlling.

XIII. ANNUAL APPROPRIATION

All financial obligations of the City under this Agreement shall be subject to the Council's annual appropriation of the funds necessary to satisfy such obligations.

XIV. NOTICES

Any notice or other communication required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given on the date of service if serviced personally, or three (3) days after mailing if mailed by certified first class mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, and addressed as follows: If to the City: City of Greeley

Attn: Mayor 1000 10th Street Greeley, CO 80631

If to Employee: Raymond C. Lee III 1415 60th Ave. Greeley, CO 80634

XV. GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. <u>Integration</u>. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding between the City and Employee relating to the employment of Employee by the City. Any prior discussions or representations by or between the Parties are merged into and rendered null and void by this Agreement. Although the City's Personnel Policies applicable to Employee, as provided in Section XII above, may be amended, modified, supplemented, or rescinded at any time, the terms of this Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by the Parties.

B. <u>Applicable Law and Venue</u>. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado and any judicial action brought by either Party to enforce the terms and conditions of this Agreement and/or to recover damages for a breach of this Agreement, shall be brought in the state courts located in Weld County, Colorado.

C. <u>Assignment</u>. This agreement is personal to the City and to Employee and may not be assigned or delegated by either Party without the prior written consent of the other Party.

D. <u>No Waiver</u>. All rights and remedies, whether conferred hereunder or by any other instrument or law, will be cumulative and may be exercised singularly or concurrently. No failure of either Party to enforce any term of this Agreement shall be deemed a waiver of future enforcement of that or any other term.

E. <u>Severability</u>. If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Agreement.

F. <u>Binding Effect</u>. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns.

G. <u>Counterparts and Electronic Signatures</u>. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and each of such counterparts shall, for all purposes, be deemed to be an original, and all such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same agreement. Facsimile and electronic signatures shall constitute original signatures for all purposes of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date first above written.

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO

By:

John Gates, Mayor

Attest:

Approved as to form:

Stacey Aurzada, Interim City Clerk

Douglas R. Marek, City Attorney

EMPLOYEE

Raymond C. Lee III

Council Agenda Summary

January 18, 2022

Agenda Item Number

Key Staff Contact: Stacey Aurzada, Interim City Clerk, 970-350-9742

<u>Title:</u>

Public Hearing and second reading of an Ordinance re-authorizing various Boards and Commissions for three years

<u>Summary:</u>

Section 2-8 of the City Charter provides that Council is to review its appointed advisory groups every three years and determine whether the board or commission continues to serve the purpose for which it was created and decide whether or not to authorize its continuance.

This provision was added to the Charter in 2001 and a staggered schedule was developed for reviewing one-third of the groups each year. Reauthorization has been approved for all groups since the addition of this Charter amendment.

The early process for triennial reviews included a Work Session meeting between Council and each Board to discuss Board accomplishments, goals and continued relevance. After several cycles of meeting with Council every three years, boards began preparing a written report for Council's review instead of the verbal report at a Work Session. Currently, Council receives an update of Board activity and plans through the quarterly Department Updates. Any programs or issues a Board or the Council would like discussed has been and can continue to be scheduled as needed.

The attached Ordinance re-authorizes the groups scheduled for a triennial review in 2021. An Ordinance is appropriate for the re-authorization because each group was initially authorized in the same fashion.

Does this item create a fiscal	No						
If yes, what is the ini	N/A						
What is the annual i	mpact?	N/A					
What fund of the Ci	ty will provide Funding?	N/A					
What is the source of revenue	What is the source of revenue within the fund?						
Is there grant funding for this	item?	No					
If yes, does this grant require	a match?	N/A					
Is this grant onetime or ongoi	N/A						
Additional Comments:	_1						

Fiscal Impact:

Legal Issues:

Consideration of this matter is a legislative process.

Other Issues and Considerations:

None.

Applicable Council Priority and Goal:

Infrastructure & Growth: Establish the capital and human infrastructure to support and maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and successful community.

Decision Options:

- 1) Adopt the ordinance as presented; or
- 2) Amend the ordinance and adopt as amended; or
- 3) Deny the ordinance; or
- 4) Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain.

Council's Recommended Action:

A motion to adopt the ordinance and publish with reference to title only

Attachments: Draft Ordinance

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO ORDINANCE NO. _____, 2022

AN ORDINANCE RE-AUTHORIZING VARIOUS BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS FOR THREE YEARS

WHEREAS, in November, 2001, Greeley voters approved an amendment to the Home Rule Charter, in Section 2-8 Appointive Boards and Commissions, to require that City Council review its advisory groups every three years to determine whether the board or commission continues to serve the purpose for which it was created and decide whether or not to authorize its continuance; and

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 59, 2002, was adopted by City Council October 15, 2002, to implement this Charter amendment and thereby created a triennial review schedule for appointive boards and commissions; and

WHEREAS, City Council is prepared to re-authorize these appointive groups for a threeyear period.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, COLORADO THAT:

<u>Section 1.</u> The following groups are hereby re-authorized for a period of three years from January 1, 2022, to expire December 31, 2024:

- 1) Construction Trades Advisory & Appeals Board
- 2) Greeley Art Commission
- 3) Greeley/Weld Housing Authority
- 4) Union Colony Civic Center Advisory Board

<u>Section 2.</u> This ordinance shall become effective five days after its final publication as provided by the Greeley City Charter.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED, THIS _____DAY OF _____, 2022.

ATTEST:

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO

Interim City Clerk

Mayor

Council Agenda Summary

January 18, 2022

Key Staff Contact: Raymond Lee, City Manager, 970-350-9785

<u>Title:</u>

Consideration of a motion approving the 2022 Council meeting and worksession schedule.

Summary:

Section 2-150 of the Greeley Municipal Code addresses Council's regular meetings, worksessions, and special meetings. This code section sets regular meetings on the first and third Tuesdays of each month, and worksessions on the 2nd and 4th Tuesdays of each month. The Council may change the day, hour or location of regular meetings or work sessions by motion. The Council may also set special meetings and special worksessions by motion.

Fiscal Impact:

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley?	N/A
If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?	
What is the annual impact?	
What fund of the City will provide Funding?	
What is the source of revenue within the fund?	
Is there grant funding for this item?	N/A
If yes, does this grant require a match?	
Is this grant onetime or ongoing?	
Additional Comments:	

Legal Issues:

None.

Other Issues and Considerations:

None.

Strategic Work Program Item or Applicable Council Priority and Goal:

Image: Reinforce Greeley's vision as an attractive and vibrant community in which to live, learn, work and play.

Decision Options:

- 1) Adopt the proposed Council meeting and worksession schedule;
- 2) Amend the proposed Council meeting and worksession schedule;
- 3) Continue consideration of the schedule to a date certain.

Council's Recommended Action:

A motion to approve the 2022 Council meeting and worksession schedule, to include the scheduling of special work sessions on February 18, 19 and 20.

Attachments:

Calendar setting forth the 2022 Council meeting and worksession schedule

City of Greeley City Council Calendar

January Su M Th F W Sa Т 2 5 6 10 12 13 14 9 11 15 18 19 21 20 22 16 🛧 17 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 31 30

April								
Su	М	Т	W	Th	F	Sa		
					1	2		
3	4	5	6	7	8	9		
10	11	12	13	14	15	16		
17	18	19	20	21	22	23		
24	25	26	27	28	29	30		

July								
Su	М	Т	W	Th	F	Sa		
					1	2		
3	★4	5	6	7	8	9		
10	11	12	13	14	15	16		
17	18	19	20	21	22	23		
24	25	26	27	28	29	30		
31								

October								
Su	Su M T		BuMTWTh		WThF		Sa	
						1		
2	3	4	5	6	7	8		
9	10	11	12	13	14	15		
16	17	18	19	20	21	22		
23	24	25	26	27	28	29		
30	31							

February									
Su	М	Т	W	Th	F	Sa			
		1	2	3	4	5			
6	7	8	9	10	11	12			
13	14	15	16	17	18	19			
20	★21	22	23	24	25	26			
27	28								

Мау								
Su	М	Т	W	Th	F	Sa		
1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
8	9	10	11	12	13	14		
15	16	17	18	19	20	21		
22	23	24	25	26	27	28		
29	★30							

	August										
Su	М	Т	W	Th	F	Sa					
	1	2	3	4	5	6					
7	8	9	10	11	12	13					
14	15	16	17	18	19	20					
21	22	23	24	25	26	27					
28	29	30	31								

November								
Su	М	Т	W	Th	F	Sa		
		1	2	3	4	5		
6	7	8	9	10	11	12		
13	14	15	16	17	18	19		
20	21	22	23	* 24	★25	26		
27	28	29	30					

Election Day

ille:

	City Council Meetings		Worksessions					
City Council Meetings occur typically on the first and third Tuesdays of the month at 6:00 p.m. except as otherwise noted.								
Coun	icil Work Session Meetings on the secor	nd and	d fourth Tuesday of the					

Council Work Session Meetings on the second and fourth Tuesday of the month at 6:00 p.m. except as otherwise noted.

Council Retreat

Special Worksessions will be held on the following dates for the purpose of holding a City Council retreat: February 18 beginning at 3:00 p.m.; February 19 beginnig at 8:00 a.m.; and February 20 beginning at 8:00 a.m.

	March									
Su	М	Т	W	Th	F	Sa				
		1	2	3	4	5				
6	7	8	9	10	11	12				
13	14	15	16	17	18	19				
20	21	22	23	24	25	26				
27	28	29	30	31						

	June					
Su	М	Т	W	Th	F	Sa
			1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	10	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	24	25
26	27	28	29	30		

September						
SuMTWThFSa						
				1	2	3
4	★5	6	7	8	9	10
11	12	13	14	15	16	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28	29	30	

December						
Su	М	Т	W	Th	F	Sa
				1	2	3
4	5	6	7	8	9	10
11	12	13	14	15	16	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	★26	27	28	29	30	31

City Holidays

Jan. 3 - New Year's Day Jan. 17 - MLK Day

Feb. 21 - Presidents Day May 30 - Memorial Day July 4 - Independence Day Sept. 5 - Labor Day Nov. 11 - Veterans Day Nov. 24&25 - Thanksgiving Dec. 23&26 - Christmas

2022

City Council	Meeting Scheduling 2022
---------------------	-------------------------

	Current as of 1/11/2021		
	This schedule is subject to change		
Date	Description	Sponsor	Placement/Time
	Resolution-Acceptance of Airport Grant	Paul Trombino	Consent
	Resolution-CDOT IGA for Highway Safety Grant at CR17	Paul Trombino	Consent
	Resolution-CDOT IGA for Fiber Phase 3	Paul Trombino	Consent
Meeting	Ordinance-PH and Second Reading-GMC Updates related to the non-potable water development policy	Sean Chambers	Regular
	Ordinance-PH and Second Reading - Authorizing the use of eminent domain for the acquisition of right of way for easements required for Terry Ranch Water Project pipeline and related infrastructure	Sean Chambers	Regular
	Ordinance-PH and Second Reading - Triennial Review of Boards and Commissions	Stacey Aurzada	Regular
	COVID-19 Update	Raymond Lee	
	Homeless update	Becky Safarik	
January 25, 2022	Greeley On the Go Transportation Master Plan	Paul Trombino	0.50
Worksession Meeting	Ordinance creating Special Districts	Becky Safarik	
	Executive Session - Discussion of City Attorney review process	Kathleen Hix	
	Resolution-Approving Wildlife Recovery Research IGA with Colorado State University	Sean Chambers	Consent
February 1, 2022 Council	Intro-Ordinance-Stormwater 2022 Series Bond Issuance	John Karner	Consent
Meeting	2022 Legislative Session Update and Direction on City Council Position	Paul Fetherston	Regular
5 4 0 2022	Water Replacement Project Update	Sean Chambers	
February 8, 2022	Quiet Zones Update	Paul Trombino	0.25
Worksession Meeting	Executive Session - City Attorney performance review	Kathleen Hix	
	Resolution -Stormwater Bonds	John Karner	Regular
February 15, 2022	Ordinance-2nd Reading and PH and Resolution -Stormwater 2022 Series Bond Issuance	John Karner	
Council Meeting	Board and Commission Appointments	Stacey Aurzada	
	Executive Session - Municipal Judge performance review	Kathleen Hix	Regular
February 22, 2022			
Worksession Meeting	Potential cancellation		
March 1, 2022 Council	Intro-Ordinance-Setting salaries of City Council Appointees	Kathleen Hix	Consent
Meeting	Proclamation for Youth Art Month	Kelly Snook	Proclamation
March 8, 2022	Recycling Update	Raymond Lee	
Warch 8, 2022 Worksession Meeting	Discussion regarding the Sale and Use and Enforcement of Fireworks in the City of Greeley	Paul Trombino	
worksession weeting	Greeley Public Safety Picture	Brian Kunzik	
March 15, 2022	Ordinance-PH and Second Reading-Setting salaries of City Council Appointees	Kathleen Hix	Regular
Council Meeting	Board and Commission Appointments	Stacey Aurzada	Regular

Item No. 20.	
January 10, 2022 -	January 2022February 2022SuMo TuWe ThFr SaSuMo TuWe ThFr Sa
January 16, 2022	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
Monday, January 10	Tuesday, January 11 6:00pm - City Council Worksession Meeting (Council Chambers and via Zoom) - Council Master Calendar O
Wednesday, January 12	Thursday, January 13
Wednesday, January 12	Thursday, January 13 7:30am - Poudre River Trail (Hall)
Friday, January 14	Saturday, January 15
	Sunday, January 16

Item No. 20.	
January 17, 2022 - January 23, 2022	January 2022 February 2022 SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 </th
Monday, January 17	Tuesday, January 18 6:00pm - City Council Meeting - Council Master Calendar
Wednesday, January 19	Thursday, January 20
2:00pm - 5:00pm Water & Sewer Board (Gates)	7:30am - 8:30am DDA (DeBoutez/Butler) 3:30pm - 4:30pm Airport Authority (Clark/Payton)
Friday, January 21	Saturday, January 22
	Sunday, January 23

Item No. 20.	
January 24, 2022 -	January 2022 February 2022 SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa 1 1 2 3 4 5
January 30, 2022	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 30 31
Monday, January 24 11:30am - 12:30pm Greeley Chamber of Commerce (Hall) 6:00pm - 7:00pm Youth Commission (Clark)	Tuesday, January 25 9:00am - 5:00pm Farm Show (Island Grove Park) 6:00pm - City Council Worksession Meeting - Council Master Calendar •
Wednesday, January 26	Thursday, January 27
7:00am - 8:00am Upstate Colorado Economic Development (Gates/Hall) (Upstate Colorado Conference Room) - Council Master	7:30am - Poudre River Trail (Hall) 9:00am - 4:00pm Farm Show (Island Grove Park)
Calendar • 9:00am - 5:00pm Farm Show (Island Grove Park)	
Friday, January 28	Saturday, January 29
	Sunday, January 30

January 31, 2022 -	January 2022 February 2022 SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
February 6, 2022	1 1 2 3 4 5 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
rebluary 0, 2022	16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 30 31
Mandau January 21	
Monday, January 31	Tuesday, February 1 6:00pm - City Council Meeting (Council Chambers and via Zoom) -
	Council Master Calendar 📀
Wednesday, February 2	Thursday, February 3
	3:30pm - IG Adv. Board (Butler)
	6:00pm - MPO (Payton/Olson)
Friday, February 4	Saturday, February 5
	Sunday, February 6

Work Session Agenda Summary

Key Staff Contact: Raymond Lee, City Manager, 970-350-9750

Title: COVID-19 Update

Summary:

There will be a brief update to Council regarding COVID-19. The latest updates are available via the City's Dashboard: https://www.arcgis.com/apps/dashboards/78156f8c2f104973a00b40711296e8ae